LIVERPOOL PLAINS
SHIRE COUNCIL

\




Liverpool Plains Shire Council
Annual Report 2010/2011

LIVERPOOL PLAINS
SHIRE COUNCIL

INDEX

Page No.
FOREWORD 2
YOUR COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES FOR 2010/11 4
SECTION ONE — GENERAL REPORTING
o ENGINEERING WORKS AND SERVICES 5
o ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 14
o COMMUNITY SERVICES 20
e ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 24
SECTION TWO - STATUTORY REPORTING
o FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 26
e COMPARISON OF ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 26
e STATE OF THE ENVIRONMENT REPORT 51
e REPORT ON THE CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS 51
¢ PROGRAMS UNDERTAKEN DURING 2010/11 TO PROMOTE SERVICES
AND ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH DIVERSE CULTURAL AND
LINGUISTIC BACKGROUNDS 54
e ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN TO DEVELOP AND PROMOTE SERVICES AND
PROGRAMS THAT PROVIDE FOR THE NEEDS OF CHILDREN 54
o PROGRAMS UNDERTAKEN TO PROMOTE SERVICES AND ACCESS TO
SERVICES FOR RESIDENTS AND OTHER USERS 55
¢ SUMMARY OF AMOUNTS INCURRED IN RELATION TO LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 55
e FEES, EXPENSES & FACILITIES PROVIDED TO THE MAYOR & COUNCILLORS 55
e PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS 55
e SENIOR STAFF EMPLOYED BY COUNCIL 56
e CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $150,000 57
¢ SUMMARY OF WORKS ON PRIVATE LAND & SUBSIDIES 57
e GRANTS UNDER SECTION 356 57
¢ HUMAN RESOURCES ACTIVITIES 58
e EEO MANAGEMENT PLAN 59
e EXTERNAL BODIES EXERCISING FUNCTIONS 61
¢ COMPANIES IN WHICH A CONTROLLING INTEREST WAS HELD 62
e PARTNERSHIPS, CO-OPERATIVES OR JOINT VENTURES 62
e RATES & CHARGES WRITTEN OFF 62
e OVERSEAS VISITS FUNDED BY COUNCIL 63
¢ GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) 63
e ADDITIONAL MATTERS
- National Competition Policy 67
- Privacy & Personal Information Protection Act 67
- Stormwater Management Services 67
- Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 67
APPENDICES
Appendix “A” 2010/11 Financial Statements
Appendix “B” State of Environment Report
Appendix ’C” Social Plan, Cultural Plan and Disability Action Plan
Appendix “D” Policy - Payment of Expenses and Provision of Facilities

to Councillors

Page 1




Liverpool Plains Shire Council e
Annual Report 2010/2011 SHIRE COUNCIL

MAYOR’S FOREWORD

Councillor lan Lobsey OAM

| am very pleased to present the 2010/11 Annual Report for Liverpool
Plains Shire Council.

During the year Council undertook another ambitious Capital Works
Program focusing on Werris Creek with some $1.5m spent on
addressing stormwater problems following heavy rains. The main street
of Werris Creek also benefited from new paved footpaths,
landscaped blisters, new kerb and gutter and the erection of banner
poles.

Other projects during the year included major road upgrades on main road s 129 and 130,
completion of the swinging bridge upgrade, commencement of the new
pedestrian/cycleway bridge adjacent to the Whittaker Street Bridge, continuation of the
culvert and causeway program and gravel resheeting program, cycleway/footpath in
Willow Tree, continuation of the Quipolly Dam flood upgrade works including the
proposed picnic area and the pedestrian safety works in the Quirindi CBD.

Building projects included the purchase of an old house adjacent to the Administrative
Centre for possible future expansion and consolidation of the Iot. It will be rented out until
needed in the future. The Royal Theatre upgrade was completed with the purchase of a
3D capable digital projector, the Visitor Information Centre at Willow Tree was completed,
completion of the $1.5m water holding tank at Callaghans Lane and a number of public
halls were upgraded

Environmental projects included completion of the Regenesis tree planting project with
Blacktown City Council, the commencement of the Namoi Towards a Sustainable Future
project with funds provided by the Environmental Trust, substantial creek clearing along
2kms of waterway, the installation of recycling walls at village tips and rehabilitation of the
Willow Tree and Werris Creek tips.

In the governance area Council continues to sell the Tr@cer Electronic Data Management
System and Tr@ceR Weeds System to other councils and in the process building up a
Reserve for future reallocation to other much needed projects.

Health services are extremely important to the future growth of the area and it is pleasing
to report that the new HealthOne Medical Centre has two permanent full-time General
Practitioners residing in Quirindi. The new Multi Purpose Centre to replace the hospital at
Werris Creek has already commenced and should be open in the coming year.
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MAYO R ’ S FO REWO R D (Continued)

Major Capital Works either completed or in progress include:

Nature of Project Total Cost ($000)
Uren St — construct and seal $148
Armidale St — upgrade and seal $48
New Culvert and causeway construction $128
Bundella Rd & Harrisons Plains Rd Survey and Design $24
Completion of Regenesis Tree Planting Project $115
RR129 Causeway Construction $103
Flag poles in main streets $21
Royal Picture Theatre Upgrade and Projection Equipment $118
Willow Tree Visitor Information Centre $91
Quirindi Recreation Centre — equipment $29
Willow Tree and Werris Creek Tips rehabilitation $154
Public Hall upgrades $42
RFS Zone building extension $44
Recycling Walls and tip upgrades at rural centres $95
Quipolly Dam Recreation Area $70
Completion of Shared Cycleway Quirindi $35
Upgrade Single Street Werris Creek Stage 3 $419
Quipolly Dam No 2 Early Warning System $32
Water reservoir Main Road 26 east of Quirindi $196
Showground rodeo yards upgrade $27
Quipolly Dam No 2 — Flood Upgrade Works $68
Quipolly Dam No 2 — Design Increased Storage Works $121
George St pedestrian works $136
MR 130 rehab north of Werris Creek $433
MR 129 Tribella — rehabilitation $700
Regional Roads — guardrail construction $55
Footpath/Cycleway construction Willow Tree $99
Werris Creek Drainage upgrade $1,454
Whittaker St pedestrian bridge $84
Swinging Bridge upgrade $82
Bus Shelter Construction $17
Water Service Telemetry Installation $57

Please take the time to read this document and provide Councillors with feedback to
assist us to continue to provide cost effective services and infrastructure that meet the
needs of the community.
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SECTION 1 GENERAL REPORTING

ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES

A significant program of work was undertaken by Council on roads, drainage and shared
pathway projects during the year at a combined cost of over $2.4m. The following
projects were completed on regional roads during the year and are listed with their
approximate costs:

e MR129 Coonabarabran Road Spring Ridge, rehabilitation Clift Rd to Tribella
$780,000;

¢ MR129 Coonabarabran Road Hut Gully, construction of a multi cell box culvert and
reconstruction of the causeway $167,000;

e MR 130 Single Street Werris Creek Anzac Parade to North Street redevelopment
$330,000;

e MR130 Werris Creek Road Werris Creek, rehabilitation north of Gap Road
intersection $338,000 (project to be completed early in 2011/2012 financial year);

¢ MR130 George Street Quirindi 40kph High Pedestrian Activity Speed Zone $130,000;

¢ MR358 Merriwa Road Willow Tree, shared concrete pathway stage 2 $95,000.

Other projects undertaken included:

Uren and Simpson Streets Quirindi, construction and sealing $162,000;

Armidale Street Currabubula, construction and sealing $45,000;

Restoration of the Annette McNamara (Swinging) Bridge $80,000;

Green Crescent to Golland Fields Quirindi construction of concrete pathway
$16,000,

o Whittaker Street Quirindi, abutment construction for new pedestrian foot bridge
$228,000 (project to be completed early in 2011/2012 financial year).

Council undertook a $446,250 gravel road re-sheeting program which included $128,250
allocated from the “Special Rate Variation” and $318,000 from the Roads to Recovery
Program. The roads treated included:

Cana Road 8.2kms - full length,

Barnbrook Road 10.9kms — full length,

Dimby Lane 11.0 kms - full length,

Bundella Road from 46.5kms — 51.5kms at the Red Lane,
Carinya Road 1.75 — 3.75kms, and

Moreduval Lane 4.5kms - 6.5kms.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

The culvert and causeway construction and repair program continued with $175,000
allocated towards the cost of upgrading or constructing culverts and causeways. Projects
funded under this budget included:

o Moreduval Lane overlay at Hut Gully crossing and the subsidiary stream 1.0km south
of Hut Gully;
Pandora’s Pass new causeways in two unnamed gullies;

e Bundella Road at Rockgedgiel Road intersection, major repairs to existing
causeway;

o Rockgedgiel Road 1.0km north Bundella Road major repairs to existing causeway.

MR 129 Hut Gully Culvert

Flood Damage restoration work involving gravel re-sheeting and drainage infrastructure
repairs continued with the expenditure of $494,000 of Natural Disaster funding in the
western area of the Shire on such roads as Bundella Road, Coomoo Coomoo Road,
Pandora’s Pass, Rockgedgiel Road and Telargra Road.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Work commenced on the reconstruction and augmentation of stages 1 and 2 of the
Werris Creek storm water drainage project. The $2.212m project is being jointly funded by
the Federal Government under the Regional and Local Community Infrastructure Program
- Strategic Projects with a $1.1m grant and Council providing the $1.112m balance. The
project has upgraded the storm water drainage system in the southern area of the town
providing increased drainage capacity and a reduced risk of storm water flooding. The
project will also deliver improved environmental outcomes within the installation of 3 Gross
Pollution Traps to remove rubbish and debris from storm water before it is washed into the
natural water ways.

Werris Creek Storm Water Drainage Project - Poole Street

A significant bitumen resealing program was again completed on the sealed regional and
local road network with a total of $790,000 allocated in Council’s budget to this
imperative maintenance treatment. This allocation includes $158,000 from the Special
Rate Variation approved 3 years ago for road maintenance.

Water supplies have continued to receive favorable weather conditions with strong
recovery trends being recorded in each water source during 2010/11. Further progress in
planning and implementing drought proofing strategies for individual supplies occurred
with several representations to elected members (on a State level) being undertaken to
facilitate several upgrade components.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Work progressed on the safety upgrade and storage capacity increase proposal for
Quipolly Dam with a $1.4m contract awarded to Hydroplus P/L for the design,
manufacture and construction of a new Fusegate spillway and completion of the design
to strength the existing dam wall to meet NSW Dam Safety Committee requirements. The
final design will be submitted to the Dam Safety Committee for their endorsement early in
the 2011/2012 Financial Year with construction work expected to commence in 2012.

Overall Council’s road assets are being consumed due to the funding gap between
required and annual maintenance. Council has continued to make representations to the
other tiers of government for increased road maintenance funding through membership
of the Australian Local Government Association and the Australian Rural Roads Group.
These bodies are lobbying for an increase in State and Federal government funding for
road maintenance to get road infrastructure to a satisfactory standard. Funding for the
maintenance and/or future replacement of other asset classes is also difficult with a future
reduction in service levels required if existing assets are to be retained.

Works Administration

To meet Council’s obligations under the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2000 staff
continued to receive training in many key and hazardous work areas such as Confined
Spaces, Traffic Control, Chainsaw Operation and Chemical Handling, First Aid, Pool
Supervision and Life Saving. The Occupational Health and Safety Committee held a
number of meetings and workplace inspections were undertaken at several Council
worksites throughout the year.

Development of Council’s comprehensive Asset Management System continued with the
collection of additional asset data to improve and refine the asset specific management
plans for Water and Waste Water, Buildings, Property, Roads, Drainage, Bridges and
Footpaths. A re-valuation of Council’s roads assets was completed in July 2010. Work
continued on the development of site specific Quarry Management Plans for 12 of
Council’s 16 working gravel pits. Plans were previously developed for the 4 major quatrries.
All operational quarry procedures have been documented with the remaining work to
include definition of the quarry boundaries and extraction limits.

Works Depots and Plant Administration

Several plant items were replaced and upgraded during the year including the fit out of a
new 14t twin steer truck as a dedicated water cart, replacement of tractor and slasher
with similar units and another with a 72’ cut self propelled mower improving mowing
efficiency on Council’s sports grounds and ovals. A new self propelled smooth drum roller
was purchased to replace an existing unit used for maintenance grading. Good returns
were experienced on the sale of Council Plant with most items disposed of through public
auction. Generally the prices achieved were as estimated and set as the auction reserve.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Parks & Reserves

Parks and Reserve operations were undertaken and a high standard of presentation was
achieved. Landscaping work continued at Who’d-A-Thought-it Lookout and a new
electric barbeque, light and seating was installed. Further landscaping was also
completed in George Street Quirindi and Single Street Werris Creek. The old Quirindi
Swinging Bridge was reconstructed and renamed the Annette McNamara Bridge. The
bridge had fallen into disrepair and was closed to public access several years ago. The
reconstruction has restored pedestrian access across Quirindi Creek for residents on the
eastern side of Quirindi and Barmy Flat.

SWINGING, lf“
BRIDGE 3
®OHE

Annette McNamara Swinging Bridge

Public Cemeteries
Cemetery maintenance was completed including topdressing of the lawn cemeteries

and turf care. A concrete strip for memorial plaques was constructed at Werris Creek
Cemetery.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Swimming Pools

Crack repairs were again completed at the Quirindi pool with further painting being
undertaken on the main pool. A new automatic pool cleaner was purchased for Quirindi
Pool and a similar unit will be purchased next financial year for Werris Creek Pool.

The total number of pool patrons was 9,127 at Werris Creek and 17,588 at the Quirindi Pool.
The Quirindi Swimming Pool again opened to season ticket holders for early morning swim
training and this continued to be a popular service well supported by the community.

Airport

The usage agreement with BAE Systems in Tamworth continues to be successful and allows
the airport to operate at minimal expense to ratepayers. Operation and management of
the airport met CASA standards with the Airport obtaining the standard of a Registered
Aerodrome during the year.

State Roads

Council’s Road Maintenance Council Contract (RMCC) with the Roads and Traffic
Authority for maintenance and project work on the Kamilaroi Highway from the New
England Highway at Willow Tree to the Shire boundary with Gunnedah Shire Council
continued. The work involves routine maintenance, undertaken to meet service levels
specified in the contract, and ordered work which is only undertaken at RTA direction.
Council met the RTA specification requirements for the contract and received an overall
contract performance rating of satisfactory for the work.

Regional Roads

Further work to repair and widen pavement was undertaken on MR129 Coonabarabran
Road at Hut Gully to improve traffic safety through better storm water management,
pavement repair and widening at a cost of $167,000. Materials for the construction of a
new concrete box culvert at the Hut Gully causeway were purchased in 2009 / 2010
however continuing periods of wet weather delayed the construction until 2010/2011. The
reconstruction of MR129 Coonabarabran Road west of Clift Lane to Tribella Road was
undertaken with a new road and pavement design. The estimated cost of the completed
project was approximately $780,000. Shoulder widening and sealing was completed on
MR129 west of the Magpie Ralil crossing at Colly Blue for a cost of $84,000.

A 40kph High Pedestrian Activity Zone in George Street, Quirindi cost $130,000 and an
early start on the 2011-2015 Regional Road REPAIR Program was made on MR130 Werris
Creek Road Werris Creek, north of Gap Road at a cost of $132,000. The full cost of this
project is estimated at $338,000 with the balance of the work to be completed in the
2011-2012 financial year.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Shire Roads

The annual reseal and gravel re-sheeting programs were undertaken and completed as
scheduled. Routine maintenance of both bitumen and gravel roads was undertaken.
Maintenance grading of the gravel road network was completed with all roads receiving
their grading requirements according to Council Policy, during the year.

Urban Streets

The following improvement projects were undertaken in addition to routine urban
maintenance of Council’s town and village streets:

* Uren and Simpson Street Quirindi - construction and seal $162,000.

« Armidale Street Currabubula - reconstruct and seal $45,000.

» Cadell Street Willow Tree — construct parking areas $20,000.

e Bitumen Resealing Urban Roads $ 150,000

Special Rate Variation

The Special Rate Variation approved for road maintenance projects totaled
approximately $334,000 for 2010/2011. From these funds the following maintenance
activities were undertaken:

Bitumen Resealing ($154,279)
* Inverkip Road

e Blackville Road

 Cattle Creek Road

* Russell Street

* Abbott Street

Drainage Maintenance ($51,300)
* Swinging Ridges Road

* Blackville Road

» Sillifant’s Road

« Little Jack’s Creek Road

* Phillip’s Creek Road

* Big Jack’s Creek Road

Gravel Re-sheeting ($128,250)
Dimby Lane

Page 11




Liverpool Plains Shire Council e
Annual Report 2010/2011 SHIRE COUNCIL

ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Water Supplies

The upgrade of Quipolly Dam to improve its flood safety and increase water storage
continued during 2010/11. Acceptance of Council’s design to undertake the upgrade
work was received from the Dam Safety Committee along with the approval of the
Review of Environmental Factors relating to the project. Tender documents have been
prepared based on the final engineering design with tenders called for in Dec 2011.
Contracts for the construction of the fusegate system for raising the water storage level
were signed in June 2011 with modeling of the concept carried out in October 2011.

Completion of the construction of the 5 Million Litre concrete reservoir to the east of
Quirindi occurred in August 2010 within budget and time estimates. Successful testing of
the structure following construction was completed before it was put into service.

Completion of the first stage of telemetry roll out for the western village water supplies as
well as the Quirindi water supply occurred in 2010. Increased benefits derived from the
ability to track faults and monitor reservoir water levels has already yielded improved
responses to headwork problems prior to consumer awareness of the problem.
Improvements to pump operation through monitoring have also allowed savings in
electrical costs due to the ability to run them in off peak electrical periods to the greatest
possible extent. Roll out of the stage 2 component (Wallabadah, Willow Tree and Werris
Creek water supplies) and the final stage 3 component (Sewerage treatment plants and
pump stations in Quirindi and Werris Creek) will be run concurrently through out 2011/12.

Reliable dosage of chlorine has been enhanced in 2010/11 with the installation of new
improved dose pumps in the vilage water supplies. Improvements following the
connection of the units to the telemetry have allowed faults to be identified early to
maintain correct dosage during operation.

Sewerage Systems

Rehabilitation of sewer mains have continued in 2010/11 with the major project during this
period being the lining of the elevated main into the Werris Creek sewerage treatment
plant. This section comprised of ductile iron which was exposed to the corrosive
atmosphere of raw sewage and required urgent rehabilitation to maintain service. The
rehabilitation was carried out utilizing a modified technique to that used in previous years
to avoid destruction of the top section of pipe during the lining operation.

Replacement of the pontoons supporting the Quirindi sewerage treatment plants aeration
motors has been planned and researched ready for fabrication during 2011/12.
Continuous operation of the plant requires a special approach to the replacement of this
critical component.
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ENGINEERING WORKS
AND SERVICES (Continued)

Sewerage Systems (Continued)

Negotiations with the NSW Office of Water for Council to carry out water and sewerage
operations for the Walhallow Aboriginal community commenced in 2010/11. Proposals to
upgrade both the water pressure boost system and the sewage pump station have been
submitted for approval. Acceptance of the water boost upgrade has been received with
further negotiations occurring for the sewerage component expecting resolution soon. This
will bring the total sewerage systems operated by the Council to three upon the hand
over of the Wallhallow system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES

The Environmental Services Department is responsible to Council and the community for
administering a wide range of programs. Primarily the role of the department is to
administer various aspects of environmental legislation and the maintenance and
improvement of Council’s built assets.

LAND-USE PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS

STRATEGIC

Council’s ongoing activities in this area are aimed at converting the current four Local
Environmental Plans (LEPs) into one modern comprehensive document. This document is
then used to provide direction for growth and development of the Shire. The new Local
Environmental Plan for the Shire (LPLEP) will establish the vision for controlled future
development of the Shire. To support this document a single Development Control and
Contributions Plan (DCP) must be prepared to prescribe development standards
applicable to the various types of land use approvals

Council has exhibited the draft comprehensive LEP and a portion of the draft DCP. As a
result the Draft LPLEP has moved significantly toward gazettal and Council has adopted
for use a number of DCP chapters.

In summary, achievements have included:

¢ Undertaken necessary work to guide the preparation of the draft comprehensive
LEP in terms of the Statement Government provided template

e Reviewing and updating the Heritage Asset List, covering the post amalgamation
Shire area;

e Reviewing general flooding information in both rural and urban settings;

¢ Collating material for inclusion in the final DCP;

e Preparation of a planning proposal to implement improvements to the strategic
planning instruments identified through community consultation.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Through the system of development approvals, certification of developments and
compliance inspections, all developments have been checked so that they comply with
the various applicable LEPs, DCPs, the Building Code of Australia, Planning for Bushfire
Protection requirements and other related legislation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES (Continued)

Council has also fulfilled its other statutory obligations by issuing various certificates under
the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 such as s149 (Planning Certificates)
and s149 (D) (Building Certificates).

Activities for the reporting period undertaken include:

e Approval of development valued at $19,175,278 (2010/11)
e Councilissued 286 section 149 zoning certificates (2010/11)

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Council has fulfiled its role as a regulatory authority under the Protection of the
Environment Operations Act and has undertaken investigations into complaints with
regard to pollution incidents.

In the same way Council continues to take an active role in natural resource
management across the Shire and provides assistance and support where necessary to
local groups, such as the Quirindi Community Nursery and participation with such
organisations as the Namoi Catchment Management Authority.

The management and protection of the Grassy Whitebox Woodland at Wallabadah and
Currabubula is an ongoing project for Council. This is in addition to the riparian zone
rehabilitation projects occurring within the boundaries of the shire. The most conspicuous
projects this year have been within the Quirindi township area (downstream of Whittaker
Street Bridge project) and at Wallabadah (First Fleet rest area).

Council’s Weeds Officers play a vital role in this area, actively working with both private
and public stakeholders managing noxious weed control and promoting general weed
control obligations.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Council provides a range of programs to assist the community to dispose of their waste in
an environmentally acceptable manner. These include:

e Participation in drumMUSTER and Chemcollect programs

e Recycling drop-off centres at Council landfills

e Weekly domestic waste pick-up and fortnightly recycling kerbside collection service
to nominated areas
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES (Continued)

All landfill sites are supervised when they are open to the public as a means of providing
greater public awareness of the many issues facing this crucial service. This initiative has
had a waste reduction benefit with greater volumes of recyclable items being collected
and removed from the waste stream. This has the additional benefit of limiting the
consumption of landfill space.

Significant landfill site rehabilitation is nearing completion at the Blackville, Werris Creek
and Willow Tree sites. All other sites are being assessed for similar treatment.

Council has a collection contract with JR Richards for kerbside collection of general refuse
and recycling co-mingles which is by way of a 240L mobile bin for each service. This
upgraded service commenced in October 2009. At the same time, Quirindi Aboriginal
Corporation accepted the contract to undertake site management services and provide
a modern separation and resale of recyclables business undertaking.

As part of Council’s contract for kerbside waste and recycling collection, the contractor
has conducted two kerbside collections — one of green waste and one for bulky goods
waste. These collections are programmed to continue annually and assist to keep town
areas tidy and free of potential vermin harbourage situations.

!
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Werris Creek Landfill Recycling Wall
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES (Continued)

PUBLIC HEALTH
This program aims to enhance public health and amenities standards by:

e Monitoring and regulating food shops including education of owners and food
handlers

¢ Investigate public health complaints and monitor implementation solutions
Regulation and inspection of on-site sewage management installations

¢ Providing a public toilet cleaning service to facilities under Council’s control and to
a standard that meets community standards.

e Community Sharps Bins, one in Werris Creek and one in Quirindi, for public use as a
legitimate alternative to placing sharps into the general waste stream.

NOXIOUS WEEDS CONTROL
Council employs two (2) full-time inspectors and one (1) casual, part-time spray operator.
In summary, activities include:

e Providing current and reliable control information to the community.

e In negotiated partnerships, undertake environmental weed control projects with
CMA funding.

¢ Undertaking general control work on Crown Land, Council land and in limited
situations, privately owned land.

e Suppression of Noxious weeds on public land and Council controlled road reserves.

o Enforcement and compliance with the Noxious Weeds Act by inspecting private
lands.

Re-planting of more desirable species along Quirindi Creek
funded by the Namoi CMA
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES (Continued)

COMPLIANCE/RANGER SERVICES

Council administers the Companion Animals Act and employs a Compliance Officer and
one full-time Ranger who undertake regular patrols across the Shire.

In addition, these personnel respond to:

Dangerous and nuisance dog complaints
Cat complaints

Call-outs for stock straying on roads
Abandoned vehicle incidents

Littering enforcement

Pollution incidents

Overgrown allotment complaints
Unfenced private swimming pool issues

Annual Statistics 2010/11

Dogs Impounded 170
Dogs Surrendered 76
Dogs Rehomed 29
Dogs Euthanased 116
Dangerous Dog Orders 2
Nuisance Dog Orders 8
Stock Call-Outs 30
Stock Impounded 21

BUILDING MAINTENANCE & CONSTRUCTION

This program constructs facilities and maintains Council’s existing public buildings in a state
of good repair and condition.

Activities have included:

¢ Council Chambers modifications for Local Emergency Operation Centre needs

e General maintenance to all Council owned buildings as well as emergency repairs
due to vandalism or break-ins

e Upgrade public amenities in Wallabadah and Currabubula

e Assist community groups such as Wallabadah Hall Committee - refurbish
community hall
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ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES (Continued)

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

This program provides support and assistance to:

e NSW Rural Fire Service
e NSW Fire Brigade

e State Emergency Service

¢ Volunteer Rescue Association

Council is also responsible for the Local Emergency Management Committee and Local
Rescue Committee. These Committees meet quarterly. A Local Emergency Operations
Centre (EOC) for Liverpool Plains Shire has been outfitted at the Quirindi Works Depot
which provides a secondary back-up EOC, as well as a training facility, to support the
existing EOC at the Council’s office.

REGENESIS PROJECT

This $2 million carbon sequestration project Regenesis was a joint initiative of Liverpool
Plains Shire Council and Blacktown City Council with support from the Namoi CMA. It
achieved important environmental outcomes such as land revegetation, biodiversity
protection, carbon sequestration and an insight into carbon trading.

The project concluded in December 2010 and was instrumental in recruiting landowners
to join in with the project goals (including Council’s own property “Fairfield”) and has
achieved plantings in excess of 30,000 native trees and shrubs covering more than 80
hectares of land.

The project has been a valuable educational tool for students of both Quirindi High School
and Mitchell High School (in Blacktown) to assist in their understanding of carbon
sequestration and the future of carbon credits and carbon trading. Promotion of the
project outcomes has been ongoing.
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COMMUNITY

SERVICES

LIBRARY SERVICES

Council is a member of the Central Northern Regional Library, which is administered by
Tamworth Regional Council. Members of the group are Tamworth Regional Council,

Narrabri Shire, Uralla Shire, Walcha Shire and Liverpool Plains Shire.

There are two branch libraries at Quirindi and Werris Creek and two public service outlets
at Premer and Willow Tree.

Opening hours are:

Quirindi Monday to Friday 10am-5pm
Saturday 10 am -12 pm
Werris Creek Tuesday to Friday 10am - 5pm
Saturday 10am-12 pm
Premer Monday 9 am - 10.30pm
Saturday 9.30am-12pm
Willow Tree Sunday to Saturday 9am - 5pm

Residents are encouraged to use their local library and to avail themselves of the
extended services available from the Regional Library network. Public access computer
bookings continue to grow showing the way forward for 21t Century libraries.

YOUTH AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES

Council has continued to provide a number of services for children and the youth of the
Shire.

These services are similar to those conducted over previous years due to their success.

Council sponsors the Life Education Program which provides a subsidy to all primary school
children in the Shire to enable them to attend the program

A community based Committee that administers the Youth Scholarship Program on
Council’s behalf has continued to provide funding to assist local youth. Projects
undertaken include: School excursions, help with tuition and book fees for first year
university students, attending conferences that promote Youth leadership and helping
students chosen to represent their school or region in sport.

Vacation Care is provided during the September and Christmas Holidays. Children aged
between five and twelve years can access care for a minimal cost during these periods.
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COMMUNITY
SERVICES (Continued)

A Creative and Practical Arts competition is held each year as part of Youth Week and a
Youth Forum is held annually.

Council also provides financial support to the Koori Kids Program and merchandise is
distributed to youth as part of the NAIDOC Week Celebrations.

e HSC Youth Theatrical participation;
¢ NSW Youth Parliament participation
e NSW State Schools Constitutional Convention.

Council provides accommodation for the Beehive Playgroup at the Quirindi Pavilion and
Eastside Childcare continued to be the Shires major long day care provider and remained
extremely popular.

HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE

The Liverpool Plains HACC program assists clients who are frail and/or aged and people
with disabilities to remain in their homes and within the general community for as long as is
practical. HACC Centres are located in Pryor Street Quirindi, North Street Werris Creek and
King George Park Willow Tree. The frail, aged and disabled of Liverpool Plains Shire Council
have excellent care available to them.

The Service is funded by the State and Federal Governments and sponsored locally by
Council. Due to increases in funding and other small grants, the range of activities has
increased over the past year. These new activities include craft days, extra transport
services and exercise classes.

Further support is provided by:

Oxley Community Transport Service,

Gunnedah Oxley Community Options

Home Care Service

HACC Regional Team

Commonwealth Carer Respite Tamworth
Community Nurses from Hunter New England Health
HACC Development.

Anyone who has a disability which makes independent living difficult can apply for HACC
Services. That is, people with a functional disability or frail elderly people including those
with dementia.

HACC Services are also available to carers. Carers are family members or friends who
care for frail aged persons or those with a disability.
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COMMUNITY
SERVICES (Continued)

HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE

Services include:
e Shopping Access Bus
Hydrotherapy Bus
Tamworth Specialist Medical Bus
Premer -Tamworth Bus
Ladies RSL Club Luncheon Bus
Men’s Day Outings
Carers’ Meetings
HACC Car
Meals on Wheels
Food Service
Craft Day
Monthly Carers’ Meeting
Social Support
Seniors’ Newsletter
HACC Holiday
Referral Service
Shopping Service
Transport
Domestic Assistance (client shopping)
Movement to Music Gentle Exercises
Assessments
Referral to Other Services
Co-ordinator Seniors Week
Tax Help

HACC Client Bowls Day
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RECREATION CENTRE

Since the employment of a new Senior Fitness Instructor the recreation Centre has gone
from strength to strength. With the introduction of new classes numbers of users have
continued to increase. More community groups are taking advantage of this facility and
management is constantly exploring new ideas and undergoing training to continue to
provide clients with an excellent service. The most popular classes include Zumba,
Heartmoves, Fitball, Shake it and Kettlebell.

Some of the community groups using the Recreation Centre on a regular basis include:

Rugby Union

Rugby League

Squash

Basketball

Dance groups

Quirindi High School for school sport

Opening Hours are:

Monday - Thursday 9.30am -1.00pm
4.30pm-6.30pm
Friday 9.30am-1.00pm
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ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT

Whilst agriculture remains the backbone of employment within the Liverpool Plains, mining
and gas exploration have emerged as critical new employment sectors. Exploration
licenses have been taken up by BHP Biliton near Caroona within the Shire boundaries,
whilst Shenhua China's largest producer of coal is exploring near Breeza in Gunnedah
Shire. Both these sites are geographically closer to Quirindi and Werris Creek than any
other major population centre. Santos is also exploring for coal seam methane in the
district, leading to employment outcomes on driling rigs and ancillary support. The
prospect of further mines in the Gunnedah Basin has also resulted in teams of workers
subcontracted to the ARTC utilising almost all available accommodation within the Shire.
Whilst the economic activity is welcome, Council remains committed to the protection of
the alluvial floodplains and underlying aquifers of the Shire.

Council continued its participation at Country Week which again proved effective in
attracting new residents.

Liverpool Plains actively participated in the promotion of the Kamilaroi Highway and New
England North West Tourism. Domestic tourism remains stagnant but Council’s strategy of
developing attractions in the towns and villages saw positive numbers.

The Australian Railway Monument and Rail Journeys Museum continues to win major
awards both for the displays and for the effectiveness of the volunteers.

An independent Management Plan for recreational activity at Quipolly Dam was
completed and a management committee established to oversight development.

Several major capital works projects were completed. These included a new skate park
for Quirindi, the Liverpool Plains Visitor Information Centre at Willow Tree and the
refurbishment of the Royal Theatre Quirindi as a multi purpose venue.

The Theatre is hosting live performances and regular cinema. The Visitor Information
Centre is the gateway to the Shire encouraging visitors to explore further a field.

The First Fleet Memorial Gardens and the Rail Journeys Museum continue to be of
particular appeal to visitors.
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Other new capital works programmes include a cycleway in Quirindi which features
exercise equipment and meanders attractively along the Quirindi Creek. This project was
jointly funded by the Federal Government, Council and BHP Billiton. Also installed was
interpretative main street signage in Werris Creek. Reflecting the significance of rail to the
town, decorative pavers featuring the most significant locomotives of the main Northern
Line are featured in the newly constructed footpaths.

The Liverpool Plains Visitor Information Centre Willow Tree
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SECTION 2 STATUTORY REPORTING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [SECTION 428 (2) (a)]

See attached Appendix “A”.

COMPARISON OF ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
[SECTION 428 (2) (b)]

In terms of Section 428 (2) (b) of the Local Government Act, the following details the
extent to which performance targets set by Council’s 2010/11 Management Plan have
been achieved during that period.

The Council reviewed the progress of the Plan at the conclusion of each quarter and
noted any significant variations to the performance targets.

Each of the Principal Activities and sub activities in the Management Plan has detailed
objectives and performance targets as indicated. Council’s performance against these
objectives was assessed in an annual context and a summary of these achievements
follow.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — RATES AND CHARGES

Responsible Officer:

Director — Corporate Services

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.06.11
The maintenance of | Rate returns are lodged on a timely | Completed by 7% November
an equitable and | basis 2010.
accurate rating
system. Supplementary lists are processed | Processing complete  within
within 21 days of receipt timeframe.
S.603 certificates are processed within | Processing complete  within
one week of receipt. timeframe.
All annual and | Al rate notices issued within | Annual rate notices issued in
quarterly rate notices | prescribed timeframes. accordance with DLG
are issued within the timeframe.
prescribed times
Rate revenue is | Percentage of outstanding rates, | The 2010/2011 rate recovery has
maximised through | charges and fees below group | fallen below that of the previous
effective recovery | average in Local Government Annual | year due to staffing changes
procedures. Report on comparative information. within the department.
Conduct an annual sale of land for | To be advised. Tentative date
unpaid rates if outstanding rate | March 2012.
position meets LG Act provisions.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — UNATTACHED INCOME

Responsible Officer:

Director — Corporate Services

OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.06.11

Grants Commission
Return

Prepare the Local
Government Grants
Commission Return

Grants Commission Return completed
by 30t November, 2010.

Complete.

Investments
Maximise interest on
investments within
acceptable levels of
risk.

Annualized rate of return of 20 basis
points above the annualized 30 day
Bank Bill Index.

Monthly report submitted to Council.

No adverse investment returns.

Return achieved.

Achieved

No adverse returns.

Occupational Health

& Safety

Provide a safe
workplace for Council
staff, contractors,
visitors, customers and
volunteers

No reportable incidents.

Completion by the 31t March 2011
prior to annual audit.

Nil incidents.

Review underway in readiness
for new OH & S Act effective 1st
January 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY - GOVERNANCE

Responsible Officer:

General Manager

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Councillors are | Opportunities available for community | Opportunities provided to
consistently involved in | participation through focus groups, | community members through
transparent and open | S355 committees, working parties, | S355 committees, public

community
consultation processes
that are identified as
having beneficial
effect on community
development.

public meetings and public exhibition
of documents.

Attend community organisation
meetings such as Rotary & Chamber
of Commerce

residents

Quarterly newsletters to

each year.

Weekly Update of council news
published in the Advocate & WC Flyer.
Advertisements and media releases

made on a regular basis

levels at Councill,
and community level

Participation
Committees
meetings.

Attendance at professional
development and training courses
during the year.

meetings and council meetings.
Documents exhibited and
advertised for public comment.

Chamber Meetings and Lions
Club meetings attended

Newsletters sent

Achieved - Weekly updates sent
to Advocate, Werris Creek Flyer,
Bush Telegraph and website

Achieved

Councillors participate and

contribute to discussion

Courses available are shown in
Elected Members Bulletin.
Councillors attended training for
new GM performance
management and quarterly
budget reporting.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — GENERAL MANAGER’S OFFICE

Responsible Officer:

General Manager

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Strategic planning and | Council integrate its various plans in | In progress — Due June 2012
management line with new DLG format.
processes are
recognised as being | Annual Report prepared and | Achieved
high quality and | distributed by Dec 2010.
focused on achieving
outcomes and
measuring
performance.
Contribution of staff to | Develop a new HR Strategy including | In progress — draft presented to
achieving corporate | succession planning at completion of | Strategic Planning Workshop
objectives is | asset man plan.
maximised. Training plan implemented including | Achieved

mentoring and assertiveness training.

Accurate and timely | Management is satisfied with content | No complaints from
reporting systems that | and timeliness of financial reports. Management

allow Council to assess

efficiency and | Council is satisfied with reporting
effectiveness of | format No complaints from Councilors
spending programs
are routinely provided. | Internal auditor engaged for one | Achieved
week every 6 months
Management Management Plan performance | Achieved
performance meets | targets met and/or  variations

with Council approval
in terms of effective
implementation of
Council priorities and
policies.

approved by Council

Management provides

transparent reporting
and minutes that
facilitate Council’s
decision making.
Decisions

communicated to
residents.

Council is satisfied with the reporting
format and content provided by
management.

Business papers/minutes have error
content less than 1%.

Business papers are timely.

No complaints from Councillors

Achieved

Achieved.
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Responsible Officer:

Director — Corporate Services

~N

OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.06.11

RTA Agency
High transaction and

service levels
maintained at RTA
Agency

Increase level of

service to the public.

RTA satisfied with

performance.

Agency

Surplus on agency operations of not
less than 5% of annual agency
retainer.

Report findings and recommendation
to the December 2010 meeting of
Council.

Agency completing additional

work for regional office.

Surplus greater than 5%.

Complete.

Shops and Offices

100% occupancy of
shops and offices at
current market rentals

All commercially in demand

properties tenanted.

All properties tenanted.

Housing

Councill owned | Housing strategy reviewed annually | Complete.

dwellings are | and reported to Council by 31t

maintained at an | December each year.

appropriate standard

Customer Service

Meet customer service | Maximum queue delays of five | Delay nolonger than 5 minutes.

expectations at the | minutes at customer service and
reception counter reception counters.
Customer Action

Reqguest System

Customer requests are | Report to Council on the number of | Achieved.
actioned and | requests for each functional area.
responded to.
Internal Audit
All potential or actual | Staff are to submit monthly reports | Achieved.
inadequacies in the | and reconciliations of ledger
organisation’s systems, | accounts to the Finance Manager for
standards and controls | checking by the 14t of each month.
addressed.

Completion by 31st May 2011. Complete.

Building Insurance
Maintain Council’s
building insurance
schedule and update
insurance values
annually.

All new structures/buildings added to
insurance schedule upon completion
of construction.

Review and update of insurance
values completed by 31st May 2011.

Highly effective insurance cover in
place on most competitive terms
available.

Railway Avenue House added

to insurance register.

Complete.

All properties
competitive terms.

insured

on

Records Management
Maintenance of an
effective and efficient

System files archived as necessary and
recorded.

Four years of correspondence

complete.
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OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.06.11

records management
system

Increase the efficiency
and effectiveness of
records management
services to the
organisation

System files regularly purged and
disposals recorded and presented to
General Manager.

Electronic distribution of monthly
Committee and Council business
papers.

Timely distribution of all

correspondence electronically.

Review document management
system by 31st March 2011.

No records destruction.

Reports distributed monthly.

Correspondence distributed
daily.

New version to roll out in
2011/2012 after testing
complete.

Information Systems
Provide an effective
information system

Authority financial system operational
99% of time during business hours.

LAN operational 99% of time during
business hours.

Backups performed daily and off-site
storage of weekly backups

99.60% operational.

99.90% operational.

Backups completed daily and
off-site weekly.

Staff Training
Provide staff training in

the use of information
systems.

Revised training plan developed by
the 31st July 2010.

Staff training undertaken by the 30t

Completed by 31t December
2010.

June 2011. Complete.
Water  Biling and
Rating Accounts are issued quarterly and | All reads for 2010/2011
Provide effective and | within 30 days of reading. complete.
efficient water billing
and rating services. Number of justifiable complaints
received. Four complaints regarding
wrong meter reads.
Creditors
Pay creditors within Number of justifiable complaints | One complaint due to loss of

acceptable terms

received. Payments to be made by
the 30th of each month.

Electronic processing commenced by
the 30t September 2010.

original invoice.

Incomplete. Introduction
delayed due to the lack of staff
resources. To be reviewed in
2011/2012.

Pricing Policy/Fees &
Charges

Prepare Council’s
Pricing Policy in

Submit a Pricing Policy to Council that
meets legislative requirements.

Complete.
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.06.11
accordance with Incorporate  Pricing  Policy into | Complete.
legislative Council’s Management Plan.
requirements
Draft Pricing Policy submitted to | Complete.
Council by 30t May 2011
Pricing Policy incorporated into | Complete.
Council’s Draft Management Plan by
15th May 2011
ABS Return
Prepare the ABS Fees and Charges Schedule | Complete.
annual collection of prepared, adopted and distributed by
Local Government 30t June each year.
Finances Return
ABS Return completed by 29t | Complete.
November, 2010.
Budget Preparation
Co-ordinate First draft budget presented to MANEX | Complete.
preparation of the by 28t February 2011.
annual budget.
Budgets incorporated into Council’s | Complete.
Draft Management Plan by 30t Apiril,
2011.
Final budget prepared and adopted | Complete.

by 30t June, 2011.

Budget Reviews
Monitor and review
Council’sincome and
expenditure

Quarterly Financial Reviews submitted
to Council within statutory timeframe.

Complete. All reviews submitted
within timeframe.

Monthly reports submitted to Council. | Achieved.
General Ledger
Maintain a structure in | Actual result reflects anticipated | Variations explained and
the General Ledger to | budget result. approved by Council.
provide adequate
financial reporting
Council Committee
Auditing Audited financial statements for | Complete.
Conduct regular Council Committees reported to

financial reporting of
Section 355
Management
Committees and
provide assistance.

Council by 30t November, 2010.

Asset Accounting
Account for Council’s
assets accurately and
in accordance with

Accurate records kept of Council’s
assets.

Records up to date.
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.06.11
legislation. Information completed to legislative | Complete. Information in

requirements.

accordance with legislation.

Completion by 31st March 2011. Complete.
Plant Administration
Provide plant Financial reports provided as | Complete.
administration support. | annexure to the 30" November 2010
Financial Review.
Payroll/Human
Resources Issues
Reporting Consultation undertaken. Complete.
Provision of monthly
reports to Council Reports on Human Resources Issues | Achieved.
regarding overtime, submitted to Council monthly.
staff costs, workers
compensation, Templates  for annual reviews | Complete.
accrued leave and distributed to General
sick leave. Manager/Directors by 28" February
2011.
Completion of annual appraisal by | Complete.
the 30t April 2011.
Provision of accurate Completion by 30t June 2011.
and timely Payroll
Services Employees paid fortnightly. Achieved
No errors and omissions reported. Nil

Fringe Benefits Tax
Monitor motor vehicle
use to minimise Fringe
Benefits Tax (FBT)

Ensure compliance
with FBT legislation.

Recommended changes to vehicles

communicated to senior
management.
Adequate records maintained.

No adverse report.
FBT return lodged by 15t May 2011.

Reports made.

Complete.
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Responsible Officer:

LIVERPOOL PLAINS
SHIRE COUNCIL
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OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.6.11

Occupational Health
& Safety

Provide a safe
workplace for Council
staff, contractors,
visitors, customers and
volunteers

No reportable incidents

One incident at recreation

centre

Community
recognition of
activities undertaken
in Tourism

At least five media releases on tourism
activities

Achieved

Community
recognition of
activities undertaken
in Economic
Development

At least five media releases
economic development activities

on

Achieved

Council is effective in
ensuring business focus
groups commit to a
consistent and agreed
economic

development strategy
within an attainable
Vision for the Shire and
partner the Council in
agreed actions that
facilitate investment
by new and existing
businesses.

Continued relationship with RDA.
Make appropriate Council facilities
available.

Four funding applications.

Determine interest level of towns and
villages.

Ongoing

Quirindi  Meeting  Economic

Development Officers
Achieved

Ongoing consultation

Business
website.

Quirindi

Site updated every six months.

Average of 3000 pages to site per
annum.

Ongoing

6020 pages to end of fourth
quarter

Retiree Marketing

Distribution of information packages.

At discretion of Sister City Committee

New folders prepared. Retiree
expo attended

Nil

Sale of Residential

Dependent on market conditions

1 block sold.

Sale of Industrial and
Residential Land

Lots sold as per Estimates.

No blocks sold offer declined

Develop Industrial
Land

In keeping with Council policy.

Tourism Development

Average of 50,000 pages per annum

Quipolly Dam Recreation Area

opened by 30t September 2010

Ongoing

64,416 to end of 4th quarter
(+14%)

Not Achieved. Plantings

undertaken, toilet delivered, DA
submitted to Upper Hunter SC

Australian Railway | Subject to building rehabilitation. Grant application pending (x2)
Monument

Work to be undertaken 2011 Scope of works completed
Heritage Interpretive | Research of appropriate photos and | Signs and pavers installed

Page 33




Liverpool Plains Shire Council
Annual Report 2010/2011

LIVERPOOL PLAINS
SHIRE COUNCIL

~

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Signage installation of signs by July 2010

Liverpool Plains Visitors
Centre

For completion July 2010

6548 visitors September- June

Tourism Marketing

4 meetings p.a. minimum

Attend & contribute to
NENW Tourism Marketing Committee.

Bi- Annual familiarisation by Tamworth
volunteer staff

Attend Kamilaroi Highway Meetings

3 meetings

Ongoing

Familiarisation held March 2011

Ongoing

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY - LIBRARY SERVICES
Director Economic & Community Development

Responsible Officer:

OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.6.11

A high quallity Library
service is provided
that meets the
educational,
recreational and
information needs of
the community.

Council representation at meetings
Submissions made

Number of loans, computer usage
and members increase compared to
previous period

Establish marketing program.
Weekly article published in

paper.

local

Ongoing
Ongoing

Visitors
11145

Loans PAPC Bookings
10817 3130

Achieved

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — AGED AND DISABLED SERVICES
Director Economic & Community Development

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Wide range of services | Develop permanent accommodation | Opened
delivered at a | for the Quirindi HACC Centre at the
standard which meets | former Ambulance House
client needs
Number of clients utilizing services and | 2849 client transactions 1st
programs. Quarter
2931 client transactions 2nd
Quarter
2721 client transaction 3d
Quarter
2789 client transactions 4t
Quarter

Identify and
opportunities.

access funding

Service maintained and no adverse
comments from clients.

Participation in Seniors Week
Senior  Citizens  Week
undertaken

activities

Ongoing applications to support
HACC events such as Seniors
Week etc

1970 meals delivered 1st Quarter
2010 meals delivered 2nd Quarter
1884 meals delivered 3@ Quarter
1751 meals delivered 4th Quarter

Seniors Week heldf
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OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.6.11

Positive feedback from community.

HACC Newsletter published in h
copy and on Councils web page.

Ongoing

ard | Ongoing

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — YOUTH AND CHILDREN SERVICES

Responsible Officer:

Director Economic & Communi

ty Development

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Young people | Council maintains active youth | Some sponsorships through Youth
have access to | program. Scholarship
opportunities Youth Forum conducted annually
that enhance
their social well | Participation in Youth Week. Achieved
being
Develop and deliver programs to | Some development in relation to
meet identified needs in consultation | Royal Theatre events planned
with appropriate youth agencies. skateboard workshops held.
Positive feedback regarding the | Ongoing
benefits of Scholarships given to
youth.
Committee meets and provides | Ongoing

report to Council on activities

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — CULTURAL & COMMUNITY SERVICES

Responsible Officer:

Director Economic & Communi

ty Development

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Arts In conjunction with Currabubula Art | Ongoing
Show & Blackville Art Show.
At least two new events held during | Waste To Art organised
the year
Cultural and | Plans integrated by June 2011 In progress
Social needs of
the shire are
identified,
considered  for
service provision
and met where
funded.
A range of | Council owns and maintains facilities | Ongoing
medical services | suitable for GP practice.
are locally | Premer Medical centre staffed by
available Community Nurse.
Support Hunter New England Health in | Health One completed. MPS under
the development of a Health One | construction.
Facility at Quirindi and a MPS at Werris
Creek.
Sports Council | Sports Council meets quarterly and | Achieved
meets and | reviews the sporting and recreational
represents the | needs of the shire.
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PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
sporting interests | Sports Council provides | Actioned
of the shire recommendations on priority projects
to Council for funding by Department
of Sport and Rec.
At least one sport exchange with | None except for school exchange
Blacktown City Council undertaken
Quirindi User survey conducted annually to | Ongoing surveys increased usage.
Recreational gauge satisfaction of level of service.
Centre provides
a range of
activities.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
Responsible Officer:

— CHILDCARE SERVICES

Director Economic & Community Development

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Adequate Childcare Centre meets DOC’s | Centre accredited
accessible and | licensing and accreditation

affordable child
care services are
provided which
meet community
needs.

requirements.

Centre operates at capacity, reports
presented on attendance and
expenditure

Childcare Centre access to

government assistance programs
Positive feedback

Centre operates as a profit cost
centre

Make submissions to State and Federal
Government for capital and recurrent

funding for additional preschool
places.
Beehive available for rent for

children’s activities

Monthly report to Council. Not

achieved. Soft numbers this period

Ongoing

Not achieved. Loss made of $19,000
for the year

Ongoing

Ongoing
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

A. — = '_'

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Provide a safe | Systems in place to identify and
workplace for | mitigate risk Systems in place.
Council staff,
contractors,
visitors, No reportable incidents Nil incidents.
customers and
volunteers
Provide the | Draft comprehensive LEP advertised | Achieved.
community with | for public comment
a
comprehensive Council considers submissions and | Achieved.
local finalises draft LEP
environmental
plan that reflects | Draft LEP submitted to DoP for s65 | Completed.
the intent and | Cert
adopted land
use strategies | Draft LEP submitted for gazettal by | Achieved.
and facilitates | DoP
sustainable
development
and growth of
the shire.
Timely and | No mistakes and 75% Certificates | Achieved.
accurate processed within 5 working days.
processing of
Certificates 75% of fully documented certificates | Achieved.
processed within 14 days
Adopted Draft DCPs advertised for public | Completed and Ongoing.
planning comment
strategies guide
development of | Researched reports and | Ongoing.
the shire recommendations presented to
Council on major planning issues,
impacting on the Shire.
The Department | No incidents of non compliance with | Nilincidents.

displays and
promotes
environmental
best practice in
delivering

services

demonstrated gains identified
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — PUBLIC HEALTH
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11

Health problems | 100% of food premises have an | Follow up inspections being
caused by | annual inspection. conducted as required.
unclean food
handling and | Undertake a food handling seminar | Replaced with free online access to
premises are | annually. food handling training.
minimized.

Review undertaken. Ongoing.

Distribute best practice material for

the assistance of food handlers.
Maintenance of | Inspection program developed and | Program ongoing with new

a healthy
environment

implemented.

Act implemented and regulatory staff
familiar with requirements of Act,
capacity to regulate when necessary

Disposal units instaled at selected
locations serviced appropriately

installations and properties changing
hands receiving priority.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Timely response
to Public Health
Nuisances

75% of complaints responded to within
2 working days.

All complaints received entered in
register and actions recorded.

Achieved.

Tracer’s system of Customer Action
Requests is in use.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — BUILT ENVIRONMENT
Director — Environmental Services
OUTCOMES, ACTIONS AND SERVICE LEVELS

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Timely and | Meet time constraints of EP&A Act for | Achieved in most cases. Department
Efficient assessment and issuing of consents. of Planning requirements achieved.
processing of Implementation of e-planning systems

applications for
Construction /
Compliance and

ongoing.

Occupation
Cetrtificates
Buildings are safe | Assessment of applications and | Achieved.
and healthy. conditions of approval meet
regulatory requirements.
Review maintenance of essential | Ongoing.
service installations.
Educate industry | Conduct trade information night | Ongoing.
and the public | and/or newspaper releases as
regarding the | required.
built
environment. Publicise changes to regulation or | Ongoing.
process as required
Provide user friendly brochures | Ongoing.
relevant to the building process.
Urban Tree | TPO to protect trees in the urban | In place.
Preservation landscape in place.
Order

All applications processed entered in
register along with decision.

75% of applications processed within 7
working days.

Tracer system in use.

Achieved.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
The quality of the | SOE Report completed and submitted | Achieved.
environment and | to DLG by 30 November, 2010 and
life of residents | include recommendations in
and visitors is | corporate plans.
enhanced by
the provision of | Plan adopted and linked to corporate | Ongoing.
environmental plans
control and
education
Council position | Council’s view is put to various | Ongoing eg Mining Related Councils.
is put on regional | regional forums/committees.
natural resource
issues. Councilor and Staff participation as | Ongoing eg Planning Directors.

active representatives
committees.

on regional

Active Council participation on Namoi
CMA Local Government Liaison
Committee.

Council representation on Caroonha
Coal Consultative Committee, Werris
Creek Coal Consultative Committee,
Liverpool Plains Land Management
Committee and Watermark
Community Consultative Committee

Ongoing.

Ongoing and bi monthly.

Council supports
local

Council provides support.

No requests for assistance received
but Regenesis project supported Local

environmental Community Nursery.
groups
Councill Partner Sister City Blacktown in Ongoing.
undertakes Climate Recovery Project Project completed.
environmental
projects Identify environmental conservation/ Ongoing.
rehabilitation projects as funding
opportunities arise.
Identification of energy saving | Ongoing.
initiatives in Council activities.
Council assists Quirindi Catchment | Ongoing.
Committee with  Quirindi  Creek
rehabilitation project where possible.
Council is an | Take part in National Tree Day, Water | Ongoing.
active partner | Week and Clean Up Australia Day
with the | subject to funding allocation.
community in

Natural Resource
activities.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Responsible Officer: Director — Environmental Services
PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11

Destruction of
Noxious Weeds

Remove and Report no outstanding infestations. Ongoing.
destroy all Class | Issue inspection Report to | Nil to report.
1 & 2 noxious occupiers/Owner

weeds. Class to
be notified to
Department of

Industry &

Investment

Fully and | Weeds identified and control | Ongoing.
continuously programs implemented

suppress and

destroy all Class
3 noxious weeds

Carry out a | Contain and reduce infestations Ongoing.
control program
for Class 4
noxious  weeds
according to the
adopted  LPSC
Management

Control plan

Maintain the | Report of no herbicide related illnesses | Nil reports.
health of staff
and public who
may come into
contact with
herbicides during
the noxious
weed  spraying
program

Undertake Maintain biodiversity in high | Ongoing.
biological or | conservation sites.
agricultural
activities which
supplement
recognised
chemical and
mechanical
activities for fully
integrated
approach to
weed
management
systems
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — NATURAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Responsible Officer: Director — Environmental Services
PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Inspection of
Properties
Inspect and Inspect properties and generate | Ongoing.
report on non- reports
complying
occupiers and Upon reinspection issue Section 18 | Ongoing.
reinspect Notice for non —-compliance
accordingly on a
regular basis to Implement legal proceedings for non | Ongoing.
ensure compliance

appropriate and
effective weed
control activities
are undertaken
in accordance
with the
provisions of the
Noxious Weeds
Act 1993

Community
Education and
Awareness
Develop Community awareness and education | Ongoing.
community program undertaken.
awareness and
identification
skills for weeds
including
noxious,
potentially
damaging, new
or unknown
weeds

Identify Annual report provided. Ongoing.
environmental
and invasive | Identify and source funding to | Ongoing.
weed species implement control programs in
partnership with other agencies.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — WASTE MANAGEMENT
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Provision of | Provide a weekly garbage collection | No breaches.
accessible waste | service to all owners/occupiers within
services to | the designated kerbside collection
residents area, without breaches of any
environmental legislation.
Rural residents outside the designated | Ongoing.
collection area have access to
disposal areas that provide
opportunities for recycling and
disposal of waste.
Contract in place and operational for | Achieved.
collection.
Contract in place for processing of
recyclables.
Contractor meets contract | No breaches.
requirements.
75% complaints responded to within 2 | Achieved
days.
No. of complaints received Nil.
Annual household clean up day | Completed.
conducted in Quirindi, Werris Creek,
Willow Tree and Currabubula.
Waste depots | No justifiable adverse reports from | Nil received.
are DEC on landfill operations.
envirpnmentally Willow Tree Landfill Management Plan | achieved.
sustainable developed and DECC approval
obtained
Annual Reports on recycling and .
waste stream submitted to DLG and | Achieved.
DEC.
Quantity of | Participate in waste minimization, | Ongoing.
waste to landfillis | reuse recycling programs conducted
reduced by NIRW.
Domestic recycling is maintained at Achieved
current levels and expanded where
possible. )
Achieved

Monitor waste volumes going to all
Council landfills

Provision of
sustainable liquid
waste disposal

Improve septic waste treatment
facility at the Werris Creek Sanitary
Depot.

Finalise Rehabilitation Plans for Quirindi
Sanitary Depot —

Under investigation.

Achieved.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — EMERGENCY SERVICES
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Effective fire | SLA in place and quarterly reviews | Achieved.
response conducted.
capacity
maintained by | Participate in Liverpool Ranges Zone Achieved
NSW Rural Fire | Management Committee '
Service )
Respond to Emergency Support | None received.
requests.
Effective fire | Fire response capacity in place. Achieved.
response
capacity Annual statutory financial | Achieved.
maintained to | contributions made to NSW Fire
urban areas of | Brigade.
Quirindi and
Werris Creek by
NSW Fire Brigade.
Effective SES provided with Council support. Achieved.
emergency
response Operational capacity of unit available | Achieved.
capacity to respond to incidents.
maintained by
S.E.S. Shire Flood Plan adopted Achieved.
Effective Accommodation provided. Achieved.
emergency
response
capacity
maintained by
V.R.A.
Local Liverpool Plains Shire Council DISPlan | Ongoing.
Emergency reviewed annually.
Management
readiness Regular attendance by combat | Achieved.
maintained agencies.
LEMC Meetings held every 6 months. Achieved.

Attend Regional LEMC Meetings

Conduct local disaster exercise.

Achieved. As desktop exercise.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — ANIMAL CONTROL
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

OUTCOMES

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/
SERVICE LEVELS

STATUS REPORT
30.6.11

Residents display
a high level of
understanding of
and compliance
with the
legislation in
regard to the
keeping of
Companion
Animals which
results in a high
level of
satisfaction
among owners
of animals and a
low level of
complaint from
the community ,

85% of complaints responded to within
2 days

All complaints recorded

Increase in the number of animals
registered under the Companion
Animals Act.

Surveillance program developed and
implemented.

Infingement Notices Issued.

Date recorded as follows:
Seizures/impounding
Euthanised

Dangerous dog orders
Nuisance Orders
Rehousing

Press release
Education information

Plan reviewed
Publicise proper use of leash free
areas

Achieved

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Reported monthly.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Ongoing.

Local paper publicity as part of
walkway project.

Pamphlet prepared.

Nuisance
minimized to the
public and
residents from
straying stock

70% of complaints responded to within
4 hours during work hours

Record following statistics:
No. of complaints received
No. of impoundings

No. of Penalty Notices

Publicity campaign undertaken

Ongoing.

In place - reported monthly to
Council.

Nil this quarter.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY - BUILDINGS
Director — Environmental Services

Responsible Officer:

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Council Asset maintenance program in place | In place and reported monthly.
managed and actioned in line with budget
buildings are | allocations
maintained to a
satisfactory
standard.
Building Works completed within agreed time | Chambers Interview Room project
construction frame and budget completed.

program finalised
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
Responsible Officer:

— ENGINEERING ADMINISTRATION
Director - Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Customer Responsiveness < 10 days (written) Majority of responses provided in the
Service Responsiveness < 3 days (telephone) required timeframes
Financial No over expenditure of budget | Achieved
Management without approval
Training & | On first day of commencement Achieved
Employee

Development

100% of workforce to be provided with
training subject to budget constraints

Achieved - staff training ongoing

Achieved
Annually
Teamwork, Monthly Achieved
Communications
& Employee Achieved
Relations Annually
Timely survey | Plans available 6 weeks in advance of | Achieved

and design for
Council works.

scheduled works.

Occupational
Health & Safety.

Attend minimum 75% of meetings

Achieved - meetings attended

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — DEPOTS
Responsible Officer: Director - Works
PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Secure storage | No loss of resources from Depot. Achieved - No reported security
of Council breach however some issues identified
resources. and addressed with lock-up
procedures.
Occupational No accidents resulting from poor | 1x accidentin Workshop

Health & Safety.

housekeeping or buiding and

equipment maintenance.

WorkCover requirements met.

Achieved

Economic External rates to be commercially | Achieved - external plant hire rates
viability. competitve and reviewed bi- | reviewed

annually.
Statutory No breach of OH & S, WorkCover, RTA | Plant complies - OH&S improvements

compliance.

and EPA requirements.

made to Grid Roller Tractor
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY - WORKS MAINTENANCE

Responsible Officer:

Director - Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Safety No injury accidents with road | Partially achieved Inspections only
condition as primary cause. undertaken as resources permit.
Customer Responsiveness < 10 days (written) Most responses within required period.
Service Responsiveness < 3 days (verbal)
18 hour response time and 7 day | Safety issues investigated promptly.
correction time to safety matters.
Financial Operating Expenditure <= Budget Achieved
Management
Ride Quality Average NAASRA Roughness Measure | Not achieved - unreliable measure as
<180 unsealed road network condition
changes rapidly depending on
maintenance and weather
conditions, roughness measure should
apply to sealed road network.
Community Weekly major works program | Achieved
awareness advertised in local newspaper.

Traffic Facilities

All signs and pavement markings
legible and <30% of face area
damaged.

Ongoing - maintenance undertaken
as requests received and problems
identified within budget limitations.

Stormwater
Drainage

Completion of Capital Works Plan

Not achieved - delays through wet
weather, material suppliers and
contractor reliability caused delays to
the completion of the Werris Creek
Stormwater Drainage Project.
Estimated completion excluding road
sealing is September 2011.

Footpaths

Annual inspection of all paved
footpaths & production of costed
defect register

Achieved - contained in Asset
Management Plan, 2011 inspection
completed

Street Lighting

Main vehicular thoroughfares comply
with Australian Standards.

Identify street lighting variances to
Australian Standard and cost to

No street lighting upgrades proposed
this financial year.

upgrade
Private Works - Annual operations to make a | Achieved
Profit minimum return of 10% pa on

expenditure.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — ENGINEERING PLANT

Responsible Officer:

Director — Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Fleet By February 2011 Achieved
Management.
Annual replacement of plant in | Achieved
accordance with program.
By March 2011 Achieved

Plant efficiency.

Plant usage is accurately monitored
and availability meets predetermined
levels for each item.

Achieved - usage records maintained.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — PARKS & RESERVES

Responsible Officer:

Director — Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Safety Monthly inspections. Achieved - safety inspections
No injury accidents due to poor | undertaken.
maintenance Achieved - 5 minor injuries reported
mainly through slips, trips and falls, not
maintenance related.
Customer Responsiveness < 10 days (written) Most requests responded to within
Service Responsiveness < 3 days (verbal) timeframe
Financial Actual Net Position compared to | Achieved
Management budget <=0
Well developed No reasonable complaint from user | Complaint received from Jockey Club
Racecourse/ groups. regarding wet track area before
Showground Quirindi Cup meeting. Drainage
complex. repairs completed in vicinity of
problem area. Proposal being
developed to construct new surface
drain adjacent to track
Complaint received regarding a
misunderstanding with ground
bookings between Jockey and
Eventing Clubs.
Complaint received regarding Rodeo
area, canteen facilities and rubbish
removal
New water service installed for Pony
and Eventing Clubs to fill water jump.
Ongoing problems with toilets and
irrigation system.
Streetscapes All Council litter bins cleared weekly. Achieved
Regular sweeping. Achieved
Trees do not obscure signs or inhibit | Achieved
parking
Lawn areas <200mm height.
Roadsides<600mm height.
All bins, seats, etc. in a safe and | Achieved
presentable condition.
Well presented | No reasonable complaint from user | Achieved - one complaint received
parks, reserves, | groups concerning the storage of soil near
sports  grounds, older baby grave sites.
cemeteries and

open spaces
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
Responsible Officer:

— WORKS CONSTRUCTION
Director - Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Safety Weekly inspections. Achieved.
No injury accidents due to negligence | 3 x work site accidents
at the worksite.
Customer Responsiveness < 10 days (written) Most responses given within time
Service Responsiveness < 3 days (verbal) requirements
Financial Net Capital Expenditure <= Budget | Achieved
Management Allocation
Capital Works | Completion of all capital works in | Not achieved - Anzac Pde and

Project Delivery.

accordance with set timeframes.

Hawker St footpath projects to be
constructed. Delays incurred through
additional unplanned work such as
the Whittaker Street Pedestrian Bridge

Program  available for budget | Achieved
consideration.
Quality Statistically 100% of test results | Achieved
compliant with specifications.
Gravel Pits Material available when required. Achieved
No accidents. No prohibition / Achieved - Mine Safety management
improvement notices issued. Plan prepared, draft Mine
Management Plan completed,
specific Mine Management Plans to
be completed injunction with Mine
Operational Plans in  2011-2012
financial year for each of Council’s
Quarry sites.
Annual operations to return a | Achieved
minimum of 10% profit. Extraction
costs per tonne comparative to
private enterprise
Achieved - construction rates for
Efficiency Win tender and complete project | Wilow tree Shared pathway under
under budget. private sector quotations for project.
Innovation Number of new ideas implemented > | Use of pavement stabilization to

5.

reduce gravel overlay depths on
substandard pavement subgrades,
Use of Geofabric reseal technology to
increase new pavement and bitumen
seal life,

Use of pavement profiler to win gravel
from quarries at reduced production
costs,

Purchase of Toro Ground master
mower rather than tractor and slash to
reduce oval mowing times.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Responsible Officer:

— WATER SERVICES
Director - Works

PERFORMANCE TARGETS/

STATUS REPORT

OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Safe drinking | >= 98% compliance. Total Coliforms — 90% last quarter
water E. Coli — 99% last quarter
Reliable supply | No reasonable complaints in regard to | Achieved
to all customers unscheduled supply interruptions.
No scheduled interruptions > 6 hours. Achieved.
Less than 2 hours Achieved
Supply
effectiveness
- head Maintain head > 12 m. Achieved - some connections in
Spring Ridge and Premer just
achieving standard due to long
standing supply limitations.
- fire One fully operational hydrant within | In progress.
fighting 120m. of all connections.
- system No reasonable instances of capacity | Achieved
capacity | not meeting demand.
Capital works carried out on time and | Achieved. Some projects lagging due
within budget. to Managerial workload
Resource < 20% unaccounted for water. Achieved
efficiency/water
conservation Median residential consumption that is | Qualified achievement  pending
steady or falling, allowing for seasonal | outcomes of database repair.
variations.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY — SEWER SERVICES
Responsible Officer: Director -Works
PERFORMANCE TARGETS/ STATUS REPORT
OUTCOMES SERVICE LEVELS 30.6.11
Safe, reliable | Response time < 2hours. Achieved
transport of
wastewater
System No surcharge due to mains or pump | Achieved
effectiveness station failure.
No odour complaints relating to | No complaintsreceived
treatment plant.
Capital works carried out on time and | Some projects lagging due to
within budget. Management workload
Environmental Licence conditions complied with. Being achieved - with exception of

responsibility

suspended solids in both STP effluent
discharges. Implementing additional
monitoring in collaboration with DEC

System complies
with statutory
requirements

and good
practice

Operators qualified.
No breach of statutory requirements.
DPWS inspection reports satisfactory.

Achieved
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Council’s State of the Environment Report is attached as Appendix “B”.

REPORT ON THE CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS [SECTION 428 (2) (d)]

LIWVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 7
CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS

0
.ﬂ.ss.ett e Estimated Frogram
- . . Condition Costto .
Bzset Depreciation | Depreciation . Accumulated | Carrging " Annual Maintenance
Azset Category . Cost | Waluation . [see bring to a .
Class Fate (3] Expense Depreciation Walue . Maintenance | ‘works For
= (SR o] Expensze current year
attached] | Standard
‘ooo ‘000 ‘ooo0 ‘oo ‘ooo0 ‘000 ‘ooo ‘000

Fublic Sealed Roads 1to & 3467 1,928 192 E22 31,269 163,241 4 3,000 1783 2,002
Foads Unzealed Foads 1ob 3,653 162,446 42,310 120,138 3 z.z00 [0 273 [ 1955

Sealed Foads 22| eesor B B30

Structure

Bridge= 106 435 165 T8 16,093 54,188 3 250 43 g1
Footpaths!Cyclewa) 1to 2 24 17z 1LE1E 247 1541 Z 22 24 20
Kerb & Gutter 1oz 46 a4 2044 162 ZEEE 3 23] ] e
Subtotal TESE 2,432 436,451 Q0481 [ 402402 7127 4,645 4,105
wiater Treatment Flants E.¥ 36 3287 1027 2,280 2 - - 54
water Connections 1304 0 248 ETE 172 2 50 17
Bores 250 BT 13 232 13 Ll 3 - 28 30
Reservoirs 1o 13 137 293 12,761 4672 2476 2 32 k) 1
Dams 1013 7] 229 1,947 5,090 EDEE 3 5,800 41 40
Fipelines 12to 4 124 29 12,146 2y 9474 4 Foo 102 126
FPump Stations 25t BT i3] TE 2,130 a42 1364 2 - 40 46
Subtotal E20 E2T 443,351 21,545 23,433 E532 271 372
Sewerage |Pump Stations BT Te 1785 9495 a1 2 - 41 30
Fipelines 13104 264 27 20,91 14,223 E. 715 3 520 8 12
Treatment "Works E.¥ a2 21 E.0E1 2.7E7 3318 2 = 120 120
Subtotal 4273 42 28,758 17,985 10,821 520 179 172
Drainage | Conduits 1t0 126 1526 10,293 1083 10,235 1 36 a0 a0
works Inlet & Junction Fits 1to 126 2841 475 2,366 3 120 22 17
Subtotal - 1,526 13,140 2,064 12,601 156 T E7
Total Classes - All Assets 2,723 4,632 B&V,T00 132,075 460,257 14,335 5,167 4,716

“SATISFACTORY™ CONDITION OF PUBLIC ASSETS

In as=essing the condition of Public Assets Council has had regard to the condition, function and location of
each asset, based on the original design standard. Changes in standards or proposed or potential
enhancements to the existing as=set design standard have been ignored. As=ets within each Azset Category
hawve been assessed on an owverall basis, recognising that an average standard of “satisfactory” may be
achigved even though certain assets may be above or below that standard on an individual basis.

Council recognises that the standard that it considers to be “satisfactorny” may be different from that adopted
by other Councils.

The information contained in this Schedule comprises accounting estimates formulated in accordance with
the NS Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Mothing contained within
thiz Schedule may be taken to be an admiszion of any liability tooany person under any circumstance.

ASSET CONDITION
The fallowing condition codes hawve been used in this Schedule.

Mewly constructed

Ower & years ald but fully maintained in “az new” condition
Giood condition

Average condition

Partly worn - beyond 503 of economic life.

Warn but semiceable

Pawar - replasement required

= N e L P o=
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REPORT ON THE CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS [SECTION 428 (2) (d)]
(Continued)

REGIONAL ROADS

Capital works were undertaken on MR 129, Coonabarabran Road at “Hut Gully” $167,000,
Colly Blue $83,000 and Tribella Road / Clift Lane $780,000. Capital works were also
undertaken on MR 130 under the Regional Road REPAIR program for $132,000 (project
cost $338,000 to be completed in 2011/2012) and George Street 40kph HPAZ for $130,000.

RURAL SHIRE ROADS

Capital works expenditure for the year totaled $175,000 with the construction or
replacement of several culverts and causeways including overlay on Moreduval Lane Hut
Gully crossing and the subsidiary stream 1.0km south of Hut Gully and two unnamed gullies
on Pandora’s Pass. Major repair work was completed on two crossings, one on Bundella
Road at the intersection with Rockgedgiel Road and the other 1.0km north of the
intersection on Rockgedgiel Road. Gravel re-sheeting was undertaken on numerous
gravel roads including Bundella Road, Barnbrook Road and Cana Road.

URBAN STREETS

The storm water drainage study continued with the design of the Quirindi town system.
Stages 1 and 2 of the Werris Creek Storm Water Drainage Augmentation Project
commenced. Road construction was also completed in Uren and Simpson Street Quirindi
and Armidale Street Currabubula as planned.

BRIDGES
Council’s bridges overall are in fair to good condition.

WATER SUPPLIES

Expenditure on Capital Works in 2010/11 continued at high levels with the awarding of a
$1.4M contract for the construction of a new spillway at Quipoly Dam. Capital
expenditure in Werris Creek was focused on activities around Quipolly Dam to facilitate
dam safety requirements such as the design of flood safety improvements and the
continued implementation of a Dam Failure Early Warning System. Village supplies capital
expenditure mostly related to telemetry construction with operational costs steady.

SEWERAGE SYSTEM

Sewer main rehabilitation continues to dominate capital expenditure in 2010/11 with
several OH&S upgrades also made to the Sewerage Treatment Plants. Operational
expenditure is similar to previous years.
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REPORT ON THE CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS [SECTION 428 (2) (d)]

(Continued)

Condition of Buildings

Estimate of
Estimate of cost to annual cost of
bring to satisfactory maintaining Total
Condition at end standard satisfactory std. Expenditure for

Iltem of 2010/11 [2010/11values] [2010/11 values] 2010/11
Council
Chambers Fair $50,000 $12,000 $11,376
Admin Centre
Sportsground
Pavilion Satisfactory $Nil $2,500 $2,553
Racecourse
Complex Fair $250,000 $35,000 $11,263
Works Depot
Quirindi Satisfactory $Nil $15,000 $10,278
Works Depot
Werris Creek Satisfactory $Nil $2.,000 SNl
Quirindi
Caravan Park Satisfactory $Nil $2,000 SNl
Complex
Quirindi Library Satisfactory $Nil $6,000 $3,239
Old Werris
Creek Library Poor Out of Service $4,000 $Nil
New Werris
Creek Library Excellent $Nil $1,000 $1,413
Public Reasonable to
Amenities Poor $200,000 $15,000 $4,174
Public Halls Fair $100,000 $22.000 $23,491
Swimming Pool
Quirindi Fair $100,000 $10,000 $7,100
Swimming Pool
Werris Creek Fair $100,000 $12,000 $1,949
Residences (3) Satisfactory $Nil $15,000 $5,824
Royal Theatre
Quirindi Satisfactory $Nil $30,000 $8,796
Summerhill
Lodge Satisfactory $Nil $20,000 $6,611
HACC Centre Excellent $Nil $5,000 $2,467
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PROGRAMS UNDERTAKEN DURING 2010/11 TO PROMOTE SERVICES AND
ACCESS TO SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH DIVERSE CULTURAL AND
LINGUISTIC BACKGROUNDS [SECTION 428 (2) (j)]

Persons of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island descent constitute 9.5% of the total Shire
population, whilst persons from non-English speaking backgrounds make up a further
1.03% of the population.

Council maintains regular contact with the various local Aboriginal Lands Councils on
indigenous issues. The joint venture project with the Quirindi Aboriginal Corporation for the
provision of waste management and recycling services in Quirindi, Werris Creek and
Willow Tree continues to operate.

Council has prepared a Disability Action Plan, Social Plan and Cultural Plan (Appendix
“C”).

ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN TO DEVELOP AND PROMOTE SERVICES AND
PROGRAMS THAT PROVIDE FOR THE NEEDS OF CHILDREN [LOCAL
GOVERNMENT (GENERAL) REGULATION 1993 (CLAUSE 7A (1) (c)

Council operates a 39 place Long Day Childcare Centre in East Street Quirindi.

Council provides a venue for Family Day Care to operate an outreach childcare service
at the Quirindi Pavilion. The centre is also used to conduct a playgroup twice per week.
Council advertises children’s services and activities in its weekly newspaper column.

Council operates the Quirindi Recreation Centre and the following are provided -
basketball court, squash courts, gymnasium and instructors for fithess classes.

Council participates in Youth Week activities and held several successful youth events in
association with the local High School and the Recreation Centre.

A vacation play centre is operated during the October and Christmas school holiday
break at Quirindi which continues to attract participants from across the shire. Council
utilises a bus to bring participants from the outlying villages to enable access.

Council provides funds to the Youth Scholarship Committee, which is managed by local
citizens, and its purpose is to support young people to undertake activities that enable
personal development. Sponsorship during the period included sending several students
on training courses.

Council has provided support to the Life Education Van by underwriting the cost for every
primary school student in the Shire to attend a session on drug education.

Swimming pools are provided during the warmer months for children, including learn to

swim classes, at both Werris Creek and Quirindi. The many parks in the shire provide play
equipment and shade covers are being progressively installed.
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PROGRAMS UNDERTAKEN TO PROMOTE SERVICES AND ACCESS TO
SERVICES FOR RESIDENTS AND OTHER USERS [LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(GENERAL) REGULATION 2005 [SECTION 217 (1) (d) (i)]

Council, in association with the Quirindi Advocate and the Werris Creek Flyer, publishes a
Weekly Update column which sets out activities being undertaken by Council and
forthcoming events. This is also available on Council’s website. A quarterly newsletter is
also mailed to all residents.

Council’s HACC Service publishes a monthly newsletter which is distributed to clients and
placed at various public locations. Council’s libraries also publish a weekly column on
events in the Quirindi Advocate. The Quirindi Recreation Centre provides a newsletter to
its customers.

SUMMARY OF AMOUNTS INCURRED IN RELATION TO LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS DURING 2010/11 [SECTION 428 (2) (e)

Legal costs for 2010/2011 totalled $40,065 and the following is a dissection by activity:

e Ongoing - A total of $25,226 was incurred in relation to legal action against
ratepayers for recovery of overdue rates. Ongoing.

Complete - $1,178 - Legal advice on Weeds. Complete.

Complete - $1,515 - Compliance issues. Continuing.

Complete - $5,881 - Subdivision of land Werris Creek Pool. Complete.

Complete - $5,110 - Sale of Industrial Land. Complete.

Complete - $1,155 - Preparation of Agency Lease. Complete.

FEES, EXPENSES AND FACILITIES PROVIDED TO THE MAYOR AND
COUNCILLORS DURING 2010/11 [SECTION 428 (2) (f)

The following fees were expended during the year 2010/11.:

Mayoral Fees = $ 18,036
Deputy Mayor Fee = $ 2,853
Councillors Fees = $ 66,990

POLICY IN RELATION TO THE PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND THE PROVISION
OF FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS [SECTION 428 (2) (f)

Council has adopted an amended "Payment of Expenses and Provision of Facilities to
Councillors” policy in accordance with section 253 of the Local Government Act 1993.
Council adopted the amended policy at its 24t November 2010 Ordinary Meeting after
having given 28 days notice for public submissions.

Council will promote the policy on the payment of expenses and the provision of

facilities to councillors to the community by placing the policy on their websites and
making it readily accessible.
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POLICY IN RELATION TO THE PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND THE PROVISION
OF FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS [SECTION 428 (2) () (Continued)

Council shall review the policy on an annual basis and submit this policy to the Chief
Executive, Local Government, Division of the Department of Premier and Cabinet
within 28 days of adoption by Council, even if it is proposed to adopt an unchanged

policy.

Council reimburses all reasonable traveling expenses of Councillors while on Council
business in accordance with the “Payment of Expenses and the Provision of Facilities to
Councillors” policy.

For details of expenses and facilities see Appendix “D”.

The total cost associated with Councillor expenses for 2010/2011 was $28,512. This
comprised of:

Delegates’ expenses for attendance at conferences/meetings, $11,916
seminars and personal development

Meals and sustenance associated with meetings $ 5,705
Expense Mayor Councillors Total
Mobile phone $1,898 NIL $1,898
Facsimile/Internet $477 NIL $477
Travel — meetings $2,245 $5,916 $8,161
Interstate travel NIL NIL NIL
Overseas Travel NIL NIL NIL
Child care NIL NIL NIL
Spouse / Partner expenses $88 $264 $352
(Shires Conference)

Computer (capital) NIL NIL NIL

The Mayor and three (3) Councillors attended the 2011 Shires Conference in Sydney.

?E)N(IO)R STAFF EMPLOYED BY COUNCIL DURING 2010/11 [SECTION 428
2) (9

At the 30th June, 2011, Council employed only one senior staff member in terms of the
Local Government Act and that was the General Manager who is employed on a five
year performance based contract.

The General Manager’s total package of $200,097 is made up of a salary component
totalling $175,339 with the remaining $24,758 being made up as follows:

e Superannuation - $16,521
e Motor Vehicle -$ 7,987
e Private Works -$ 250
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CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $150,000 AWARDED BY COUNCIL DURING
2010/11 [SECTION 428 (2) (h)

In 2010/2011 Council awarded four (4) contracts which exceeded $150,000.

Contracts were awarded to:

Name Amount Purpose of contract
MB Envirocare $ 596,500 Namoi Councils Sustainability Program
Hydroplus Australia P/L $1,400,000 Quipolly Dam fusegates
MPC Earthmoving $ 737,420 Werris Creek Stormwater Drainage Project
J T Fossey Tamworth $ 181,960 Purchase twin steer truck
Helcon Screw Piles P/L $ 169,000 Construction Whittaker Street Pedestrian

Bridge

GHD $ 340,000 Strengthening Basin Communities,

Planning Component. Joint project with
Gunnedah Shire Councill

Schedule of Rates Contracts

During the year Council purchased Bitumen Sealing Services from Boral Asphalt under a
Schedule of Rates Contract. These goods and services were purchased at the contracted
rate and the total value of this contract will exceed $150,000 over the life of the contract.

During the year Council purchased pipes from Humes Tamworth under a Schedule of
Rates Contract. These goods and services were purchased at the contracted rate and
the total value of this contract will exceed $150,000 over the life of the contract.

SUMMARY OF RESOLUTIONS CONCERNING WORK CARRIED OUT ON
PRIVATE LAND AND ANY SUBSIDIES RELATED TO THIS WORK [SECTION 428

(2) (K)]
Council undertook works on private land in 2010/2011 to the total of $150,309.

Council's policy with regard to charging for these private rates is as follows:

Plant Hire Rates Private Hire Rate

Additional Labour Actual Cost + On Costs and
Overheads

Stores and Materials Cost + 9%

During 2010/2011 Council did not partly or fully subsidise any works carried out on private
land.

GRANTS UNDER SECTION 356 [General Regulation 2005, 217 (a5)

During 2010/2011, Council made grants totaling $24,390 to individuals and local
community groups.
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HUMAN RESOURCES ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY COUNCIL DURING
2010/11 [SECTION 428 (2) (m)]

Training undertaken during the year 2010/2011.:

Aerodrome Training

Aged Care Reforms (Tamworth)
Annual Report CNRL
Apprentices/Traineeships
Asbestos Training

Asset Edge - RMCC Training
Assetic Training

Assets Workshop

Asthma/Toilet Training

Autism Training

AutoCad Training

Bobcat Training

Caravan & Camping Show
Carers Conference

CNRL Workshop - Young Adults
Community Care Common Standards
Conducting Individual Assessments
Contaminated Land Management (Dubbo)
Dam Surveillance

Excavator & Skid Steer

First Aid Training

Forklift Training

HACC Conference (Sydney)
HACC Forum

HC Licence Testing

IT Training

IWES Training

LGSA Conference — Sydney

LGSA Water Managers Conference
Loader Ticket

Map Info Training

Minute Taking at Meetings

Mower Demonstration

Onsite Waste Water Management
Operate & Maintain Chainsaw
Swimming Pool Training

Pool Training (Moree)

Rangers Seminar

Rangers Conference

RMCC Training

Road Servicing Workshop

RTA - Sediment Control

I
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HUMAN RESOURCES ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY COUNCIL DURING
2010/11 [SECTION 428 (2) (m)] (Continued)

Safe Use of Chemicals

Safety Training

SBC Study

State Library of NSW Seminar
StateCover - Mock Trial

TAFE — Apprentice Plant Mechanic
TR@CER & Power Budget

Traffic Control - Blue Ticket

Traffic Control - Orange Ticket
Traffic Control - Red Ticket
Tamworth Traffic Control - Yellow Ticket
Tree Felling

Weeds Tr@cer

Work Cover - OH&S Legislation

ONEFPEPRROWONDNNEEPWDN

ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING 2010/2011 TO IMPLEMENT COUNCIL’S
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT PLAN [SECTION 428

(2) (n)]

The Equal Employment Opportunity Management Committee comprises staff from across
the organisation.

Key Equal Employment Strategies are:
¢ |dentify, develop and publicise training and development opportunities.

e Encourage participation in training courses and education support schemes which
allow staff to reach their full potential.

e Review staff training and education policies to ensure that course participation
encompasses merit and EEO.

¢ Review and monitor conditions of service to ensure that they conform to EEO principles
and demonstrate fair practice.

e Consult with relevant employer groups, unions and staff through meetings related to
EEO

e Ensure formal guidelines for appointment, promotion and internal transfers which
encompass EEO guidelines are followed

e Ongoing review of job and performance appraisals to ensure they are non-
discriminatory and conform with EEO principles

e Ensure grievance mechanisms are available to all staff and

e Conduct Annual EEO surveys of all staff - An employee survey was undertaken by an
independent Company - Micromex in March 2011.
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ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING 2010/2011 TO IMPLEMENT COUNCIL’S
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT PLAN [SECTION 428
(2) (n)] (Continued)

The research identifies that, overall, respondents are satisfied with working for Council.
Importantly, upon closer review outdoor staff are identified, overall, to be moderately
satisfied, whilst indoor staff have significantly higher levels of satisfaction. For this reason the
results within the research should be viewed by indoor staff/outdoor staff for the most
accurate outcomes. Outdoor staff performed above the benchmark in overall satisfaction
with Council while indoor workers equalled the benchmark.

The key priority areas identified within the research also vary widely by indoor/outdoor
staff, with the top 10 priority areas detailed below.

Indoor  Priority Rankings

Staff

1 That your department interacts effectively with other departments

2 That your supervisor clearly communicates organisational goals and strategies to
you

3 That you have a manageable workload

4 That Council provides the necessary plant, equipment or other resources for you to
do your position well

5 That protocols, policies and procedures are clearly communicated and
understood

6 That your position description and associated job requirements are clear

7 That morale within your team is high

8 That your contributions to council are recognised and appreciated

9 That the salary for your position is fair and equitable

10 That discrimination or harassment is not tolerated in the workplace

Outdoor Priority Rankings

Staff

1 That individual ideas and suggestions are valued and encouraged

2 That your position description and associated job requirements are clear

3 That Council provides the necessary plant, equipment or other resources for you to

do your position well
4 That you have a manageable workload
5 That any conflict in your work area is resolved quickly and satisfactorily
6 That people in your team work well together
7 That physical working conditions are acceptable
8 That you have the freedom and flexibility to do your job effectively
9 That the salary for your position is fair and equitable
10 That morale within your team is high
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ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN DURING 2010/2011 TO IMPLEMENT COUNCIL’S
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT PLAN [SECTION 428
(2) (n)] (Continued)

Following on from the survey results it is proposed to continue with the following actions to
be completed by 31st March 2012;

1 The annual performance appraisal process clearly outlines the position description and
duties of the position.

2 Regular meetings of staff teams occur across all sections of Council.

3 A review of available plant, equipment and other resources be undertaken to ensure
staff can better perform their duties subject to cost benefit analysis.

4 A review of the organisational structure be undertaken to determine if workloads are
manageable and whether additional staff/contractors are required

5 MANEX investigate other avenues for improving communication between
management and staff

6 A follow up Employee Survey in 2012 to determine any emerging trends and whether
improvements have been made.

EXTERNAL BODIES EXERCISING FUNCTIONS DELEGATED BY COUNCIL
DURING 2009/2010 [SECTION 428 (2) (0)]

Twenty Six (26) external bodies were delegated functions by Council during 2010/2011:

Body Function

Mid North Weight of Loads Control of Weight of Loads on Roads

Blackville Hall Committee Management of Public Hall

Home & Community Care Committee The provision of meal, transport and respite
services for the aged and disabled

Recreation Centre Committee Management of Council’s Recreation Centre

Sports Council Advisory body providing support in the
development of sport and recreational facilities

Central Northern Libraries The provision of library services

Tourism & Promotion Committee Assisting with the strategic planning of regional
tourism

Australia Day Committee Organisation of Australia Day Celebrations

Currabubula Hall & Reserve Committee Management of Public Hall and reserve

Liverpool Plains Economic Development | Advisory body providing support and advice in

Committee economic development

Sister City Committee Management of Council’s relations with its Sister
City — Blacktown

Arts Council (Inc Wallaby Art Group) Organisation of art functions.
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Body

Function

Internal Audit Committee

Management of Council’s internal audit function.

Mining Consultative Committee

Advisory body providing support and advice to
Council on mining.

Dam Recreation Area

Quipolly
Committee

Management and development of the Quipolly
Dam recreation area.

Royal Theatre Committee

Management of the Quirindi Royal Theatre.

Spring Ridge Development Committee

Management of Public Hall and reserve.

Youth Scholarship Committee

Advisory body providing support and advice on
youth programs and activities.

Summerhill
Committee

Lodge Management

Management of residential units for low income
earners

Wallabadah Development Committee

Management of Public Hall

Warrah Creek Hall Committee

Management of Public Hall

Werris Creek Horse & Rider Club

Management of recreational facility

Werris Creek Precinct Committee

Advisory body to Council for works and services
in Werris Creek

Werris Creek Sporting Complex

Management of recreational facility

Werris Creek Railway Institute

Management of Public Hall

Willow Tree Harvesting for the Future
Committee

Advisory body to Council for works and services
in Willow Tree

COMPANIES IN WHICH HELD A CONTROLLING INTEREST DURING 2010/11
[General Regulation 2005, 217 (a7)]

Council did not hold a controlling interest in any companies during 2010/2011.

PARTNERSHIPS, CO-OPERATIVES OR OTHER JOINT VENTURES TO WHICH
THE COUNCIL WAS A PARTY DURING 2010711 [General Regulation 2005,
217 (a8)]

Council was not a party to any partnerships, co-operatives or other joint ventures during
2010/2011.

AMOUNTS OR RATES AND CHARGES WRITTEN OFF DURING THE YEAR
LOCAL GOVERNMENT [RATES AND CHARGES] REGULATION 1993
SECTION 428 (2) (1)

Pensioner rates abandoned under S.575 LGA 1993 $233,553

Ordinary rates abandoned $2,138

Water, Sewer and Waste Management charges abandoned $48

Total $235,739
Notes

It is compulsory that Council write off rates in accordance with section 575 of the local
Government Act, 1993. Other ordinary rates and charges are written off in accordance
with Council’s Economic Development Incentives policy.
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OVERSEAS VISITS FUNDED BY COUNCIL [GENERAL REGULATION 7A(a)]

No overseas visits funded by Council were taken by Council members or staff during
2010/11.

ANNUAL REPORT OF GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) FOR
THE PERIOD 2010/2011

Total number of access applications 2
received during the reporting year

*During the reporting year 3 applications were received, one was
determined.

Table A: Number of applications by type of applicant and outcome*

Access | Access| Access | Information | Information Refuse to Refuse to Application
granted in| granted| refused in not held already deal with confirm/ deny | withdrawn
full in part full available application whether
information is
held
Media 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Members of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parliament
Private sector 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
business
Not for profit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
organisations
or community
groups
Members of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
the public
(application by
legal
representative)
Members of 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
the public
(other)

e More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access
application. If so, a recording must be made in relation to each such decision. This
also applies to Table B.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) FOR
THE PERIOD 2010/2011 (Continued)

Table B: Number of applications by type of application and outcome

Access Access Access Information | Information Refuse to Refuse to Application
granted granted in refused in not held already deal with confirm/ withdrawn
. part full available application deny
in full whether
information
is held

Personal 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
information
applications*

Access 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
applications
(other than
personal
information
applications)

Access 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
applications
that are
partly
personal
information
applications
and partly
other

o A personal information application is an access application for personal information
(as defined in clause 4 of Schedule 4 to the Act) about the applicant (the
applicant being an individual).

Table C: Invalid applications

No of
Reason for invalidity applications

Application does not comply with formal requirements (section 41 of the Act) 0

Application is for excluded information of the agency (section 43 of the Act)

Application contravenes restraint order (section 110 of the Act)

Total number of invalid applications received

oOflo|]O|O| O

Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications

Page 64




Liverpool Plains Shire Council e
Annual Report 2010/2011 SHIRE COUNCIL

~N

ANNUAL REPORT OF GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) FOR
THE PERIOD 2010/2011 (Continued)

Table D: Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure: matters listed in
Schedule 1 to Act

Number of times
consideration
used*

Overriding secrecy laws

Cabinet information

Executive Council information

Contempt

Legal professional privilege

Excluded information

Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety

Transport safety

Adoption

Care and protection of children

Ministerial code of conduct

OoOlOo|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O

Aboriginal and environmental heritage

e More than one public interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular
access application and, if so, each such consideration is to be recorded (but only
once per application). This also applies in relation to Table E.

Table E: Other public interest considerations against disclosure: matters listed in table to section 14
of Act

Number of occasions when
application not successful

Responsible and effective government

Law enforcement and security

Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice

Business interests of agencies and other persons

Environment, culture, economy and general matters

Secrecy provisions

oOlo|j]o|lo|]o|oOo| o

Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation
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ANNUAL REPORT OF GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS) FOR

THE PERIOD 2010/2011 (Continued)

Table F: Timeliness

Number of applications

Decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus any extensions) 2
Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant) 0
Not decided within time (deemed refusal) 0
Total 2

Table G: Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the Act (by type of review and outcome)

Decision varied | Decision upheld | Total
Internal review 0 0 0
Review by Information Commissioner* 0 0 0
Internal review following recommendation under 0 0 0
section 93 of Act
Review by ADT 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0

e The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but
can make recommendations to the original decision-maker. The data in this case
indicates that a recommendation to vary or uphold the original decision has been

made by the Information Commissioner.

Table H: Applications for review under Part 5 of the Act (by type of applicant)
Number of
applications
for review
Applications by access applicants 0
Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access application 0
relates (see section 54 of the Act)
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ADDITIONAL MATTERS [SECTION 428 ()]

National Competition Policy

A key component of the Government’s economic reform has been the application of
National Competition Policy to the public sector.

Under National Competition Policy, the principle of competitive neutrality is applied to
certain significant business activities of Council in order that their operational costs and
charges are brought more into line with those applying in the commercial sector (the level
playing field concept).

Under competitive neutrality, Council businesses are classified as either category 1
(revenue in excess of $2m) or category 2 (revenue less than $2m). Council has no
category 1 businesses, with the following businesses having revenues of less than $2m and
defined as category 2 businesses under National Competition Policy:

1) Water Services
2) Sewer Services

The Department of Local Government’s July 1999 guidelines “Pricing and Costing for
Council Businesses: A Guide to Competitive Neutrality” outline the process for identifying
and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard of disclosure requirements.
These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and financial reporting systems and
include taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, rate of return on investments in business
units and dividends paid.

Council has adopted a Competitive Neutrality Complaints Policy which provides
background to competitive neutrality procedures for lodging competitive neutrality
complaints and other relevant information required for a complainant to effectively deal
with this issue.

No competitive neutrality complaints were received during the 2010/2011 period.

(See the attached financial statements for Councils Category 2 businesses Appendix “A”)
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 (PPIA)

The PPIPA came into force on 1st July, 2000 and has a substantial effect on what
information is collected by Council and how that information is used.

Council is committed to the information protection principles contained in the Act and
has adopted a Privacy Management Plan to assist with the administration of privacy
issues.

Stormwater Management Services

Council did not levy an annual Stormwater Management charge in 2010/2011 and no
provision was made for this charge in the Management Plan.

Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 (Section 93 G (5)]

Council, during the period, had no planning agreements in force.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

General Purpose Financial Reports for the
year ended 30t June 2011

Statement by Councillers and Management made pursuant to
Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended)

The attached General Purpose Financial Report has been prepared in accordance
with:

e The Local Government Act 1993 {as amended) and the Regulations made
thereunder.

¢ The Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements.

e The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, this report:

o presents fairly the operating result and fihonciol position for the year;

¢ accords with Council's accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render the reports false or misleading in
any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 29" September 2011.

d . 55(707/\_/

lan R Lobsey OAM Bernard J Perkins
Mayor Deputy May /\
/ 3
Robert C Hunt Michael J Urquhart

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer



Budget
2011
$'000

8,346
3,720
463
510
4,871
5,448

23,358

7,785
7,169

356
5,357
2,084

22,751

807

807

(4,841)

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 30th June 2011

INCOME

Revenue;

Rates & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees

Investment Revenues

Other Revenues

Grants & Contributions - Operating
Grants & Contributions - Capital
QOther Income:

Net gain from Disposal of Assets

Total Income from Continuing Operatiocns

EXPENSES

Employee Benefits and oncosts

Materials & Contracts

Beorrowing Costs

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other Expenses

Net loss from Disposal of Assets

Total expenses from Continuing Operations

OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

Qperating result from discontinued operations
Gain (loss) on restructure
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR YEAR

Net operating result before capital grants and
contributions

Actual Actual

2011 2010

Notes $'000 $'000
3 8,401 7,815
3 3,840 3,860
3 661 477
3 437 451
3 6,470 4,286
3 5,470 5,456
5 91 -
25,370 22,445
4 7,714 7,387
4 7,087 5,202
4 211 180
4 10,585 6,014
4 1,993 1,724
5 - 44
27,590 20,551
(2,220) 1,894

24
27

(2,220) 1.894

$ (7,690) &

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes,

(3,562)
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Actual Actual
2011 2010
Notes $'000 $'000
Net operating result for year (2,220) 1894
from Income Statement ! ’
Other comprehensive income
Revaiuation of infrastructure, property, plant & 2 630 269.981
equipment ’ ’
Total other comprehensive income 2,630 269,981
] 271,875

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 410

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET
as at 30th June 2011

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables

Inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

Borrowings

Provigions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Provisions

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Accumulated Surplus
Revaluation Reserves
Councif Equity Interest
TOTAL EQUITY

2011 2010
Notess  $'000 $'000
6 5,223 1,133
6 5,750 7,750
7 3,753 3,250
8 574 835
15,300 12,968
6 1,000 -
7 56 77
8 800 1,100
9 507,017 508,543
508,873 509,720
524,173 522,688
10 1,319 1,338
10 284 262
10 1,933 1,665
3,536 3,265
10 1,561 765
10 2,219 2,211
3,780 2,976
7,316 6,241
$ 516,857 516,447
20 204,674 206,894
20 312,183 309,553
516,857 516.447
$ 516,857 516,447

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30th June 2011

2011

=
.
®

Balance at end of previous reporting period

Net Operating Result for the year

Other comprehensive income )
Revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 20

Balance at end of the reporting period

2010

Balance at end of previous reporting period
Effect of correction of errors in previous years on retained

earnings
Restated opening balance

Net Operating Result for the year
Other comprehensive income

Revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 20
Total other comprehensive income

Total transactions with cowners as owners

Balance at end of the reporting period

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

Asset Counclil
2::2::;: Reval. | Equity | Total
eserve | Interest
$'000
206,894 | 309,553 | 516,447 | 516,447
(2,220) - (2,220)| (2,220)
2,630 2,630 2,630
204,674 | 312,183 | 516,857 | 516,857
. Asset Councit
Eeta!"e" Reval. | Equity | Total"
Earnings
Reserve interest
$'000
113,244 39,572 | 152,816 ] 152,816
91,756 . 91,756 | 91,756
205,000 39,572 | 244,572 | 244,572
1,894 1,894 1,894
269,981 | 269,981 | 269,981
-| 269981 | 269,981 | 269,981
206,804 | 309.553 | 516,447 | 516,447

Lt
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Budget
2011
$'000

8,348
3,720
463
10,319
510

(7,785)
(7,169)

(356)
(2,084)

5,964

993

1,100
200
20

{(8,923)

(8.610)

1,060
346

704
58

1,133
1,191

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30th June 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes

Receipts
Rates & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees
Investment Income
Grants & Contributions
Other operating receipts
Payments
Employee Benefits and oncosts
Materials & Contracts
Borrowing Costs
Other operating payments
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating

Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment

Proceeds from sale of Investment Property

Proceeds from sale of Real Estate

Repayments from Deferred Debtors
Payments

Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment

Purchase of Real Estate

Purchase of Investment Securities
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing

Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts
Proceeds from Borrowings & Advances

Payments
Repayments of Borrowings & Advances
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing
Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held

Cash Assets at beginning of reporting period
Cash Assets at end of reporting period

11

1
11

Actual Actual
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
8,193 7,724
3,425 4,192
537 966
13,066 9,813
597 952
(7,543) (7,261)
(7,520) (4,954)
{142) (91)
(2,646) (2,691)
7,967 8,650
712 835
37 -
21 21
(6,745) (9,492)
280 . -
1,000 {7,750
(4,695)  (16,586)
1,100 -
(282) (307)
818 (307)
4,090 (8,243)
1,133 9,376
5,223 1,133

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Local Government Reporting Entity

Liverpool Plains Shire Council is incorporated under the NSW Local Government Act 1993 (as
amended) and has its principal place of business at 60 Station Street, Quirindi. These financial
statements include the consolidated fund and other entities through which the Council controls
resources to carry on its functions. In the process of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all
transactions and balances between activity areas and controlled entities have been eliminated.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation

Compliance with Australian equivalents fo International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
This general purpose financiai report has been prepared in accordance with Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRSs), as they apply to not-for-profit
entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

~ Urgent Issues Group interpretations, the NSW Local Government Act 1993 and regulations
thereunder and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Accordingly in preparing this Financial Report and Accompanying Notes, Council has been unable
to comply fully with International Accounting Standards, but it has complied fully with Australian
Accounting Standards. Under the Local Government Act, Regulations and Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting, it should be noted that Councils in NSW
only have a requirement to comply with Australian Accounting Standards.

Historical cost convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financiai assets and liabilities at fair vaiue
through profit or loss, certain classes of property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain
criticai accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Council's accounting policies. .

Financial statement presentation

The Council has applied the revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements which
became effective on 1 January 2009. The revised standard requires the separate presentation of
a statement of comprehensive income and a statement of changes in equity. All non-owner
changes in equity must now be presented in the statement of comprehensive income. As a
consequence, the Council had to change the presentation of its financial statements. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it is also in conformity with the revised standard.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(b) Revenue Recognition
Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Council's activities as described below. Council bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
measured on major income categories as foliows:

Rates, annual charges, grants and confributions

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (including developer contributions) are
recognised as revenues when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts. Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the
contributions were required but the Council may apply contributions according to the priorities
established in work schedulss.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of
the rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon
receipt of the rates.

A pravision for doubtful debts on rates established on unpaid rates represent a difference
between the rateable property value and what is expected to be recovered when the propenrty is

nhext sold.

Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier
notification that a grant has been secured, and is valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.

Income is recognised when the Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive
the contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to
the Council and the amount of the contribution can be measured reliably.

Where grants, contributions and donations recognised as revenues during the financial year were
obtained on condition that they be expended in a particuiar manner or used over a particular
period and those conditions were undischarged at balance date, the unused grant, contribution
and donation in these notes as restricted assets. Also disclosed is the amount of unused grant,
contribution and donations from prior years that was expended on Council’s operations for the

current reporting period.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the
requisite service has not been provided at balance date.

User charges and fees
User charges and fees (inciuding parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the

service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penaity has been applied,
whichever first occurs.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Revenue Recognition (cont’d)
User charges and fees (cont'd)

A provision for doubtful debt is recognised when collection in full is no longer probable.

Sale of plant, property, infrastructure and equipment
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably

passed to the buyer.

Inferest and rents
Interest and rents are recognised as revenue on a proportional basis when payment is due, the

value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever first occurs,
(c) Principles of Consolidation

(i) The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the LGA 1993, all money and property
received by Council is held in the Council's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in
the Council’s Trust Fund. The consolidated fund and other entities through which the Council
controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the financial statements forming

part of this report.

The following entities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

General Purpose Operations

Quirindi Water Fund

Werris Creek Water Fund

Village Water Funds

Quirindi Sewerage Fund

Werris Creek Sewerage Fund

Blackville Hall Committee

Currabubula Hall & Reserve Committee
Warrah Creek Hall Committee

Werris Creek Sporting Complex Committee
Wallabadah Hall Committee

Werris Creek Festival Committee

Werris Creek Railway Institute Committee

The net assets held by Committees is as follows:
Total net assets (Equity) held $65,645

Note: Where actual figures are not known, best estimates have been applied
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(c) Principles of consolidation (cont’d)

(i) The Trust Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as

amended), a separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all monies and
property received by the Council in trust which must be applied only for the purposes of or in
accordance with the trusts relating to these monies. Trust monies and property subject to
Council's control have been included in these reports.

Trust monies and property held by Council but subject to the control of other persons have been
excluded from these reports. A separate statement of moneys held in the Trust Fund is available
for inspection at the Council Office by any person free of charge.

(i) Joint venture entities

Council is a partner in a regional library service - Central Northern Regional Library (CNRL) - with
six (6) other Councils. CNRL operates under a deed of agreement between the participating
Councils for the purpose of providing library services. Council has not recognised its 9.5% CNRL
Joint venture interest in this financial report, however the service has advice that the total equity is
$784,400 of which Council's total equity as at 30th June 2011 is $74,518. Council acknowledges
that non disclosure of the assets and liabilities of CNRL is a departure from AAS128 - Investments

in Associates.

vi) Additional Information
Note 19 provides more information in relation to Joint Venture Entities, Associated Entities and

Joint Venture Operations where applicable.

(d) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

(e} Acquisition of assets
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for ali acquisitions of assets. Cost is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
Council’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(f) Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

For non-cash generating assets of the Council such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like-
value in use is represented by the deprival value of the asset approximately by its written down
replacement cost.

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(h) Receivables
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
less provision for doubtful debts. Receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from

the date of recognition.

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Counci! will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective

interest rate.

(i) Inventories

() Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Inventories in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average material costs
after adjusting for any loss of service potential. Inventories have been valued at the lower of cost
or net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of compietion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale,
(ii) Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by
specific identification and includes the cost of acquisition, and development during development.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

(i} Investments and other financial assets

Council classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates
this designation at each reporting date.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading uniess they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets.

(i} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Council provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. They are included in current
assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which
are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in receivables in the
balance sheet. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

(iif) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Council's management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. If Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held -to-
maturity financial assets, the whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-
sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in noncurrent assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date, which are classified as current assets.
Held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.
Investments are designated as available-for-sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the medium iong term.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Council has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Investments and other financial assets (cont'd)

(v) Subsequent measurement | '

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of non monetary securities classified as
availabie-for-sale are recognised in equity in the available-for-sale investments revaluation
reserve. When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment

securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a
financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Council establishes fair value by using
valuation technigues. These include reference to the fair values of recent arm’s length
transactions, involving the same instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer's specific
circumstances.

(i) Impairment

Council assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. in the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit and loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement.

(ii} Policy

Council has an approved investment policy complying with Section 625 of the Local Government
Act. Investments are placed and managed in accordance with that policy and having particutar
regard to authorised investments prescribed under the Local Government Investment Order.
Council maintains an investment policy that complies with the Act and ensures that it or its
representatives exercise care, diligence and skill that a prudent person would exercise in

investing Council funds.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Fair value estimation ,

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes. The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. Council uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is availabie to the Council for similar financial instruments.

() Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Council's assets are being progressively revalued to fair value in accordance with a staged
implementation advised by the Division of L.ocal Government. At balance date the following
classes of IPPE were stated at their fair value;

* investment Properties,

» Water and Sewerage Networks which are carried at Fair Value (generally based upon
Depreciated Replacement Cost).

Operational Land (External Valuation)

Buildings - Specialised/Non Specialised (External Valuation)

Plant and Equipment {as approximated by depreciated historical cost)

Road assets - roads, bridges and footpaths (Internal Valuation)

Drainage assets — (Internal Valuation)

Bulk earthworks — (Internal Valuation)

Community Land (VG Valuation), Land Improvements, Other Structures and Other Assets
— (as approximated by depreciated historical cost).

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the assets revaluation
reserve. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss,
the increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decrease that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first charged against revaluation reserves directly in equity to the extent of the
remaining reserve attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to the income
statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

() Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed annually between full revaluations in
accordance with the latest indices provided in the DWE Rates Reference Manual.

Roads, Bridges, Footpaths and Drainage assets have been revalued within the 2009/10 Annual

Financial Statements.

For ali other assets, Council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that

a revalued asset's carrying amount may differ materially from that which would be determined if
the asset were revalued at the reporting date. If any such indication exists, Council determines the-
asset's fair value and revalues the asset to that amount. Full revaluations are undertaken for all

assets on a 5 year cycle,

Until these designated future reporting periods, the above remaining asset classes are stated at
cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated.

The fair values of water and sewer assets have been calculated using a depreciated method that
reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed.
For each class of water and sewer asset a prediction model (depreciation curve) was derived to
best indicate how the asset was consumed over its useful life. Generally, each class of asset has
an expected life and the way this asset decays throughout its lifecycle has been used to provide
an estimate of its depreciation or its current depreciated value.

The depreciation curves for each asset class have been modified to better reflect the asset's
economic life and assist with the identification of times when real replacement/ augmentation
options are likely to ensue. Assets, in providing their function to the community, would not be fully
consumed, but rather be augmented or replaced at some economic point in time to maintain a
level of service that meets Liverpool Plains Shire Council’s charter.

The prediction models provide a much better approach to calculating the fair value as opposed to
the ‘straight line’ depreciation method

Some asset classes do include components that may have very different lifecycles. For example,
pumping stations have civil components that may last up to 70 years while their mechanical and
electrical counterparts may have a shorter life of 20 years. Parts of these asset classes have been
depreciated at different rates to best reflect their fair value.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net

of their residual vaiues, over their estimated useful lives. Major asset depreciation periods and
capitalisation thresholds are shown in the table below.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(I} Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

& Fittings, Leased Plant & Equipment

Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture

Depreciation Period

Capitalisation
Threshold

Office Equipment 510 10 years 1,000
Office Furniture 10 to 20 years 1,000
Computer Equipment 3 to 5 years 1,000
Vehicles & Road-Making Eguipment 5 to 8 years 1,000
Other Plant & Equipment 5to 15 years 1,000
Buildings Depreciation Period | Capitalisation
Threshold
Buildings -~ Masonry 50 to 100 years 10,000
Buildings - Other Construction 20 to 40 years 10,000
Land Improvements, Other Structures & Depreciation Period | Capitalisation
Infrastructure Threshold
Park Structures - Masonry 50 to 100 years 1,000
Park Structures - Other Construction 20 to 40 years 1,000
Playground Equipment 5 to 15 years 1,000
Benches, Seats, etc 10 to 20 years 1,000
Water, Sewer and Stormwater Drainage Depreciation Period Capitalisation
Infrastructure Threshold
Dams & Reservoirs 80 to 100 years 1,000
Bores 20 to 40 years 1,000
Reticulation Pipes - PVC 70 to 80 years 1,000
Reticulation Pipes - Other 25 to 100 years 1,000
Culverts 50 to 80 years 1,000
Pumps & Telemetry 15 to 20 years 1,000
Transportation Assets Depreciation Period Capitalisation
Threshold
Sealed Roads - Surface 20 to 50 years 10,000
Sealed Roads - Structure 30 to 60 years 10,000
Unsealed Roads 20 to 65 years 10,000
Bridges - Concrete 60 to 100 years 10,000
Bulk Earthworks Infinite

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
halance sheet date. An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.

These are included in the income statement,
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m} Land under roads
Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance

with the deferral arrangements available under AASB 1051.

(n) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Council prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usuaily paid within 30

days of recognition,

(o) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(p} Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

{q) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are recognised when: the Council has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events: it is more likely than not that an outfiow
of resources will be required to settie the obligation: and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likefihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

(r} Employee benefits _

Liabilities for wages and salaries and compensated absences expected to be paid or settled
within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based
oncosts) measured in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits. Liabilities for employee
benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured s the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave
taken in each reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this
experience is expected to recur in future reporting periods. Council does not make payment for
untaken sick leave.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{r) Employee benefits (cont’'d)

(i} Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are
recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employees’ services up to the
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognized when the leave is taken and
measured at the rates paid or payable.

(i) Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields
at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that
match as closely as possibie, the estimated future cash outflows. Where Council does not have
the unconditional right to defer settiement beyond 12 months, the liability is recognised as a
current liability.

(iii) Retirerment benefit obligations and Superannuation
The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the
Local Government Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of

which is funded differently.

Accumulation Fund Members

The accumulation fund receives both employer and employee contributions on a progressive
basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in
accordance with Superannuation Guarantee Legislation (9% in 2009/10). No further liability
accrues to the employer as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented
by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Defined Benefit Members

Council makes employer contributions to the defined benefits categories of the Scheme at rates
determined by the Scheme's Trustee. The rate is currently 1.9 times members' contributions plus
2.5% of gross salary (3.8 times members' contributions in 2009/10). Employees also make
member contributions to the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Fund to meet the member's
benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Fund's Defined Benefit Plan is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets and
liabiiities are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate henefit
liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does
not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(r} Employee henefits (cont’d)
Defined Benefit Members (cont'd)

The Trustees have advised that, as a result of the global financial crisis, an unrealised deficiency
of assets over liabilities of some $286 million exists at 30 June 2010 in relation to all Councils
involved in the Fund. The Trustees have also required additional contributions to negate this
deficiency (ie $83,522 for 2011/12).

(s} Construction Contracts

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties (principally the Roads & Traffic
Autharity for works on national and state highways) are generally on an agency basis where the
third party reimburses Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the
reporting period. As there is no profit component, such works are treated as 100% completed.
Reimbursements not received are recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in
advance are recognised as “payments received in advance”.

(ty Provisions for close down and restoration and for environmental cfean up costs ~ Tips
and Quarries

Close down and resforation costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the
removal of residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and
restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the operation
phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. Provisions for close down and
restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from future
disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are
calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments, eg updated
cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of operations, and are subject to formal review
at regular intervals.

Close down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the
majority of close down and restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the
operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, Council estimates the
respective costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards
and technigues.

The amortisation or ‘unwinding’ of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of
provisions is charged to the income statement in each accounting period. The amortisation of the
discount is shown as a borrowing cost.

Other movements in the provisions for close down and restoration costs, including those resulting
from new disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations and
revisions to discount rates are capitalised within property, plant and equipment. These costs are
then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES

{t) Provisions for close down and restoration and for environmental clean up costs — Tips
and Quarries (cont’d}

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the
time of closure, provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at
each balance sheet date and the cost is charged to the income statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean up
obligations outstanding at the balance sheet date. These costs are charged to the income
statement. Movements in the environmental clean up provisions are presented as an operating
cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost. Remediation
procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process and
estimated remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the
nature of the disturbance and the remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates
can vary in response to many factors including changes fo the relevant legal requirements, the
emergence of new restoration techniques or experience at other locations. The expected timing of
expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves or
production rates. As a resutlt there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down
and restoration and environmental clean up, which would affect future financial results.

{u) Allocation between current and non-current

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is
given to the time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled. The asset or liability is
classified as current if it is expected to be settled within the next 12 meonths, being the Council's
operational cycle. In the case of liabilities where Council does not have the unconditional right to
defer settlement beyond 12 months, such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as
current evenif not expected to be settled within the next 12 months. inventories held for trading
are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 months,
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v} Pending Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatery for the 30 June 2011 reporting period.
» AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards
AASB 3 Business Combinations
AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
AASB 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures
AASE 8 Operating Segments
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements
AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows
AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
AASB 110 Events after the Reporting Period
AASE 118 Revenue
AASB 119 Employee Benefits
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation
AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
AASE 140 Investment Property
AASB 1031 Materiality
AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
[AASB 1, 3,4, 5,7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Interpretations 10 & 12]
e AASB 2009-12 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASBs 5, 8, 108, 110,
112, 119, 133, 137, 1023 & 1032 and Interpretaticns 2, 4, 16, 1039 &1052]
s AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Annual Improvements Project [AASBs 3. 7, 121, 128, 131, 132 & 139]
« AASB 2010-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASBs 1, 3, 4, 5, 101,
107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]
e AASB 2010-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASBs 1 & 7]
AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASE 9
[AASBs 1, 3,4, 5,7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137,
139, 1023, & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19, & 127}
s Interpretation 14 AASB 119 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction
(Standards not affecting local government have been excluded from the above list.)

Council is of the view that none of the above new standards or interpretations will affect any of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements, but that they may impact certain information
otherwise disclosed.

The Australian Accounting Standards Board is currently reviewing AASB 1004 Contributions. It is
anticipated that the changes resulting from this review may have a material effect on the timing of
the recognition of grants and contributions, but the financial consequences cannot be estimated
until a revised accounting standard is issued.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(w) Land
Land is classified as either operational or community in accordance with Part 2 of Chapter 6 of the
Local Government Act (1983). This is disclosed in Note 9(a).

(x) Crown reserves
Crown reserves under Council care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While

ownership of the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the
reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific
purposes to which the reserves are dedicated. Improvements on Crown Reserves are also
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues relating the
reserves are recognised within Councils Income Statement. A working party of interested
representatives from both State and local Government is being formed to consider the accounting
issues related tom the crown reserves, with the intention of developing a consistent approach tom
their recognition and future accounting treatment across both tiers of government.

(x) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount associated GST, unless the
GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In the case it is recognized as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivabiles and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the balance sheef.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority,
are presented as operating cash flows.

{y) Rural Fire Service Assets

Under section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997, all the fire fighting equipment purchased
or constructed wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the Counci! of the
area for and on behalf of which the fire fighting equipment has been purchased or constructed.
Until such time as discussions on this matter have concluded and the legislation changed,
Councils will continue to account for these assets as they have been doing in previous years.

(z) Rounding of amounts

Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand dollars.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note 2 (cont) - COMPONENTS OF FUNCTIONS

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Governance
Costs relating to Council's role as a component of democratic government, including elections, meetings and

associated activities, area representation, and public disclosure and compiiance, fogether with related
administration costs.

Administration
Costs not otherwise attributed to functions.

Public Order & Safety
Fire protection, animal control, enforcement of local government regulations, emergency services, other.

Heaith
Administration and inspection, immunisations, food control, insect & vermin control, noxious plants, health

centres, other,

Envircnment, Community Services & Education
Administration, family day care, child-care, youth services, other services to families and children, aged and
disabled, migrant services, Aboriginal services, other community services, education.

Housing & Community Amenities
Housing, town planning, domestic waste management services, other waste management services, sireet
cleaning, other sanitation and garbage, urban stormwater drainage, environmental protection, public

cemeteries, public conveniences, other community amenities.

Water Supplies

Sewerage Services

Recreation & Culture
Public libraries, museums, art galleries, community centres, public halls, other cultural services, swimming
pools, sporting grounds, parks and gardens, lakes, ather sport and recreation.

Fuel & Energy - Gas Supplies.

Mining, Manufacturing-& Construction
Building control, abattoirs, gquarries and pits, other.

Transport & Communication
Roads and streets, bridges, footpaths, aerodromes, parking areas, bus shelters and services, water transport,

works undertaken for Roads & Transport Autherity, street lighting, other.

Economic Affairs
Camping areas, caravan parks, tourism and area promotion, industrial development promotion, saleyards and

markets, real estate development, commercial nurseries, private works, other business undertakings.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 3 - INCOME

RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES 2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Ordinary Rates
Residential 1,495 1,456
Farmland 3,361 3,272
Mining 224 201
Business 380 371
5,460 5,300
Annual Charges
Domestic Waste Management 627 600
Water Supply : 1,105 764 .
Sewerage Services ‘ 752 704
Other Waste Management 457 447
2,941 2,515
Total Rates & Annual Charges 8,401 7,815
USER CHARGES & FEES
User Charges
Water Supply 631 899
Other Waste Management 20 20
651 919
Fees
Private Works 153 684
RTA Claims - State Roads 1,457 508
Child Care 203 272
Planning & Building - regulatory 128 120
Cemeteries : 129 105
Leaseback Vehicles : 47 47
Community Services 43 96
Sporting & Recreation 114 120
Corporate 42 86
Septic Tanks 2 5
Sewer Connections 1 3
Water Connections 10 5
Halls 14 28
Swimming Centre 47 61
Rent & Hire of Council Property 221 211
Quarry & Pits ' 565 576
Building Services : 13 -
Other - 24
3,188 3,041
Total User Charges & Fees 3,840 3,960
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 3 - REVENUES (cont)

201 2010

$'000 $'000
INVESTMENT REVENLUES
Interest receivable
- overdue rates & charges 78 67
- cash & investments 583 410
Gross Investment Revenues 661 477
Total Investment Revenues 661 477
OTHER REVENUES
Theatre Sponsorship 5 -
QOther fines 10 21
Recycling Income (Non domestic) - 4
Insurance Discount 73 28
Insurance Claims 69 7
Legail Fees Recovery (rates) : 23 43
Commissions & Agency Fees 123 125
Miscellaneous sales 132 222
Other 2 1
Total Other Revenues 437 451
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 3 - INCOME (cont)

OPERATING CAPITAL
Notes 2011 2010 2011 2010
GRANTS $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance 1,087 1,174 - -
Individually significant item see
- additional Grants Commission payment below 756 464 ) )
Pensioner Rates Subsidies (General} 69 67
Specific Purpose
Pensicner Rates Subsidies
Water Supplies 34 34 - -
Sewerage Services 27 26 - -
Domestic \Waste Management 4 40 - -
Water Supplies 263 - 1,344 731
Planning 49 - - -
Street Lighting 20 18 - -
Roads & Bridges 1,806 1,234 2,840 2,750
Employment & Training Programs 13 3 - -
Recreation, Heritage & Cultural Services 38 41 97 430
Community Care Services 183 219 104 155
Housing & Amenities 1,014 49 550 550
Bushfire & Emergency Services 430 314 325 377
Noxious Plants 89 73 - -
Economic 25 - - -
Total Grants & Subsidies 5,924 3,757 5,260 4993
Comprising:
- Commonwealth funding 4,819 2,756 1,075 1,057
- State funding 1,105 1,001 4,185 3,036
5,924 3,757 5,260 4,993

Individually significant item

Cn 26 June 2010, Council received payment of the first quarfer

instafment of the 2010/11 Grant Commission (FAG) grant 756 464
Simifarly, on 28 June 2011Council received payment of the first

instalment of the 2011712 grant. It is nof known when the timing of

these grant payments will return to normal schedule, but this will

materially adversely affect Council's operafing results as these

amnnnfe ara rarnnnican ac innnma tinnn raraint

CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS
Developer Contributions

Section 94 17 - ¢] 21 20

Section 94A levies 17 - - 51 -
Section 64 .

Water 17 - - Al 2

Sewer 17 - - 3 2
Roads, Bridges & Other Communication 40 27 32 155
Community Care Services 17 246 169 - 2
Housing & Amenities 11 246 268 - -
Bushfire & Emergency Services 4 46 - .
Recreation & Cultural 3 - 32 264
Kerb & Gutter - - - 18
Other Councils - Joint Works " 7 - -
Other 7 5] - -
Total Contributions & Donations 546 529 210 463
TOTAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 6,470 4286 5,470 5,456
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 3 - INCOME {cont)

CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended for specified purposes or in
a future period, but which are not yet expended In accordance with those conditions, are as foilows:

2011 2010
$'000 $'o00
Granfs contrib Grants Confrib
Unexpended af the close of the
previous reporting period 1,475 777 1,374 702
Less: expended during the current period from revenues
recoghised in previous reporting periods
Section 94/64 Developer Confributions 0 0 ¢ 30
Other 1,413 504 4] 0
Subtotal 1,413 504 1] 30
Plus: amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period-
but not yet expended in accordance with the condifions
Section 94/64 Developer Contributions /) 168 0 39
Roads Infrasfructure 169 (1] 101 66
Other 1,358 (1] 0 0
Subtotal 1,524 168 101 105
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period and held as
restricted assefs 1,586 441 1,475 777
Net increase (decrease) in restricted assels in the current 111 -336 101 75

OPERATING LEASES providing revenue to the Councii

Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for hire or lease (on a non-cancellable
basis whereever practicable) in accerdance with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases

are disclosed as rent and hire of non-investment property above.

Investment Property

Rentals received, and outgoings reimbursed, in relation to fnvestment Property are also included above. These
lease agreements, all of which are classified as operating leases, are made on a non-cancellable basis wherever

practicable.

Lessees commitments under all non-cancellable lease agreements, including those relating to Investment

nraonertv. are as follows:
201
$000
0.0

2010

$'000

0.0
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 4 - EXPENSES

2011 2010
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND ONCOSTS $'000 $'000
Salaries and Wages 6,659 6,287
Travelling 389 394
Employee Leave Entitlements 187 138
Superannuation - defined contribution plan coniributions 447 408
Superannuation - defined benefit plan contributions 342 274
Workers' Compensation Insurance 327 351
Fringe Benefits Tax _ 19 17
Training Costs (excluding Salaries) 77 96
Other 143 194
Less: Capitalised and distributed costs (B76) (772)
Total Operating Employee Costs 7,714 7,387
Total Number of Employees 131 131
{Fuil time equivalent af end of reporting period)

BORROWING COSTS
Interest on Loans 122 80
Interest on Advances - 1
Unwinding of present value discounts & premiums 89 89
Gross Interest Charges 211 180
Less: Borrowing Costs capitalised - -
Total Interest Charges 211 180
MATERIALS & CONTRACTS
Raw materials & consumables 6,618 4254
Contractor and consultancy costs 385 605
Auditor's Remuneration

- Audit Services 34 22
Legal Expenses

- Planning & Development 2 28

- Other Legal Expenses 48 56
Operating Leases
Other - 237
Total Materials & Contracts 7,087 5202
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011

2010
$'000

1,01
107
28

51
406
21

3,158

34
671
341

106

54
122
96
6,014

18
77
38
303
94
277
165

376

Note 4 - EXPENSES (cont) 2011
$'000

DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION
Plant and Equipment 1,012
Office Equipment 103
Furniture & Fittings 32
Land Improvements a7
Buildings - non-specialised 424
Other Structures 38
Infrastructure
- roads, bridges & footpaths 7,642
- bulk earthworks -
- stormwater drainage 21
- water supply network not elsewhere included 605
- sewerage network not elsewhere included 422
Other assets
- cther 103
Future Reinstatement Costs
- Tips 53
- Quarries 97
Less: Capitaiised and distributed costs (204)
Total Depreciation & Amortisation 10,585
OTHER EXPENSES

. Bad and Doubtful Debts 27
Mayoral fee 19
Councillors' Fees & Allowances 70
Councillors' {incl. Mayor) Expenses 59
Insurances 264
Street Lighting 96
Light, Power & Heating 300
Telephone & Communications 156
Donations & Contributions to Local & Regional Bodies 64
Advertising 60
Bank Charges 4
Water Expenses -
Payments to Other Levels of Government 433
Subscriptions & Publications 78
Printing & Stationary 39
Promotions 60
Security Services 9
Carbon Project Contribution 115
Insured Itemn Writeoffs 54
Rents ‘ 11
Sundry Office Expenses 47
Valuation Fees . 28
Total Other Expenses 1,993
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 5 - GAIN OR LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

2011
$'000
DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY
Proceeds from disposal 220
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 210
Gain (Loss) on disposal 10
DISPOSAL OF INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Proceeds from disposal 492
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 426
Gain (Loss) on disposal 66
DISPOSAL OF REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT ASSETS
Proceeds from disposal 37
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 22
Gain (Loss) on disposal 16
TOTAL GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL ‘
OF ASSETS 91

2010
$'000

635
679
(44)

(44)
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 6 - CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
CASH ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank 5,223 1,133
Total Cash Assets 5,223 1,133

Cash Assels comprise shorl-term, highly liquid investments readily converiible to known amounts of
cash that are subject to insignificant risk of changes of value,

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Summary

Held to maturity investments 5,750 1,000 7,750 -

Total ‘ 5,750 1,000 7,750 -

Held to Maturity Investments

At beginning of year 7,760 - - -

Disposals {1,000) - - -

Transfers Current/Non-current {1,000) 1,000 7,750 -

At end of year 5,750 1,000 7,750 -

Comprising:

- Term Deposits 5,750 1,000 7,750 -
5,750 1,000 7,750 -
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 6 - CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES (cont)

RESTRICTED CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets 5,223 1,133
Investment Securities 5,750 1,000 7,750 -
TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENT
SECURITIES 10,973 1,000 8,883 -
External Restrictions 7.357 - 4,539 -
Internal Restrictions 3,608 1,000 4,336 -
Unrestricted 8 - 8 -
10,973 1,000 8,683 -
DETAILS OF MOVEMENTS OF
RESTRICTED CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Opening Movements Closing
Balance 30 Transfers To |Transfers Fromj Balance 30
Notes June 2010 Restriction Restriction June 2011
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000
External Restrictions
Included in liabilities
Unexpended Loans 373 - 373
- 373 - 373
Other
Developer Contributions 17 273 169 - 442
RTA Contributions 653 - 653 -
Unexpended Grants 588 759 (239) 1,686
Water Supply funds 702 1,510 - 2,212
Sewerage funds 2,323 421 - 2,744
_ 4,539 2,859 414 6,984
Total External Restrictions 4,539 3,232 414 7,357

External Restrictions arise pursuant to section 409(3) of the Local Government Act, the Local Government
{General} Reguiation 2005 and other applicable legistation. Further information relating to Developer
Contributions is provided in Note 17 and Unexpended Grants in Mote 3. Amounts raised by special rates

(eg. Water & Sewer) and cerfain annual charges may only be used for those purposes.

Internal Restrictions

Employee Leave Entitlements 580 80 - 660
Plant replacement - 68 - 68
Office Equipment 119 3 - 122
Construction of Buildings 798 302 - 1,100
Environmental 803 - 11 792
Transport & Road Infrastructure 975 107 241 841
Economic Development & Tourism 271 - 188 83
Other 790 1562 - 942
Total Internal Restrictions 4,336 712 440 4,608

Internal Restrictions arise pursuant fo resolutions of Council to set aside reserves of cash resotirces either
relating fo liabilities recognised in these reports or fo fund future expenditure for the stated purpose.
Such reserves are not permitted to excesd the amounts of cash assets and cash investments not

otherwise restricted.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 7 - RECEIVABLES

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Rates & Annual Charges 761 - 853 -
Interest & Extra Charges 177 - 147 -
User Charges & Fees 1,532 - 849 -
Accrued Revenues 124 - 30 -
Deferred Debtors 20 56 20 77
Other levels of Government 1,176 - 1,664 -
Other 6 L 4 -
Total 3,796 56 3,267 7T

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Rates & Annual Charges 43 - 17 -
3,753 56 3,250 77

Rates, Annual Charges, Interest & Extra Charges

Overdue rates and annual charges (being amounts not paid on or before the due dafe determined in
. accordance with the Local Government Act) are secured over the refevant land and are subject to simple
interest at a rate of 9.00% (2010: 8.00%). Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual
ratepayer, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the Council boundaries in the State of New South

Wales.

Other levels of Government

Amounts due have been cafculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective
programs following advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. Al amounts are due by Departments
and Agencies of the Government of New South Wales and the Government of Australia.

Other Receivables
Amounts due (other than User Charges which are secured over the relevant land) are unsecured and do

not bear interest. Afthough Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure
is concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State of New South Wales.

AGGREGATE ASSET ARISING FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

0 0 0 0
RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES

Water Supply 701 - 625 -
Sewerage Services 154 - 113 -
Domestic Waste Management 187 - 112 -
Total Restrictions 1,012 - 850 -
Unrestricted Receivables 2,741 56 2,400 77
Total Receivables 3,753 56 3,250 77
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 8 - INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current  Non-Current Current Nen-Current

INVENTORIES
Stores & Materials 200 - 459 -
Real Estate Developments 374 800 376 1,100
Total Inventories 574 800 835 1,100
Inventories not expected fo be realised
within the next 12 months. 0 800 0 1.100
Real Estate Developmenis
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)
Residential 107 800 87 1,100
Industrial & Commercial 267 - 289 -
Total Real Estate for Resale 374 800 376 1,100
Represented by:
Acquisition Costs 265 800 260 1,100
Development Costs 109 - 116 -
Total Real Estate for Resale 374 800 376 1,100
RESTRICTIONS EXIST IN RESPECT OF THE FOLLOWING:
Other Assets

Water Supplies 20 20 20 40

20 20 20 40
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 9 (cont) - RESTRICTED PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

201 2010
$000 $'000
AT AT AGCUM CARRYING AT AT ACCUM CARRYING
COST VALUATION DEPN AMOUNT COST VALUATION DEPN AMOUNT

Water Supply
Plant & Equipment 77 5,260 1,891 3,446 - 5,097 1,710 3,387 .
Office Equipment 166 - 107 69 - 160 23 67
Land

- Operational 97 268 - 265 97 268 - 365
Buildings - 1,144 181 963 - 1,144 167 977
Water Supply Infrastructure 487 42,479 19,366 23,600 21 41,140 18,293 22,868
Total Water Supply 827 49,151 21,545 28,433 118 47,808 20,263 27,664
Sewerage Services
Piant & Equipment 21 1,891 1,027 88s - 1,730 893 837
Land ’

- Operational - 299 299 - 299 - 299
Buildings - 77 13 64 - 123 16 107
Qther Structures - - - - 187 11,568 7,437 4,275
Sewerage Infrastructure 27 26,491 16,945 9,573 338 13,673 8,658 5,363
Total Sewerage Services 48 28,758 17,985 10,821 495 27,380 17,004 10,871
Domestic Waste Management
Plant & Equipment . - 62 33 29 - 62 29 33
Office Equipment 6 - 5 1 - 6 5 1
Land

- Operational - 685 - 685 - 685 - 685
Land Improvements - depreciab 573 - 402 171 573 - 393 180
Buildings 12 219 42 189 15 218 52 182
COther Structures 139 - 23 116 113 - 23 90

- Qther 104 - 41 63 104 - 32 72
Tip Other Assets 843 - 399 444 6§52 - 346 -.308
Total Domestic Waste 1,677 966 845 1,688 1,457 972 880 1,549
Stormwater Drainage
Other Structures 1,525 13,140 2,064 12,601 - 13,140 1,899 11,241

- Other/ Kerb & Guitering 83 3,043 461 2,665 - 3,044 416 2,628
Total Stormwater Drainage 1,608 16,183 2,625 15,266 - 16,184 2,315 13,868
TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 4,160 95,058 43,000 56,218 2,070 | 92,345 | 40,462 53,853
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PAYABLES

Goods & Services
Accrued expenses - other
Total Payables

Current payables not expected fo
be settled within the next 12
months.

BORROWINGS

Loans

- Secured
Government Advances
Total Borrowings

All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future revenues of the Council.

PROVISIONS

Employee benefits - annual leave
- sick leave
- long service leave
- oncosts

Reinstatement, Remediation, etc.
(see also Note 21)
Total Provisions

Current provisions not expected fo
be seftied within the next 1
months. :

Movements in Provisions

Opening Balance

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 10 - LIABILITIES
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current Nen-Current Current Non-Current
1,045 - 1,044 -
274 - 294 -
1,319 - 1,338 -
1] 0
282 1,561 262 765
2 - - -
284 1,561 262 765
680 - 614 .
12 - 10 -
952 194 774 264
200 11 178 22
89 2,014 89 1,825
1,933 2,219 1,665 2,211
1069 923
Employee Self Reinstate-

Benefits Insurance ment, eic. Other
2011 2011 2011 2011
$'000 $'006 $'000 $'000

1,862 2,014 .
Add Additional amounts recognised 868 - -
Unwinding of present value discounts .- 89 -
(Less) Payments (681} -
2,049 2,103

Closing Balance
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

NOTE 10 - LIABILITIES {cont)

Provision for Reinstatement, rehabilitation & restoration liabilities

Council is raquired by law to reinstate/ rehabilitate the areas of certain tips and quarries for roadmaking materials
when it ceases to use each facility. Engineering estimates have been made based on current reinstatement
standards and discounted to its present value over the estimated remaining life of each facility at the rates
applicable to government securities.

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current  Non-Current

AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1,844 205 1,576 286

LIABILITIES relating to RESTRICTED ASSETS
Domestic Waste Management

Provisions 39 588 39 848
Subtotal 39 388 39 848

Water Supplies

Payables - - 2 -

Interest Bearing Liabilities 83 12 98 95
Subtotal 83 12 100 95
TOTAL 122 800 139 943
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 11 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known
amounts of cash that are subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to
the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Total Cash Assets {Note 6) 5,223 1,133

Less: Bank Overdraft  (Note 10) - -

Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 5,223 1,133
(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash

from Operating Activities

Net Operating Result from Income Statement {(2,220) 1,894

Add: Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 10,585 6,014

Unwinding of present value discounts & premiums 105 102

Increase in provision for doubtful debts 26 -

Increase in employee benefits provisions 171 126

Decrease in receivables - 153

Decrease in inventories 259 172

Increase in trade creditors & other accruals - 583

Loss on Sale of Assets - 44

B,926 9,088

Less: Decrease in provision for doubtful debts - 5

Increase in receivables 529 -

Decrease in trade creditors & cther accruals 19 -

Gain on Sale of Assets 91 -

Non-cash Capital Grants and Contributions 320 433

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 7,967 8,650
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 11 (cont) - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
{c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
Acquisition of assets by means of:
- Bushfire Grants 320 433
320 433

(d} Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:

Bank Overdrafts
Total Facilities 150 150
Corporate Credit Cards : 29 29

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice. Interest rates on overdrafts are variable while the rates for loans

are fixed for the period of the loan.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a)

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

for the year ended 30th June 2011
Note 12 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

201
$'000
Capital Commitments

2010
$'000

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in the
financial statements as liabilities:

Bridges 214 -

Water Infrastructure - Dam Upgrade 1,400 -
1,614 -

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 214 -

Later than one year and not later than 5 years 1,400 -
1,614 -

Commitments for Capital Expenditures relating to Joint Ventures and Partnerships. are sef
out in Note 19,

(b)

Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Audit Services 99 6
Waste Management Services 3,453 2,548
3,652 2,554

These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 412 8
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 1,749 1,105
Later than b years 1,391 1,443
: 3,552 2,554

Commitments for other Expenditures relating to Joint Ventures and Partnerships are set out
in Note 19.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 12 {CONT) - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
(c) Operating Lease Commitments {Non-Cancellable)

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows:

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments

Not later than one year 14 14
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 13 27
27 41

Council has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for various items of
computer and other plant and equipment.

No lease imposes any additional restrictions on Council in relation to additional debt
or further leasing.

Leases in relation to computer and office equipment permit Council, at expiry of the
lease, to elect to re-lease, return or acquire the equipment leased.

No lease contains any escalation clause.

(d} Remuneration Commitments
Commitments for the payment of salaries and other

remuneration under long-term employment contracts in
existence at reporting date but not recognised as
liabilities. pavable;

Not later than ane year 764 735
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 1,242 2,064
2,006 2,799
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 13 - STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

INDICATORS - CONSOLIDATED

Amounis
Unrestricted Current Ratio
Unrestricted Current Assets* $6,911
Current Liabilities not relating to Restricted Assets $2,345
Debt Service Ratio
Net Debt Service Cost* $383
Operating Revenue® $15,322
Rate & Annual Charges
Coverage Ratio
Rates & Annual Charges Revenues $8.401
Revenue from continuing operations $25,370
Rates & Annual Charges
Qutstanding Percentage
Rates & Annual Charges Quistanding $895
Rates & Annual Charges Collectible $9,182
Building & Infrastructure
Renewals Ratio
Asset renewals™ $2.249
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment $9,304

2011

Indicators

2.95:1

0.02:1

0.33:1

9.77%

0.24:1

INDICATORS - BY FUND

Unrestricted Current Ratio
Unrestricted Current Assets*
Current Liabilities not relating to Restricted Assets

Debt Service Ratio
Net Debt Service Cost*
Operating Revenue®

Rate & Annual Charges
Coverage Ratio

Rates & Annual Charges Revenues
Revenue from continuing operations

Rates & Annual Charges

Qutstanding Percentadae
Rates & Annual Charges Qutstanding

Rates & Annual Charges Collectible

Building & Infrastructure
Renewals Ratio

Asset renewals®
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment

2010

3.43:1

0.03:1

0.35:1

8.09%

1.2:1

2009

5.92:1

0.02:1

0.3:1

7.79%

0.38:1

Current Year Indicators

General

0.46:1

0.02:1

0.28:1

2.93%

0.26:1

*  Detailed methods of calculation of these indicators is defined in the Code.

Water

35.34:1

0.06:1

0.5:1

40.07%

0.04:1

Sewer

0.00%

0:1

0.84:1

0.00%

0.07:1
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 14 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Council does not have any investment properties for 2010 or 2011
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
All financial instruments are denominated in Australian dollars, and hence currency risk does not apply.

Financial risk management is carried out by Finance section in accordance with policies approved by Council and in
accordance with statutory requirements, and seeks to maximise revenue while protecting the corpus of the funds invested.

Council held the following financial instruments at balance date:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2011 2010 2011 2010
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financiaf Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,223 1,133 5,223 1,133
Receivables 3,809 3,327 3,809 3,327
Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss : - - - -
Held-to-maturity investments 6,750 7,750 6,750 7,750
Availaible-for-sale financial assets - - - -
15,782 12,210 15,782 12,210
Financial Liabilities
Payables 1,319 1,338 1,319 1,338
Borrowings 1,845 1,027 1,845 1,027
3,164 2,365 3,164 2,365
Fair value is estimated as follows:
* Cash & equivalents, receivables & payables - due to the short-term nature, face value (carrying value} approximates
fair value.
* Held-to-maturity investments and borrowings - due to the nature, face value (carrying value) approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments ‘

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

The investment portfolio Is managed in accordance with Council's policy (which complies with the Local Government Act &
Regulations), and the Minister's Order. The investment policy is reviewed regularly, and a report in accordance with section
625 of the Act provided to Council monthly,

The investment portfolio is managed so as to provide adequate liquidity at all times, particularly during the periods between
the quarterly receipt of rates instalments and grants. In addition, Council has access to overdraft facilities set out in Note 12,

The remainder of Council's investment portfolio consists of deposits at fixed and variable interest rates, generally for periods
of less than 120 days. Whilst these are subject to interest rate risk, this is minimised by the short term of the financial assets

held__
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont}

Interest Sensitivity Analysis : : 2011 2010
$'000 $'000

impact of a 1% change in interest rates on cash & investments

- Equity 119 89

- Income Statement 119 89

Receivables

Credit risk on receivables for rates, annual charges and service charges made under section 502 is minimised as these are
secured over the subject land. The security extends to interest levied for late payment.

Other receivables are subject to a range of credit risk minimisation procedures as appropriate, varying from credit checks to
specific security pledges. Council is not materlally exposed to any Individual debtor, and credit risk exposure is concenirated
within the Council boundaries in the State of New South Wales. There are no material receivables that have been subject to

re-negotiation of repayment terms.
Council receives regular summary reports of receivables due, and detailed reports where appropriate.

At reporting date, all amounts receivable were reviewed, and adequate allowance made for amounts considered doubtful.

201 2010
‘ $'000 $'000
Percentage of Rates & Annual Charges
- Current
- Qverdue 100% 100%
Payables
Borrowings

Payables and borrowings are subject to liquidity risk - the rigk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment
obligations as they fall due. The investment portfolio is managed so as to provide adequate liquidity at all imes, particularly
during the periods between the quarterly receipt of rates instalments and grants. In addition, Council has access to overdraft

facilities set out in Note 12.

Liquidity Sensitivity Tahle
The contractual undiscounted cash flows of Gouncil's payables and borrowings are shown below:
2011 Due Total .
Contractual Carrying .
Value
‘000 <tyear 2-5years >S5ycars CashFlows i
Payables 1,319 - - 1,319 1,319
Borrowings 284 898 663 1,845 1,845
1,603 898 663 3,164 3,164
2010 Due Total .
Contractual C\a};?:;g
'‘000 <1year 2-S5years >5years Cash Flows
Payables 1,338 - - 1,338 1,338
Borrowings 262 766 - 1,027 1,027
1,600 765 - 2,365 2,365
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for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont)
Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that changes in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs.

Council manages this risk by generally borrowing long term, commonly at rates fixed for the duration of the loan. Bank
overdraft and lass than 10% of borrowings are at variable rates; the associated interest rate risk is not considered material.

The following interest rates were applicable to Council's barrowings at balance date:

2011 2010
Balance Balance
Qverdraft - -
Loans - fixed interest rate 1,305 1,027
Loans - variable interest rate 540 -
1,845 1,027
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Note 16 - SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS FROM ORIGINAL BUDGET

Council's original budget comprised part of the Management Plan adopted by Council on 23™ June
2010. The original projections on which the budget was based have been affected by decisions and new
grant programs initiated by State and Federal Governments, by the weather, and by decisions made by

the Council.
This Note sets out the principal variations between the original Budget and Actual results for the

Income Statement. These variations do not take into account any re-votes from the previous year or any
adjustments made through Council's quarterly budget reviews.

Further information of the nature and amount of ali variations is available from the Council office upon
request.

INCOME STATEMENT

1 Investment Revenues - Variation favourable — 42.8% $198,000

An increase in interest rates coupled with increased invested funds has resulted in additional investment
revenue.

2  Other Revenues - Variation unfavourable — 14.3% $73,000

The actual other revenues such as agency commission and sales was than original estimates.

3  Grants & Contributions - Operating — Variation favourable ~ 32.8% $1,599,000

Actual operating grants and contributions for the 2010/2011 year have exceeded the original budget
estimates as no provision was made for the additional Grants Commission payment, nor did the budget
include Water Supply grants for the upgrade of infrastructure.

4  Profit from disposal of Assets - Variation favourable — 100% $91,000

The original budget estimates did not provide an allocation for the profit on sale of assets.

5 Borrowing Costs - Variation favourable — 40.7% $145,000

Original budget estimates made provision for loan borrowings to complete Water Supply infrastructure,
however the loan funds were not taken up in the 2010/2011 financial year.

6 Depreciation & Amortisation — Variation unfavourable ~ 97.6% $5,228,000

The original budget did not make provision for increased depreciation of the roads asset following their
revaluation as at 30th June 2010,
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for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note 1 - Significant Variations from Original Budget (cont)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
1 Investments Income — Variation Favourable ~ 16% $74,000

The Investments Income was up on original budget estimates due to an increase in interest rates coupled
with increased invested funds. _

2 Grants & Contributions — Variation Favourable - 26.6% $2,747,000

During the year Council received additional grants for flood damage, drainage works, road re-construction
the grants Commission advance payment.

3 Other Operating Receipts — Variation Favourable — 17.1% $87,000

The refund of insurance premiums and proceeds of insurance claims were greater than original budget
estimates.

4  Borrowing Costs — Variation Favourable — 60.1% $214,000

Council incurred less loan interest costs as the proposed loan funds for the Water Supply infrastructure
upgrades were not taken up during the 2010/2011 financial year. :

5  Other operating payments ~ Variation Unfavourable - 27% $562,000

The change in costs is a consequence of restructuring works as new projects commenced during the
year.

6 Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment —~ Variation Unfavourable —
28.3% $281,000

Sales of plant & equipment were less than original budget estimates as not all plant item changeovers
were affected.

7  Proceeds from the sale of investment Property — Variation Unfavourable - 100% $1,100,000
. The planned sale of the "Fairfield” property was not achieved in 2010/2011.
8 Proceeds from the sale of Real Estate — Variation Unfavourable — 81.5% $163,000

Only one (1) land sale (Punyarra Estate) was achieved in 2010/2011 compared to the four (4) sales
forecast in the original budget estimates.

9  Purchase of Infrastructure Property Plant & Equipment/ Real Estate — Variation Favourable —
27.5% $2,458,000

Essentially a number of water supply infrastructure projects were deferred to next financial year
2011/2012.

10 Repayments of Borrowing & Advances —~ Variation Favourable — 18.5% $64,000

Criginal budget estimates made provision for loan borrowings to complete Water Supply infrastructure,
however the loan funds were not taken up in the 2010/2011 financial year. Therefore principal repayments

were less than criginal estimates. '
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Note 17 - STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION PLANS

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS|INTEREST| HELD AS EST.
QPENING RECEIVED EARNED | RESTR- OVER/
BALANCE| DURING YEAR | DURING ICTED | (UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH YEAR ASSET |FUNDING
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Wasle 1 1 1
Roads 31 5 2 38 38
Bushfire 8 8 ‘8
Youth Services 14 1 15 15
Open Space 13 15 1 29 29
Community facilities 16 1 17 17
Other 66 | 4 70 70
Subtotal $94 under plan: 149 20 9 178 178
Sec 94 not under plans 14 1 15
Sec 94A levies 50 51 6 107
Sec 64 Contributions 60 74 7 141
Total Contributions 273 145 23 441

Note: The above summary of contribution plans represents the total of Council's
indvidual contribution plans. Individual plan details are shown below.

CONTRIBUTION PLAN - Quirindi

CONTRIBUTIONS| INTEREST| HELD AS EST.
OPENING RECEIVED EARNED | RESTR- OVER/
BALANCE| DURING YEAR { DURING ICTED | (UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH YEAR ASSET |FUNDING
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000
Waste ¢
Roads 19 1 20 20
Bushfire o 0
Youth Services 14 1 15 15
Open Space 4 18 1 20 20
Community facilities 16 1 17 17
Cther 0
Total 53 15 4 72 72
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - Willow Tree
CONTRIBUTIONS|INTEREST| HELD A3 EST.
OPENING RECEIVED EARNED | RESTR- OVER/
BALANCE | DURING YEAR | DURING ICTED | {UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH YEAR ASSET | FUNDING
§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Waste 1 1 1
Roads 12 5 1 18 18
Bushfire 8 8 8
Youth Services 0 ;
Open Space 9 8 9
Community facilities 0 0
Other 0 0
Total 30 5 1 36 36
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for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 17 - STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION PLANS (cont}

CONTRIBUTION PLAN - Werris Creek
CONTRIBUTIONS|INTEREST| HELD AS EST.
OPENING RECEIVED EARNED | RESTR- OVER/
BALANCE | DURING YEAR | DURING ICTED | (UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH YEAR ASSET |FUNDING
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Waste 0
Roads 0
Bushfire 0
Youth Services 0
Cpen Space 0
Community facilities 0
Other 66 4 70 70
Total 66 4 T 70
CONTRIBUTIONS NOT UNDER PLANS
CONTRIBUTIONS| INTEREST| HELD AS EST.
OPENING RECEIVED EARNEDR { RESTR- OVER/
BALANCE|] DURING YEAR | DURING ICTED | (UNDER)
FURPQSE CASH YEAR ASSET | FUNDING
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Waste 0
Roads 0
Bushfire 0
Youth Services 0
Open Space 14 1 15 15
Community facilities 0
Other 0
Total 14 1 15 15
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 18 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED
IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but knowledge of those
items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the
ailocation of scarce resources.

POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

Council is a multi-purpese organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds
and other facllities accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against
Council that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject
to a deductible "insurance excess", the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average
historical net cost (including insurance excess) of similiar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported
to Council may have existed at reporting date.

HIH Insurance
During the period 1995 - 1997 portion of Council's public risk insurance cover was insured or re-insured with a

member of the HIH Insurance group of companies.

‘At reporting date, there are no known claims outstanding from that period.

Statewide Mutual
Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, an organisation formed for the purchase and management of certain

insurances on behalf of its members. Council is liable to contribute its proportionate share of any shortfall
arising through the scheme.

Statewide Mutual Directors report that the scheme has accumulated surpluses under the liability scheme of
$20,893,570 as at 30 June 2011.

SUPERANNUATION - Defined Benefits Schemes .

"The Local Government Superannuation Scheme - Pool B (the Scheme} is a defined benefit plan that has
been deemed to be a "multi-employer fund” for purposes of AASB119. Sufficient information under AASB119
is not available to account for the Scheme as a defined benefit plan, because the assets to the Scheme are
pooled together from all employers.

The amount of employer contributions (currently 1.9 times members’ contributions plus 2.5% of gross salary
(3.8 times members’ contributions in 2009/10} to the defined benefit section of the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme and recognized as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2011 was $447,000. The
last valuation of the Scheme was performed by Mr Martin Stevenson BSc, FIA, FIAA on 16 February 2010 and
covers the period ended 30 June 2009. However, the position is monitored annually and the Actuary has
estimated that as at 30 June 2011 a deficit still exists.

Effective from | July 2011, employers are required to contribute additional amounts for a period of up to ten
years in order to rectify this deficit (ie $83,522 for 201 1/12),
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for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 19 - JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Coungcil is a partner in a regional library service - Central Northern Regional Library (CNRL} - with six (6}
-other Councits. CNRL operates under a deed of agreement between the participating Councils for the
purpose of providing library services. Council has not recognised its 9.5% CNRL joint venture interest in this
financial report, however the service has advice that the total equity is $784,400 of which Council's total

equity as at 30th June 2011 is $74,518
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2011

Note 20 - RETAINED EARNINGS & REVALUATION RESERVES

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at end of previous reporting period

Effect of correction of errors in previous years (see below)
Effect of accounting policy changes
Change in associated entities recognised

Restated opening balance

Net operating result for the year
Other comprehensive income

Balance at end of the reporting period

REVALUATION RESERVES
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Balance at end of previous reporting period

Revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant &
equipment

Balance at end of reporting period

MOVEMENTS IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Correction of errors in previous years

{i)

in previous years Council had not consistently reviewed the
estimates of useful lives of certain assets. In the course of
the revaluations carried out in the current reporting period, it
was found that the combined effect resulted in a significant
reduction in the depreciation that had previously been
charged.

It was found to be impracticable to calculate the distortion
occurring in each of the previous years, and the adjustment
has been made to prior year balances.

Commencement of AASB 1051 - Land under roads

As at 1 July 2008, Council determined that it was of the
opinion that it was not possible to reliably measure the fair
value of land under roads previously acquired, and that it was
impracticable to determine the original cost of acquisition.

In accordance with AASB 1051.9, the carrying value of land
under roads previously recognised has been made against
the opening balance of retained samings.

2011 2010

$'000 $'000
206,894 113,244
91,756
206,894 205,000
(2,220) 1,894
204,674 206,894
309,563 39,572
2,630 269,981
312,183 309,553
91,789
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NOTE 21 - RESULTS BY FUND

Moneys raised pursuant to certain sections of the Local Government Act, and of certain
other Acts, may not be used for the general purposes of the Council, or must be held as
cash or authorised investments until expended for the purposes they were raised. This Note
identifies the operating result and net assets of the general purposes operations of the
Council, and of the principal special purpose operations.

Amounts are shown on a gross basis - before consolidation eliminations - and do NOT
reconcile to the principal statements, and are shown for the current year only.

GENERAL WATER
FUND SUPPLY SEWER

INCOME STATEMENT $'000 $'000 $'000
INCOME
Rates & Annual Charges 6,544 1,105 752
User Charges & Fees ‘ 3,196 644 0
Investment Revenues 494 60 107
Other Revenues 436 o 1
Grants & Contributions - Operating 6,146 297 27
Grants & Contributions - Capital 4,051 1,418 3
Profit from Disposal of Assets ' H o 0
Total Income from Continuing Operations 20,958 3,522 890
EXPENSES
Employee Costs : 6,867 649 198
Materials & Contracts 6,309 596 182
Borrowing Costs 203 8 0
Depreciation & Amortisation 9542 620 423
Other Expenses 1,993 0 0
Total expenses from Continuing Operations 24,914 1,873 803
OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (3,956 } 1,649 87
NET OPERATING RESULT FOR YEAR (3.956 ) 1,649 87
Net qpergting result before capital grants and (8,007 ) 233 84
contributions
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Note 21 - Results by Fund (cont)
GENERAIL. WATER

FUND SUPPLY SEWER
BALANCE SHEET $'000 $'000 $'000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents 224 2212 2,787
Investments 5,750 0] 0
Receivables 2,898 701 154
Inventories 574 0 0
Other (20} 20 0
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 9,426 2,933 2,941
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments 1,000 0 0
Receivables 56 0 G
Inventories 800 0 0
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 468,911 27,610 10,496
Other (20) 20 4]
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 470,747 27,630 10,496
TOTAL ASSETS 480,173 30,563 13,437
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 1,319 0 0
Borrowings 21 83 0
Provisicns 1,933 0] 0
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,453 83 0
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 1,549 12 o
Provisions 2,218 0 0
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,768 12 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7.221 95 0
NET ASSETS 472,952 30,468 13,437
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 185,573 14,114 4,987
Revaluation Reserves 287,379 16,354 8,450
Council Equity Interest 472,952 30,468 13.437
TOTAL EQUITY 472,952 30,468 13,437
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Note 22 REINSTATEMENT, REHABILITATION and RESTORATION LIABILITIES

Tip remediation

Counci is required by law to restore the present waste
sites within the Liverpool Plains Shire Council Local
Government area and the end of their useful lives. The
projected cost of this remediation is $20 million based
on feasability and engineering studies.

Actual Actual
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
At beginning of year 892 852
Amortisation of discount - expensed to borrowing costs 40 40
At end of year 932 892
Quarry remediation
Council is required by law to restore the present
guarries within the Liverpool Plains Shire Council Local
Government area and the end of their useful lives. The
projected cost of this remediation is $1.7 million based
on feasability and engineering studies.
Actual Actual
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
At beginning of year 1122 1073
Amortisation of discount - expensed to borrowing costs 49 49
At end of year 1171 1122
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Note 23 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

Fairfield property purchased in 2007-2008 to allow extinguishment of water license is held
for resale in future years.
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FARROW . WYATT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Liverpool Plains Shire Council

Independent auditor's report to the Council - s417(2)
Report on the general purpose financial statements

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Liverpool Plains Shire Council (the
council), which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011, and the income statement, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the Statement by Councillors and
Management in the approved form as required by Section 413 (2) of the Local Government Act 1993.

Councillors responsibifity for the financial statements

The councillors of the Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Local Government Act 1993. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

gircumstances.
Auditor's responsbility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
grror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Councillors or
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

MAITLAND i 2farrowwyof. com.av SINGLETOMN
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Independent auditor's report to the Council - s147(2)
Report on the general purpose financial statements (continued)

When this audit report is included in an Annual Report, our procedures include reading the other
information in the Annual Report to determine whether if contains any material inconsistencies with the

financial statements.

QOur audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Councillors or
management.

Our audit responsibllity does not extend to the Original Budget Figures included in the Income
Statement, Cash Flow Statement and the Original Budget disclosures in Notes 2(a) and 16 and the
Projections disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements, nor the attached Special Schedules and

accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. :

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

a) the Councif's accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the Locat
Government Act 1993, Chapter 13 Part 3 Division 2; and

b) the financial statements:
i have been presented in accordance with the requirements of this Division;
i, are consistent with the Council's accounting records;

ii. present fairly the Council's financial position as at 30 June 2011 and the results of
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards {including the Australian Accounting Interpretations); and

¢) all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained; and

d) there are no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements that have come
to light during the course of the audit.

Farrow Wyatt E

Wayne Russell Maitland
Partner 31 October 2011
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FARROW . WYATT

CHARTERED ACCCOUNTANTS

Liverpool Plains Shire Councll

Independent Audit Report
S417(3) - Report on the conduct of the audit

The Mayor

Councillor lan Lobsey
Liverpool Plains Shire Council
60 Station Street

QUIRINDI NSW 2343

Dear Councillor Lobsey
Report on the Conduct of the Audit for the year _ended 30 June 2011 - Section 417(3)

We have completed our audit of the financial statements for Liverpool Plains Shire Council for the year
ended 30 June 2011, in accordance with Section 415 of the Local Government Act, 1893. Our audit
opinion under Section 417(2) has been issued to Council.

The Council is responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and intemal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and
error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial statements.

We conducted an independent audit of the financial statements in order to express an opinion on them
to the Council, Qur audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to
provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
Our audit responsibifity does not extend to the Original Budget figures included in the Income
Statement, Cash Flow Statement and the Original Budget disclosures in Notes 2(a} and 16 and the
Projections disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements, nor the attached Special Schedules and
accordingly, we exprass no opinion on them. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as
the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent fimitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected,

We performed procedures o assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly,
in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993, Accounting Standards and other mandatory
financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the
Council's financial position, and its performance as represented by the results of its operations and

cash flows.
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We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

e examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and

» assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Council

When this audit report is included in an Annual Report, our procedures include reading the other
information in the Annual Report to determine whether it contains any material inconsistencies with the
financial statements.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance
on internal controls. -

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Counciliors or
management.

As a result of our audit there are a number of comments we wish to raise concerning the trends in
Council's finances. These comments are set out below.

Income Statement

These financial statements incorporate Council's consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 June
2011. ' '

a) Net Operating Result for the year before Capital Grants and Contributions

Council's Net Operatihg Result before capital grants and contributions for the year ended 30 June 20114
shows a deficit $7,690,000 compared with a deficit of $3,562,000 for the year ended 30 June 2010,

The movement in the result is mainly attributable to increases in rates and annual charges revenue of
$586,000, an increase in grants and contributions for operating purposes of $2,184,000, and an
increase in investment revenues of $184,000.

Offsetting the increase in revenues have been an increase in employee costs of $327,000, materials
and contracts of $1,885,000, and depreciation & amortisation of $4,571,000.

Factors that have contributed to the movement noted above are as follows:

Rates and Annual Charges

Rates and annual charges have increased by $160,000 and $426,000 respectively. The increase in
rate income is largely attributable to the permissible general increase of 2.8%.

Increases in annual charges are largely attributable to an increase of $50 per property for water supply.



User Charges and Fees

User charges and fees decreased by $120,000. The movement is largely attributable to ihcreases in
RTA fees of $859,000 for work done by Council on State Roads, offset by decreases in water supply
usage charges due to less water being consumed as well as a decrease in private works income of
$531,000. '

Interest and Investment Income

There was an increase in interest and investment income due to an increase in interest rates received
and an increase In the amount of funds invested. '

Grants & Contributions Provided for Operating Purposes

Grants & contributions provided for operating purposes have increased overall by $2,184,000 mainly
due fo an increase in flood rehabilitation grants of $572,000 due to additional grants received from the
State Govemment in relation to flood recovery, an increase in FAG grants of $184,000, and a grant of
approximately §1,000,000 in connection with Namoi Regional Organisation of Councils.

Employee Costs
The increase in employee costs of $327,000 is primarily due to award increase of 3.5%.

Materials and Contracts

The increase of $2,364,000 primarily relates to additional materials and consumables expense largely
attributable to increased work performed on behalf of the RTA and for which additional revenues were
received. See comments above in respect of User Charges and Fees.

Depreciation & Amortisation

Additional depreciation expense was incurred largely as a result of the revaluation of roads, bridges
and footpaths infrastructure at the 20 June 2010 thus impacting in the current year.

h) Net Operating Result for the Year

After allowing for items of a capital ‘nature, Council's net operating result for the year ended 30 June
0011 was deficit of $2,220,000 compared to & surpius of $1,894,000 for the year ended 30 June 2010,

The diminished result is largely a factor of the deterioration in the net operating result for the year
before capitai grants and contributions, as the total level of capital grants and contributions received by
Council is similar in the current and prior years.

Asset Recognition

Except for land under roads, infrastructure assets acquired or constructed prior to 1 January 1993 have
been capitalised in the accounts on a staged basis since June 1995, in accordance with the provisions
of the Local Govemment Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. :

In July 2006, the Department of Local Government determined that all infrastructure, property, plant
and equipment will be valued at fair value in a staged approach recognising water and sewerage
assets in the year ended 30 June 2007 plant and equipment, land and buildings, and other assets in
the year ended 30 June 2008; roads, bridges, footpaths and drainage in the year ending 30 June 2009



(which was subsequently deferred to 30 June 2010), and Community land, fand improvements, other
structures and other assets by 30 June 2010 (subsequently deferred to 30 June 2011).

The fair value of plant and equipment, land and buildings and other assets was ascertained and based
on the following methods: ‘

o plant and equipment - approximated by depreciated historical cost
¢ buildings - fair value as determined by independent external valuation
* operational land - fair value as determined by independent extemal valuation

The fair value of the water and sewerage assets is based on the written down replacement cost. The
written down replacement cost was based on the concept of modem engineering equivalents. In this
regard, data published by the Department of Energy, Utilities and Sustainability was referred fo.

The fair value of roads, bridges, footpaths and drainage assets was based on the method of written
down replacement cost. '

The fair value of Community land, land improvements and other structures was based on the following
methods:

» |and improvements and other structures - approximated by depreciated historical cost
» community land - on the following bases
— the NSW Valuer General's valuations may be used to initially recognise community land
acquired at no cost or nominal cost. It is considered that the valuations represent the fair
value of such land in lieu of actual cost.
—  Community land acquired at market price should be recorded initially at cost.
— the NSW Valuer General's valuations may be used under the revaluation model to
represent fair value for the revaluation of community land.

In line with the Division of Local Government requirements, Gouncil revalued the roads, bridges,
footpaths and drainage assets to fair value based on written down replacement cost at 30 June 2010.
This resulted in a $268,853,000 revaluation increment to revaluation resetves and a $91,789,000
adjustment to retained earnings due to prior period over depreciation.

Revaluation of water and sewerage and other assets in the 2010 year resulied in a further revaluation
increment of $1,128,000. :

in line with Division of Local Govemment requirements, Community tand and land improvements, and
other structures were revalued as at 30 June 2011, This resulted in & revaluation increment of
$1.483,000. Revaluation of water and sewerage assets as &t 30 June 2011 resulted in a further
revaluation increment of $1,147,000.



Performance Indicators

Our comments in regard to Council's performance for the 2011 year are hased on those performance
indicators and areas that are considered meaningful.

The indicators we have reviewed are as follows:
a) Liquidity

At 30 June 2011, Council's net current assets stood at $11,764,000 compared to $9,703,000 at 30
June 2010. In other words, the total current assets that Council is expected to realise in the coming
year exceeded the total current liabilities that will need to be met by this amount. This is referred to as
the current asset ratio and is a measure of the liquidity of Council. Prima facie, this places Council in a
sound financial position however, it must be remembered that this balance includes items which are
restricted in their use. The unrestricted current ratio also shows that prima facie Council is in & sound
position, with unrestricted current assets outweighing current liahilities (excluding specific purpose
liabilities) by 2.95: 1 on a consolidated basis.

Net Current Assets

Included in Council's net current assets, are cash and investments of $10,973,000 which are subject to
restrictions as follows:

30 June 2011 30 June 2010

$'000 $'000
Total cash and investments 10,973 8,883
Less: ltems specifically restricted by external regulation (7.357) 4,539
3,616 4,344
Less: Amounts subject to restrictions made by Council to 3,608 4,336
cover long term projects and commitments - Internal
restrictions
Unrestricted cash and investments 8 8

Unrestricted Current Ratio

The unrestricied current ratio for the last three years on a consolidated basis is as follows:
2011 2010 2009
2.95.1 3.43:1 - 5921

As noted above, whilst the ratio indicates prima facie that Council is in a sound position at 30 June
2011, it should be noted that the ratio is deteriorating. Moreover the ratios noted above are on a
consolidated basis.



An analysis of the ratio for the year ended 30 June 2011 on a "by fund"” basis indicates the following:

General Water Sewer
0.46:1 35.341 0:1

A ratio of less than 1 is generally regarded as indicative of a prima facie weaker position and thus
Council should be aware that general fund is in a relatively weak position when compared to the
consolidated ratio, which is being influsnced by a strong ratio in water fund, which as Council will be
aware, is restricted in its use. .

h) Debt Service Ratio

At 30 June 2011 Council had outstanding loans of $1,845,000 compared with $1,027,000 at 30 June
9010. The debt service ratio has been used to give some indication of the cost of meeting loan and
interest repayments and is often expressed as a percentage of revenue from ordinary activities,
excluding specific purpose grants and contributions. It represents 2% for the year ended 30 June 2011
compared to 3% for the year ended 30 June 2010 and 2% for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The debt service ratio has remained relatively consistent over the last three years, however the ratio
would be expected to increase as additional loans are raised.

¢} Rates and Annual Charges Coverage Ratio

This ratio is essentially a measure of the extent to which Council is dependent upon revenue from rates
and annual charges as compared to its total revenue. For the year ended 30 June 2011, Council's rate
and annual charges coverage ratio was approximately 33% compared to 35% in 2010, Accordingly
Council's rates and annual charges revenue as a proportion of its totaf revenue has remained relatively
consistent compared to the previous year.

d) Rates and Annual Charges Outstanding

The rates and annual charges outstanding percentage is used to assess the impact of uncollected
rates and annual charges on liquidity and the adequacy of debt recovery efforts.

The percentage of rates and annual charges outstanding has increased to 9.77% in 2011 compared to
8.09% in 2010 and 7.79% in 2009,

e) Building & Infrastructure Renewal Ratio

The building & infrastructure renewal is used to assess the rate at which assets are being renewed
against the rate at which they are depreciating.

A ratio of less than one is prima facie indicative that Council's asset base is depreciating at a faster
rate than which it is being renewed. However, care needs to be taken in interpreting this ratio.

The asset renewal ratio was 0.24 in the current year compared with 1.2 in 2010 and 0.38 in 2009. The
decrease is mainly due to the impact of the increase in depreciation following the revaluation of roads,

6



bridges, footpaths and drainage assets in 2010, along with a reduction in the amount spent on asset
renewal in the current compared to the prior year,

Internally Restricted Assets

Councit sets aside in the form of specific cash or investments amounts to cover future expenditure that
is considered necessary for efficient long term operations. This cash is restricted for use only on the
specific purposes designated. It does not include restrictions on unexpended grant income or section
94 contributions, as these are provided for separately in external restrictions. Internal restrictions relate
to expenditure on such items as leave entilements, asset replacement and property development and
acquisition. At 30 June 2011, Council had internally restricted assets totalling $4,608,000 compared to
$4,336,000 at 30 June 2010. However whist prima facie the amount of internal restrictions has
increased, it should be noted that Councils desired level of intemal restrictions at 30 June 2011 is
$5,743,000. In other words the level of cash and investments that Council has available to set aside for
future projecis and operations compared to the desired level at 30 June 2011 is short by $1,135,000.
This should also be considered in the context of our comments regarding Councils liquidity noted
above. '

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating aclivities

Net cash provided from operating activities amounted to $7,967,000 in 2011 compared to $8,650,000
for the previous year.

The decrease in cash flows from operafing activities is mainly attributable to an increase in payments
for employee benefits of $262,000, and materials & contracts of $2,566,000 along with a decrease in
receipts from user charges and fees of $767,000. This is partially offset by higher receipts from rates
and annual charges of $469,000 and grants and contributions of $3,253,0000. The factors impacting
on the movements are outlined in the commentary on the Income Statement. The decreases in user
charges & fees is largely attributable to the increass in receivables therefore impacting the net cash
provided by operating activities. '

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $4.695,000 for the year ended 30 June 2011,
compared to $16,586,000 for the previous year.

The movement is primarily attributable to the net difference in investment securities transactions. In
2010 there were net purchases of investment securities of $7,750,000 compared to net sales of
$1,000,000 in 2011.

Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash provided from financing activities amounted to $818,000 for the year ended 30 June 2011
compared to $307,000 net cash used in the previous year. The increase in cash flows from financing
activities is primarily due to an increase in loans taken out during the year.



Management Letter

A management letter highlighting matters arising from our audit covering intemnal controls and other
accounting matters will be prepared where it is considered necessary or appropriate and issued to the
General Manager in due course, Should a letter be issued any matters raised are not of a nature that is

significant in arriving at our audit opinion.

The books of accounts and records inspected by us have been kept in an accurate and conscientious
manner. We thank the General Manager, Director of Corporate Services, Finance Manager and their
staff for the co-operation and courtesy extended to us during the course of our visit to Council's office.

——

Farrow Wyatt

szw

Wayne Russell
Partner

Maitland
31 October 2011
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

Special Purpose Financial Reporis for the
year ended 30t June 2011

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the
Local Government Code of Accounting Praclice
and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Reports have been prepared in accordance
with:

o NSW Government Policy Statement “Application of National Competition Policy
to Local Government.”

e Department of Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting.

e The Department of Energy, Utilities and Sustainability Best Practice Management
of Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, these Reports:

e present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council’s
declared business activities for the year; and

e accord with Council’s accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render the reports false or misleading in
any way.

Sighed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 29t Septembber 2011.

lan R Lobsey OAM Bernard J Perkins

Mayor Deputy Mayor /\

Robert C Hunt Michael J Urguhart
General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer



#Special Purpose Financial Reports
LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
INCOME STATEMENT
WATER SUPPLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY
for the year ended 30th June 2011
Notes 2011 2010 2009
'000 ‘000 '000
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Access Charges A4 1,105 764 617
User Charges A4 642 809 504
Fees A4 2 5] 30
Interest Received A4 60 37 127
Grants & Contributions - Operating Ad 297 35 33
Gain on Disposal of Assets Ab -
Other Operating Revenues Ad
TOTAL 2,106 1,741 1,311
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employee Costs A3 649 571 464
Materials & Contracts A3 596 402 350
Borrowing Costs A3 8 24 -
Depreciation & Amortisation A3 620 685 682
Water Purchase Charges -
Loss on Disposal of Assets AS -
NCP Tax Equivalents 1
Debt Guarantee Fee - 5
Other Operating Expenses A3 - (5)
TOTAL 1,873 1,682 1,486
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RESULT BEFORE
CAPITAL AMOUNTS 233 59 (185)
Grants & Contributions - Capital A4 1,418 731 189
RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,649 790 4
Discontinued Operations
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX 1,649 790 4
Corporate Taxation Equivalent 1 - 18 -
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR YEAR 1,649 772 4
Add: Accumulated Surplus brought forward 12,465 11,675 11,671
Adjustments for amounts unpaid
NCP Tax Equivalents retained 1
Debt Guarantee Fee retained’ 1
Corporate Tax Equivalent retained 1 - 18
Less: Dividends Paid 1
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 14,114 12 465 11,675
RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL 1 0.87% 0.30% 0.00%
NOTIONAL SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL 1 N/A 1,300 N/A
Calculation of Dividend Payable during next
financial year
Surplus after tax ' 1,649 772 -596
Less: Capital grants & confribs from LWUs 1,642 764 53
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 7 8 Y
Dividend calculated from surplus 4 4 0
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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Special Purpose Financial Reports
LIVERPOOL. PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
INCOME STATEMENT
SEWERAGE BUSINESS ACTIVITY
for the year ended 30th June 2011
Notes 2011 2010 2009
'000 ‘000 '000
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Access Charges A4 752 704 6854
User Charges A4 -
Ligquid Trade Waste Charges Ad -
Fees A4 -
Interest Received A4 107 74 52
Grants & Contributions - Operating A4 27 26 27
Gain on Disposal of Assets A5 -
Other Operating Revenues A4 1 3 4
' TOTAL 887 807 737
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employee Costs A3 198 286 212
Materials & Contracts A3 182 202 159
Borrowing Costs A3 - .
Depreciation & Amortisation A3 423 341 3e2
Loss on Disposal of Assets Ab -
NCP Tax Equivalents 1
Debt Guarantee Fee -
Other Operating Expenses A3 -
TOTAL 803 829 733
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RESULT BEFORE 84 92 4
CAPITAL AMOUNTS (22)
Grants & Contributions - Capital Ad 3 2 9
RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 87 (20) 13
Discontinued Operations
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX 87 (20) 13
Corporate Taxation Equivalent 1 - - 1
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR YEAR 87 (20) 12
Add: Accumulated Profits brought forward 4,900 4,920 4907
Adjustments for amounts unpaid 6
NCP Tax Equivalents retained 1 -
Debt Guarantee Fee retained - (6)
Corporate Tax Equivalent retained - 1
Less: Dividends Paid 1 -
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 4,987 4,900 4,920
RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL 1 0.830%
NOTIONAL SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL 1 N/A N/A
Calculation of Dividend Payable during next
financial year
Surplus after tax 87 -20 12
Less: Capital grants & contribs from LWUs 27 28 27
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 60 0 [4]
Dividend calculated from surplus 30 g 0
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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Special Purpose Financial Reports

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET

WATER SUPPLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Notes 2011 2010
‘000 '000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents AG 2,212 665
Investments A
Receivables A7 701 625
Inventories AB
Other AB 20 20
Non-current assets held for sale
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,933 1,310
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments AG
Receivables A7
Inventories AB
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment A 27,610 27,664
Investment Property '
Other A8 20 40
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 27,630 27,704
TOTAL ASSETS 30,563 29,014
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables A10 2
Interest bearing liabilities A10 83 98
Provisions ' A10
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 83 100
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables A10
Interest bearing liabilities A10 12 95
Provisions A10
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 12 95
TOTAL LIABILITIES 95 195
NET ASSETS $ 30,468 28,819
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 14,114 12,465
Asset Revaluation Reserve 16,354 16,354
TOTAL EQUITY $ 30,468 28,819

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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Special Purpose Financial Reports

LIVERPOOL. PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET
SEWERAGE BUSINESS ACTIVITY
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Notes 2011 2010
'000 '000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents AB 2,787 2,323
Investments AB
Receivables AT 154 113
Inventories A8
Other AB 43
Non-current assets held for sale
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,941 2,479
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments AB
Receivables AT
Inventories A8
Infrastructure, Properly, Plant & Equipment A9 10,496 10,871
Investiment Property
Other AB
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 10,496 10,871
: TOTAL ASSETS 13,437 13,350
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables A10
Interest bearing liabilities A10
Provisions A10
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables A10
interest bearing liabilities A10
Provisions A10
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES B
NET ASSETS $ 13,437 13,350
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 4,987 4,900
Asset Revaluation Reserve 8,450 8,450
TOTAL EQUITY $ 13,437 13,350

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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Liverpool Plains Shire Council

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORTS
for the year ended 30 June 2011

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Special Purpose Financial Reports

These financial statements are a Special Purpose Financial Report prepared for use by the Council, the
Division of Local Government, and the NSW Office of Water, Department of Environment, Climate Change
and Water. They have been prepared to report the results of business units determined by Council in
accordance with the requirements of National Competition Policy guidelines, and the specific requirements
relating to Best Practice Management of water and sewer business units,

In preparing these reports, each business unit has been viewed as a separate unit, and accordingly
tfransactions between different business units, and between business units and other Council operations,
have not been eliminated.

Basis of Accounting

2.1 Compliance
The financial reports comply with the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and
Financial Reporting, and with the principles of the June 1996 NSW Government Policy Statement
“Application of National Competlition Policy fo Local Govemment”, the Department of Local
Government's July 1997 guidelines “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide to
Competitive Neutrality” and the NSW Office of Water, Department of Environment, Climate
Change and Water 2007 guidelines "Best-Practice Management of Watfer Supply and Sewerage”.

Except where directed to the contrary by the above documents, the financial report also complies
with all applicable Ausfralian Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and is
based on information consistent with that forming the basis of Council's general purpose Annual
Financial Statements for the year.

2.2 Basis
The financial report has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and, except where
specifically indicated in these Notes or in the Notes to the general purpose Annual Financial
Statements, in accordance with the historical cost convention.

National Competition Policy

In accordance with the framework set out in the June 1996 NSW Government Policy Statement “Application
of National Competition Policy fo Local Govemment” and other guidelines and documentation in relation to
this matter, Council has declared that the following are to be considered as Business Units:

Category 2

Name

Brief description of Activity

Quirindi, Werris Creek & Village Water Supplies Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of

the water supply systems servicing the towns of Quirindi,
Werris Creek, Blackville, Caroona, Premer, Spring Ridge
and Wallabadah. As the total annual operating revenues
are less than $2,000,000, it is defined as a “Category 2"
Business Unit,

Quirindi & Werris Creek Sewerage Services Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of

the sewerage reticulation and treatment system
servicing the towns of Quirindi and Werris Creek. As the
total annual operating revenues are less than
$2,000,000, it is defined as a *Category 2" Business
Unit.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

Taxation Equivalent Payments

Council does not pay certain taxes and duties that are paid by equivalent private sector operations,
but is liable for others. The Special Purpose Financial Reports disclose the effect of imputing
these taxes to the declared business units at the several rates that would have applied to
equivalent private sector operations. The NSW Office of Water, Department of Environment,
Climate Change and Water's guidelines ‘Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and
Sewerage” require that imputed amounts be paid into the general funds of the Council where it
may be applied for any permitted purpose of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

Details of the rates of each tax or duty applicable to each different business unit are set out in the
table forming item 7 of this Note. The narration “applies” indicates that the tax or duty has in fact
been paid to the taxing authority by the Business Unit, and that these costs have been included in
actual Operating Expenses, and the narration "various™ indicates that Council has hased the
calculation of imputed tax on the differing rates of tax or duty applicable to different purchases.

Council Rates, Charges & Fees

Council rates have been impufed in relation to all non-rateable land, and applied in relation to all
rateable land, owned or exclusively used by all business units. Annual and User Charges, and
Regulatory and Other Fees, have been applied in refation to all services supplied to business units
by Council or other business units.

Loan & Debt Guarantee Fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council's business units face equivalent
commercial borrowing costs to private sector competitors. In order to calculate the debt guarantee
fees, Council has determined the average differential between actual and commercial borrowing
rates for each business unit.

Corporate Taxation Equivalent

In accordance with the Code of Local Government Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,
income taxation has been calculated on the Operating Result before Capital Amounts disclosed in
the Statements of Financial Performance of the Special Purpose Financial Reperts. No allowance
has been made for non-deductible items, timing differences or carried forward losses. Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 112 “Income Taxes" has not been applied.

Dividends Paid

In accordance with National Competition Policy guidelines, it is expected that business units will
pay dividends to its owner, Council, ‘equivalent to those paid by private sector competitors. In
accordance with the Code of Local Government Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting, the
rate of dividend paid has been expressed as a percentage of the Change in Net Assets Resulting
from Qperations after Taxation.

Council is permitted, but not required, to pay a dividend to the general funds of the Council from
surpluses generated by water supply and sewerage operations. The maximum amount of such
dividend permitted under the ‘Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage”
guidelines is set out at the foot of the relevant Statements of Financial Performance. Actual
payment of the dividend is subject to compliance with the procedures set out in the guidelines.

Return on Investment (Rate of Return})

The Policy statement states that Category 1 businesses “would be expected to generate a rate of
retum on capital funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field.” In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice, the rate of return
on monopoly businesses such as water and sewerage services has heen set at an amount
sufficient to cover costs and replace assels needed to maintain services. For competitive markets,
the rate of return has been set equal to or better than the return on Commonwealth 10 year bonds.

In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice, the rate of return has been calculated as the
Operating Result before Capitat Amounts plus Interest Expense expressed as a percentage of the
carrying value of Property, Plant & Equipment at the repoiting date.

Notional Subsidy from Council
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers and the funding of those
subsidies must be explicitly disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2010

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (conf)

than cost recovery basis, or accepts a lower rate of return on its investment in the business unit
than would be acceptable to a private sector competitor.

In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice, this amount has been calculated as the dollar
difference between the required and actual rates of return.

4, Special Rate Funds
The Local Government Act 1893 (as amended) requires that moneys raised by way of Special Rates (or for

Domestic Waste Management) be used only for those purposes, except for “dividends” payable in
accordance with the “Best-Practice Management of Watfer Supply and Sewerage” guidelines, which also
impose limits on the amounts payable. Accordingly, impufed amounts in excess of the permitted limits have
been retained in those funds, and added back to Accumulated Surplus.

For Business Units not involving Special Rate Funds, imputed amounts have been transferred to Council's
General Fund and are available to Council for utilisation for other purposes.

All such amounts have been eliminated in the course of preparation of the Council's general purpose
Annual Financial Statements.

5. Other Accounting Policies and Notes
Other accounting policies relating to the determination of revenues and expenses, and assets and liabilities,
not specifically referred to above are reported in Note 1 to the Council's Annual Financial Statements, and
should be read in conjuncticn with this Note. Note references in the Statements of Financial Performance
of Business Activities and the Statement of Financial Position of Business Activities that are prefixed "A”
refer to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

6. Rounding
In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice all amounts shown in these statements are in
Australian currency and, other than Notes 2 & 3, have been rounded to the nearast thousand dollars;
amounts in Notes 2 & 3 are shown in whole dollars to meet the requirements of the Department of Energy,

Utilities and Sustainability.

7. National Competition Policy Notional Payments
The table forming part of this Note immediately follows.
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Special Purpose Financial Reports

Liverpool Plains Shire Council

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORTS

NOTE 1 Table - NATIONAL COMPETITION POLICY NOTIONAL PAYMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

WATER SEWER
2011 | 2010 2011 | 2010

Category | 2 i 2 | 2 | 2 |
TAXATION EQUIVALENT PAYMENTS Rate Rate Rate Rate
Land Tax 2% 2% 2% 2%
Stamp Duty 0% 0% 0% 0%
Payroll Tax Applies Applies Applies Applies
Fringe Benefits Tax Applies Applies Applies Applies
COUNCIL RATES, CHARGES & FEES | See Note 1, ltem 3.2
LOAN & DEBT GUARANTEE FEES P 3.00% | 300% | 3.00% | 3.00% |
CORPORATE TAXATION EQUIVALENT 30% 30% 30% 30%
DIVIDENDS PAID | N/A | N/A ] N/A | N/A ]
RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL
Required Rate of Return 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Actual Rate of Return 0.30% NIL NIL NIL
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Special Purpose Financial Reports

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 2 - BEST PRACTICE MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES
- WATER SUPPLY

Values shown in this Note are expressed in WHOLE DOLLARS

Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
(i) Calculated Tax Equivalents
(i)  No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
(il Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents
{iv) Tax Equivalents paid

Dividend from Surplus

(i)  50% of Surplus before Dividends
(Calcufated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage
guidelines.)

0 No of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

(il Cumulative Surplus before Dividends for 3 years to 30 June 2010, less
cumulative dividends paid for 2 years to 30 June 2009

(iv) Maximum Dividend from Surplus

(least of (i), (i) and (i) )
(v) Dividend paid from Surplus

Required Outcomes for 6 Criteria
(iy Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)
(i Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies
{item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of Best Practice guidelines)
Complying charges (item 2{b} in Table 1)
~ DSP with Commercial Developer Charges (ltem 2(e) in Table 1)
If Dual Water Supplies, Complying Charges (item 2{(g) in Table 1)
iy Sound Water Conservation & Demand Management Implemented
}  Sound Drought Management implemented
v) Complete Performance Reporting Form {(by 15 September each year)
) Compiete Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation
(viiy Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

NWI F1 Total Revenue (Water) $'000
NWI F4 Residential Revenue from Usage Charges (Water) %

NWI F9 Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Water) §'000
NWI F1° Operating Cost (OMA} (Water) §000
NWI! F 1< Capital Expenditure {Water) $000
NWI F1% Economic Real Rate of Return (Water) %

NWI| F2({ Capitat Works Grants (Water) $'000

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS

84,714

No
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
No
No

2,117
36.75
27,610
1,245
566
0.81
1,345
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Special Purpose Financial Reports

LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2011

Note 3 - BEST PRACTICE MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

- SEWERAGE

Values shown in this Note are expressed in WHOLE DOLLARS

Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
(i) Calcuiated Tax Equivalents
(i) No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
(il Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents
{lesser of (i} and (i) }
(iv) Tax Equivalents paid

Dividend from Surplus
(iy 50% of Surplus before Dividends

(Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage

guidslines.)

No of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent

(i charges/assessment

Cumulative Surplus before Dividends for 3 years to 30 June 2010, less

(if cumulative dividends paid for 2 years to 30 June 2009
(iv) Maximum Dividend from Surplus

(least of (i), (ii) and (iii) )
(v} Dividend paid from Surplus

Required Outcomes for 4 Criteria

(i) Complete current Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)
Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies

(1) ttem 2(a) in Table 1 on page 18 of Best practice guidelines)
Complying charges (a) Residential (Item 2(c) in Table 1)
(b) Non-Residential (item 2(c) in Table 1)
{c) Trade Waste (ltem 2(d) in Table 1)
DSP with Commercial Developer Charges (Item 2(e) in Table 1)
Liquid Trade Waste Approvals & Policy (ltem 2(f) in Table 1)

(il Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)

(iv} a. Complete Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation

(iv) b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
NWI F2 Total Revenue (Sewerage)

NWI F1{ Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Sewerage)
NWI| F1Z Operating Cost (Sewerage)

NWI F1£ Capital Expenditure (Sewerage)

NWI F1€ Economic Real Rate of Return (Sewerage)

NWI F27 Capital Works Grants (Sewer)

NWI F3 Total Income (Water & Sewerage)
NWI F5 Revenue from Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)
NWI| F1€ Capital Expenditure (Water & Sewerage)
NW! F1¢ Economic Real Rate of Retumn (Water & Sewerage)
NWI F2( Dividend (Water & Sewerage)
NWI F21Dividend Payout Ratio (Water & Sewerage)
NW!I F2: Net Debt to Equity (Wafer & Sewerage)
NWI F2: Interest Cover (Waler & Sewerage)
NWI F24 Net Profit after Tax (Water & Sewerage)
NW! F2f Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)

$000
$'000
$'000
$'000
%
3'000

3000
%
3000
%
$'000
%
%
times
¥000
$'000

15

63,300

No
Yes

Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
No
No
No

783
10,496
380
48

-0

2,900

2

614

1

g

0

-11
=100

391

61
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FARROW. WYATT

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Liverpool Plains Shire Council

Independent auditor's report - Report on the Special Purpose Financial
Statements

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements, which comprises the Income Statement by
Business Activity, Balance Sheet by Business Activity, Notes to the financial statements for the
business activities identified by Council and the Statement by Councillors and Management for Counctl
for the year ended 30 June 2011.

The responsibility of Councillors for the financial statements

The councillors of the Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements and have determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial
statements, which form part of the financial statements, are appropriate to meet the requirements of
the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. The responsibility of the
councillors of the council also includes establishing and maintaining internal conirof; relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that is free from material misstatement,
whether sue to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. No opinion is
expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet
the needs of the Council or the Division of Local Government. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements refating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Council's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivenass of the Council's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the councillors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Zeath

MAITLAND emuil: adm rrowwyatt.cont.au SINGLETON

ggEQ U]ll]”;h Si_flefﬂd web: www farrowwyott.com.ou Ist Floor 126 John Street

Tl (0214931 SO0 Fo (021 4993 9653 AR 30 771 058 1 Tt o 01 3 3288
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Liahifity limited by o scheme approved under Prafessivnod Stundards Legislation fol €02) 6572 1744 = Fux (02) 6572 3255




Independent auditor's report - Report on the Special Purpose Financial
Statements (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared for distribution to Council for the purpose of fulfilling the
financial reporting obligations of the counciliors under the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any rellance on this
audit report or on the financial statements to which it relates to any person other than the Council or
Division of Local Government or for any purpose other than that for which they were prepared.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Councillors or
management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of Liverpool Plains Shire Council present fairly, in accordance
with the requirements of those applicable Accounting Standards detailed in Note 1 to the financial
statements, and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

;MZ
Farrow Wyatt

Wayne Russell
Partner

iaitland
31 October 2011
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 1
NET COST OF SERVICES
for the year ended 30th June 2011
$'000
Expenses Income f_rom Incorr‘\e from NET COST
. - from continuing | continuing
Function or Activity - . . OF
continuing | operations | operations
- : ] SERVICES
operations | {(non-capital)| (capital}
GOVERNANCE 485 - - 485
DMINISTRATION 1,723 317 - 1,406
PUBLIC ORDER & SAFETY
Fire Service Levy, Fire Protection, Emergency Services 817 434 325 58
Beach Control - - -
Enforcement of Local Govt Regulations - 3l - (3)
Animal Control 139 7 - 132
Other - - - -
Total Public Order & Safety 956 444 325 187
HEALTH [ 33 | 8 | - | 25
ENVIRONMENT
Noxious Plants and Insect / Vermin Control 210 . 20 - 120
Other Environmental Protection 1,143 1,252 550 {659)
Solid Waste Management 1,045 1,150 - {105}
Street Cleaning 113 - - 113
Drainage - - - -
Stormwater Management 328 - - 328
Total Envirenment 2,839 2,492 550 {203}
COMMUNITY SERVICES & EDUCATION
IAdministration & Education 120 2 - 118
Social Protection (welfare} - - - -
IAged Persons & Disabled 322 275 104 {57)
Childrens Services 440 397 - 43
Total Community Services & Education 882 874 104 104
HOUSING & COMMUNITY AMENITIES
Public Cemeteries 115 129 - (14)
Public Conveniences 132 - - 132
Street Lighting 96 20 - 76
[Town Planning 162 138 72 (48)
Other Community Amenities 22 13 - 9
Total Housing & Community Amenities 527 300 72 155
WATER SUPPLIES [ 1,873 | 2,106 | 1,416 | (1,649)
SEWERAGE SERVICES | 802 | 886 | 3] (87)

Page 51



LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 1 - NET COST OF SERVICES (cont)
for the year ended 30th June 2011

$'000
o Sipeses [ oo rom e cost
Function or Activity - ) ) OF
corltlnylng operathns opera.tlons SERVICES
operations | (non-capital)| (capital)

RECREATION & CULTURE
Public Libraries 369 43 - 326
Museums 99 39 - B0
Art Galleries 4 - - 4
Community Centres and Halls 190 19 53 118
Performing Arts Venues - - - -
Cther Performing Arts - - - -
Other Cultural Services 17 - - 17
Sporting Grounds 463 45 - 417
Swimming Pools 283 47 28 208
Parks & Gardens, Lakes 392 26 32 334
Other Sport & Recreation 148 56 15 77
Total Recreation & Culture 1,966 276 128 1,661
FUEL 8 ENERGY | - | - | - | -
AGRICULTURE | - - | - | -

MINING, MANUFACTURING & CONSTRUCTION

Building Contrel i 55 56 - 1
Other Mining Manufacturing & Construction 612 565 - 47
Total Mining Manufacturing & Construction 667 621 - 46

TRANSPORT & COMMUNICATION

Urban Roads: Local 625 10 20 595
Urban Roads: Regicnai 17 - 27 {10}
Sealed Rural Roads: Local 4,297 71 149 4,077
Sealed Rural Roads: Regicnal 1,068 1518 1,785 (2,235)
Lnsealed Rural Roads: Local 6,785 1,722 812 4,251

Unsealed Rural Roads: Regicnal - - i - -
Bridges - Urban Roads: Local - - -
Bridges - Sealed Rural Reads: Local 3 - - 3
Bridges - Unsealed Rural Roads: Locaf - - - -
Bridges on Regional Roads - - -
Parking Areas -

Footpaths 48 - - 48
|Aerodromes 86 75 - 11
Other Transport & Communication 1,001 1 79 921

Total Transport & Communication 13,930 3,397 2,872 7,661

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

[Camping Areas & Caravan Parks 24 15 - 9
Other Economic Affairs 884 486 - 388
Total Economic Affairs 908 511 - 397

TOTALS - FUNCTIONS 27,590 | 12,032 | 5,470 | 10,088
General Purpose Revenues 7,868
Equity accounted income (loss) -
7,868

NET OPERATING RESULT FOR YEAR [ (2,220)

Page S2
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 3
WATER SUPPLY OPERATIONS

(Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2011

A. EXPENSES & REVENUES 2011
EXPENSES $'000
1.a. Management - Administration 261
b. - Engineering & Supervision 393
2 Operations
a, - Dams & Weirs - Operation Expenses 12
b. - Maintenance Expenses ' 41
c. - Mains - Operation Expenses 52
d. ~-Maintenance Expenses 163
e - Reservoirs - Operation Expenses -
f. - Maintenance Expenses 2
g. - Pumping Stations - Operation Expenses 2
h. - Energy Costs 79
I - Maintenance Expenses 68
J - Treatment - Operation Expenses ' 150
k. - Chemical Costs 13
i - Maintenance Expenses -
m. - Other - Operation Expenses 1
n. - Maintenance Expenses ‘ -
0. - Purchase of Water -
3.a. Depreciation - System Assets 497
b. - Plant & Equipment 123
4.a. Miscellaneous - Interest 8
b. - Revaluation decrements
c. - Other
c. - NCP Tax & Other Equivalents -
5 Total Expenses 1,873
REVENUE
& Residential Charges
a. - Access (including rates) 1,105
b. - User Charges 642
7 Non-Residential Charges
a. - Access (including rates)
b. - User Charges
8 Extra Charges
9 Interest 60
10 Other Income 2
11.a. Grants - Acquisition of Assets 1,345
b. - Pensioner Rebates 34
c. - Qther 263
12.a. Contributions - Developer Charges ‘ 71
b. - Developer Provided Assets
c. - Other Contributions
13 Total Revenues 3,522
14 Gain (Loss) onh Disposal of Assets
15 QPERATING RESULT 1,649
15a. Operating Result before Grants for Acquisition of Assets 304

2010
$'000

764
899

37

731
33

2472

790

59
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NG 3 - WATER SUPPLY OPERATIONS (cont)

2011 2010

B. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS $'000 $'000

Non - Operating Expenditure
16 Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. - New assets for improved standards 463 1,308
b. - New assets for growth 5
c. - Renewals 21 856
d. - Plant & Equipment 77 160
17 Repayment of Debt
a. - Loans 98 129
b. - Advances
c. - Finance Leases
18 Transfers to Sinking Funds
19 Total Non-Operating Expenditure 664 2,453

Non-Operating Funds Employed
20 Proceeds from Disposal of Assets

21 Borrowings Utilised

a. - Loans

b. - Advances

c. - Finance Leases

2z Transfers from Sinking Funds

23 Total Non-Operating Funds Employed ' - -
C. RATES & CHARGES

24 Number of Assessments

a. - Residential {occupied) : 2660

b. - Residential (unoccupied - vacant land) 57

c - Non-Residential (occupied) 86

d - Non -Residential (unoccupied - vacant land) 21

Number of ETs for which Developer Charges were
25 received ET
26 Total Amount of Pensioner Rebates 61 $'000

D. BESTPRACTICE ANNUAL CHARGES & DEVELOPER CHARGES
27 Annual Charges
a Does Council have best-practice water supply annual charges and usage charges?
If Yes, go to 28a.
If No, has Council removed land value from access charges (i.e. rates)

b Cross subsidy from residential customers using fess than allowance 0
c Cross subsidy to non-residential customers 0
d Cross subsidy to large connections in unmetered supplies 0
28 Developer Charges

a Has Council completed a water supply Development Servicing Plan? Yes

b Total cross-subsidy in water supply developer charges ' 0
20 TOTAL OF CROSS SUBSIDIES -

Councils which have not yet implemented best practice water supply pricing should disclose cross subsidies in
items 27b, 27c and 27d above, However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is NOt required where a Council has
implemented best practice pricing and is phasing in such pricing over a period of 3 years.

Page S6



LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 4

WATER SUPPLY - NET ASSETS COMMITTED

{Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Current Nen-Current Total
ASSETS $'000 $'000 $'000
30 Cash and Investments
a, - Developer Charges -
b. - Specific Purpose Grants -
c. - Accrued Leave -
d. - Unexpended Loans -
e. - Sinking Funds -
f. - Other 2,212 2,212
31 Receivables
a. - Specific Purpose Grants -
b. - Rates & Availability Charges 700 700
c. - Other 1 1
32 Inventories -
33 Property, Plant & Equipment
a. - System Assets 24,050 24,050
b. - Plant & Equipment 3,560 3,560
34 Other 20 20 40
35 Total Assets 2,933 27,630 30,563
LIABILITIES
36 Bank Overdraft -
37 Creditors -
338 Borrowings
a. - Loans 83 12 05
b. - Advances -
c. - Finance Leases -
39 Provisions
- Tax Equivalents -
a. - Dividend - -
b. - Other -
40 Total Liabilities 83 12 95
41 NET ASSETS COMMITTED 2,850 27,618 30,468
EQUITY
42 Accumulated Surplus 14,114
43 Asset Revaluation Reserve 16,354
44 Total Equity 30,468
45 Current Replacement Cost of System Assets 48,493
46 Accumulated Current Cost Depreciation of System Assets 20,883
47 Written Down Current Cost of System Assets 27,610

Page S7



LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO §
SEWERAGE SERVICE OPERATIONS

{Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2011

A. EXPENSES & REVENUES

EXPENSES
1.a. Management - Administration
b. - Engineering & Supervision
2 Operations & Maintenance Expenses
a -Mains - Operation Expenses
b. -Maintenance Expenses
c. - Pumping Stations - Operation Expenses
d. - Energy Costs
e. - Maintenance Expenses
f. - Treatment - Operation Expenses
g. - Chemical Costs
h. - Energy Costs
I - Effluent Management
j- - Biosolids Management
k. - Maintenance Expenses
1. - Other - Operation Expenses
m. - Maintenance Expenses
3.a. Depreciation - System Assets
b. - Plant & Equipment
4.a. Miscellaneous - Interest
b. - Revaluation decrements
c. - Other
c. - NCP Tax & Other Equivalents
5 Total Expenses
REVENUE
& Residential Charges (including rates)
7 Non-Residential Charges
a Access (including rates)
b User Charges
8 Trade Waste Charges
a Annual Fees
b User Charges
c. Excess Mass Charges

Re-inspection charges
g Extra Charges
10 Interest
11 QOther Income
12.a. Grants - Acquisition of Assets

b - Pensioner Rebates
c. - Other

13.a Contributions - Developer Charges
b. - Developer Provided Assets
c. - Other Contributions

14 Total Revenues

15 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
18 OPERATING RESULT '

16.a. Operating Result before Grants for Acquisition of Assets

130
23

336

87

803

695

57

107

27

890 .

87

87

2010
$'000
258
23

16

130

313

26

829

704

809

(20)

{22)




LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO § - SEWERAGE SERVICE OPERATIONS (cont)

201 2010

B. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS $'000 $'000
Non - Operating Expenditure

17 Acquisition of Fixed Assets

a - New assets for improved standards

b. - New assets for growth 2

c. - Renewals 25 494

d. - Plant & Equipment 21

18 Repayment of Debt

& - Loans

b. - Advances

c. - Finance Leases

18 Transfers to Sinking Funds

20 Total Non-Operating Expenditure 48 494
Non-Operating Funds Empioyed

21 Proceeds of Disposal of Assets

22 Borrowings Utilised

a. - Loans

D - Advances

c. - Finance Leases

23 Transfers from Sinking Funds

24 Total Non-Operating Funds Employed - -
C..RATES AND CHARGES

25 Number of Assessments

a - Residential {occupied) 1899

b. - Residential (unoccupied - vacant land) 13

c - Non-Residential (occupied) 1968

d - Non-Residential (unoccupied - vacant land) 2

Number of ETs for which Developer Charges were
26 received ET
27 Total Amount of Pensioner Rebates 49 $'000

D. BEST PRACTICE ANNUAL CHARGES & DEVELOPER CHARGES

28 Annual Charges
Does Council have best-practice sewerage annual charges, usage

a charges and trade waste fees and charges?
If Yes, go to 29a.
If No, has Council removed Jand value from access charges (i.e. rates) | |

Yes

b Cross subsidy o non-residentiai customers Y

¢ Cross subsidy to trade waste dischargers - 0
29 Developer Charges

a Has Council completed a sewerage Development Servicing Plan? Yes

b Total cross-subsidy in sewerage developer charges 0
30 TOTAL OF CROSS SUBSIDIES -

Councils which have not yet implemented best practice sewerage pricing and trade waste pricing should disclose
cross subsidies in items 28b and 28¢ above. However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is NOt required where a
Council has implemented best practice sewerage and liquid trade waste pricing and is phasing in such pricing

Avar o narind nf 2 vaare
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 6

SEWERAGE SERVICES - NET ASSETS COMMITTED
{Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2011

Current

ASSETS $'000
31 Cash and Investments
- Developer Charges
- Specific Purpose Grants
- Accrued Leave
- Unexpended Loans
- Sinking Funds
- Other 2,787
32 Receivables
a, - Specific Purpose Grants
b. - Rates & Availability Charges 110
c. - Other 44
33 Inventories
34 Property, Plant & Equipment
a. - System Assets
b. - Plant & Equipment
35 Other

% oo o

Non-Current Total

$'000 $'000

9,638 9,638
858 858

36 Total Assets 2,941

10,498 13,437

LIABILITIES
37 Bank Overdraft
38 Creditors
32 Borrowings
a. - Loans
b. - Advances
c. - Finance Leases
40 Provisions

- Tax Equivalents

a. - Dividend -
b. - Other

41 Total Liabilities

42 NET ASSETS COMMITTED 2,941

10,496 13,437

EQUITY
43 Accumulated Surplus
44 Asset Revaluation Reserve
45 Total Equity

46 Current Replacement Cost of System Assets
47 Accumulated Current Cost Depreciation of System Assets
48 Written Down Current Cost of System Assets

4,987
8,450
13,437

27,923
17,427
10,496
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LIVERPOOL. PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 7 - CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS (cont})
as at 30th June 2011

"SATISFACTORY" CONDITION OF PUBLIC ASSETS

In assessing the condition of Public Assets Councit has had regard to the condition, function
and location of each asset, based on the original design standard. Changes in standards or
proposed or potential enhancements to the existing asset design standard have been ignored.
Assets within each Asset Category have been assessed on an overall basis, recognising that
an average standard of "satisfactory" may be achieved even though certain assets may be
above or below that standard on an individual basis.

Council recognises that the standard that it considers to be "satisfactory" may be different from
that adopted by other Councils. '

The information contained in this Schedule comprises accounting estimates formulated in
accordance with the NSW local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting. Nothing contained within this Schedule may be taken to be an admission of any
liability to any person under any circumstance,

ASSET CONDITION
The following condition codes have been used in this Schedule,

Newly constructed

Over 5 years old but fully maintained in "as new" condition
Good condition

Average condition

Partly worn - beyond 50% of economic life.

Worn but serviceable

Poar - replacement required

~NOoONnAWN
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Liverpool Plains Shire Council
Annual Report 2010/2011

APPENDIX “B”

STATE OF ENVIRONMENT REPORT
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- All local governments in N ew South Wales are required under the Local Government Act 1993
to produce annual State of the Environment (SoE) Reports, preferably on a regional basis.
Every four years. the annual reports are to be supplemented by .a comprehensive SoE report.
Supplementary ~reports’ focu .-on: reporting up to date and accurate information on
environmental trehds veeutring sin e the last comprehensive SoE report. The information is of
high importancg as it underpins future planning Sirategies enabling Liverpool Plains Shire
Council -and other councils within the: region to move forward sustainably through planning

.sustainable development by working hand in‘hand with individuals, community groups and the
broader community. hub. Close alliances and symbiotic partnerships over the long term will".
reinforce local and regional investment strategies, not only promoting -confidence within the.
local community but also to regional areas promoting-a catchment approach to investment and -

The Australian Local Goverriment Association endorses national ccological sustainable o |
* development. The mechanism to support 'natio_nal_ec;ol'ogicaﬁ sustainable development_'is__'ﬁged- SRR
“National Strategy for Ecologically Sustainable Development ( ‘NSESD’) Strategy”. Ecological
_sustainable development under NSESD is defined as; using, conserving and enhancing natural
- resources so that ecological processes, on which all life dépends, are maintained; and the total
quality of life, now and in the future, can be increased (Australian Governmei 32,

. Tn NSW local councils are required under Section 8 of the Local Gavefﬁ}r"z:ent:_ﬁf_c-;ﬂ,be.? to
adhere 1o a charter that references ecological sustainable developménti."The.;.fpllpwing are
extracts from Section 8 of the Local Government Act 1993. . S

T engagé‘ in long-term strategic planning on behalf ofthe local jpo'rﬁiﬁunity" ’

 the-environment.

% 1o broperly manage, develop, protect, restore, enhance and conser
ith and promotes

. . of the areq for which it is responsible, in a manne that is consistent
the principles of ecologically sustainable devel ment” .
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. 'Local govemments prov1d1ng State of the Envuonment Reports are gulded by
Section 428 of the Local Government Act and Part 5 Division 2 of the Local
Government (General) Regulatwn 2005 ; S

" The SoE framework‘ls based around the Pressure—State—Response Model (OECD 1993).-
" Monitoring and evaluation of the Pressure-State-Response Model is gauged via Env1ronmental

indicators.

ascertamed from soc1o economrc and enwronmental 1nd1cators

" 2. State — reflect the’ 1mpact of the above pr" s sures by quantifying the condition of the:
- environment.or effects on the enwromnent whilst measuring outcomes of strategies and
 Tesponses. ;

N Response spec1f1cally hlghhghts planned eollectlve or 1nd1v1dua1 action by the
- community in response to indicator outcomes. Actions may include; regulatory action,
environmental or research expendituire, pubhc opinion and consumer preference, =
~ changes iri management strategles and the prov131on of environmental 1nformatlon

' Indlcators used t0 assess Reglonal State and Nauonal pressure —-state responses need to be_,'..ii e

 State based authorities, i.e., Ciitchment Management Authenl:les seeking to help address State' N

-and Natlonal issues.

- Indlcators used to ascertain data must comply with spec1f1c techmcal criteria, U ‘fulness
reliability and reproducible indicators are essential for timeless availabilit; ility: to fink
Dpolicies based on strategic goals and inherent mechanisms to synthesize. o “omes for

" Regional, State and National issues. Collective data adoption and strategy'-develepment is _
reviewed for performance against various indicators that may hlghhght significant gaps inthe
pre planmng and 1mp1ementat10n phases of vanous plannmg processe :
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' Aims and 6bje¢tives of the'Supplémehtary Liverpool Plains Shire Council State of the
- Environment Report are to: - B :
* Compile and present new data and trends of the current state of the environment for
Liverpgol Plait_l_g‘.Shi_rq,Cpunpil;_. ) : S '

changes in‘the -'é_pvirbﬁftje_ﬂt".from the previous years® SoE Report;

"+ Satisty the requiremints of the Local Government Act 1993;
e Idéﬁtifs/:iﬁfbﬁﬁaﬁdﬁ-zggaps?éﬁd5n‘é‘;§‘ d_a't;'i trends; ‘ o
IR . 'Linl{l;,he'.r_SoE ReporttoCounclls’emstmg Managgment’.Pians 8 R
e -Iden_fify- néw 1n1uat1vesbycouncﬂ respondmg to trends across Liverpbol Plaiﬁ's.;'

Shire Council. ..~ L e ' C oo

‘4. Data L._'imit.ation 8

7' At all times reliable and quality dﬁta was 'so'u':g-l;t-frdm :r'_ellevant departménts of Liverpool Plains - f .. -

Shire Council, Govérnme_nt Departments,-agéhé_ié_s, groups and organizations. Incompl(;te or

- inappropriate data was reviewed or clarified to ascertain the nature of information / data gaps,

~Where relevant missing data is identified Witlﬁt_rthe'fépqrt it has been flagged as an area for

~further investigation; opportuitity (o implement reliable data management systems or increase__ Y B

o staff training as required.

"Quality and availability of data across “Environmental Themes” is inconsistent, highﬁghtihg_ §
*that depth, consistency, availability and specific time series data where applicable have” ~

' restrained the Supplementary SoE from identifying direct and in-direct r@]_aﬁgﬁfshiﬁs.;,aérbss the
. landscape. This type of inconsistency potentially depletes the Pressure, - -‘_-S'téi'féﬁ%:_l_{éspon'se

~ Model limiting strategy development and investment. L L :
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" Environmental indicator outcomes allow assessment to be made in reference to environmental

condition where indicators are reliable and repéatable across the Pressure — State — Response
Model. Data of the highest initegrity was sourced from Liverpool Plains Shire Council, other

' Governmen_t Dep_:f_i;'tme_nts_, agencies and community organisations by direct approach, phone
enquiries or mecetings with staff. Additionally, relevant government and non government

organisation intcfﬁe ites were | ety dto:

Liverpool Plain'sﬁ'Shire Councﬂ R

were interrogated to-ascertain data relevant to the boundary of

- data hasbéen avallablc ﬁié ,Sﬁppféméntdfy-.'S_dE;'s,éél'(_is to iltustrate:-
. ,The curretit staté of 'fhe enwronment w1thm t :'e- Liverpool P]aiﬁs Shire Council

" boundary, o BT _- ' o : : : :

*  Environmental changes assessed from indicators across the LPSC local government - | e

Diverse - The Liverpool Plains Shire is home to the Kamilaroi people and many small towns: .}
spread throughout the shire such as; Premer, Spring Ridge, Currabubula, Wallabadah,Pine =~
~Ridge, Mount Parry, Ardglen, Caroona, Walhallow,:Tamaréng, Colly Blue, Bundella,: Cenel
. Yarraman, Blackville, Old Warrah and Piallaway. Quirindi, Werris Creek and Willow Tres are ™ -
- ‘the major towns of the shire, S - R h

. Vibrant Commumity - The shire is located within the foothills of the Great 'Dividingj-Rﬁnge
-and reflects 2 vibrant colorful location based on prime agricultural land. -Séai_éonal_"._r"_dtations.of
sunflowers, sorghum, canola, com, lucerne and wheat ensure the shire __i_s_'-an-"ever-changing

composition of colors and exporter of resources supporting various ’indit_su"ieé_.‘_'?j :
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e

Liverpool Plains Shire has three major urban settlements of Quirindi, Werris. Creek and Willow

Tree with an estimated total population is 7,540, The general expectation is that the population
'n_g_:iﬂ“duStfyﬁﬂrtharl develops across the region, not only providing -

will increase as the ni y furtl
additional employment but pro Ading:de

This expected development /demand will be tempered by market forces.such as availability, .
L. accommodatior, land for development and water supply. - R

' Mainiaining infrﬂémﬁcture 'acrcis_;s‘the‘-_r'eg'ibr_lji's".‘qf::_fnajor importance recognized:by Council, :
_only to ratepayers but to also service visitors o:the region providing efficient and high quality

services in a regional area. Over a period of month’s Council staff and contractors have
ts, restorations or upgrades to built

consistently worked to achieve many building rep:
infrastructl_lre. Table 1 details areas of maintenancc-aptivit_y.

Table 1: Council Actioned / Assisted Méin:tehance' Activity

The Public Toilets, -Georgé

centre at Willow Tree .
' Street Quirindi ' o

The Royal Theatre Quirindi

'The old Ambulance House |
. Station Street Quirindiinto a |
home and community care

- facility '

mand for temporary or permanent accommodation,

Liverpooi Plains Shire ._couli'q‘:i"l_' S

All Council owned buildings - i

All Council owned buildings
- subject to vandalism and
break-ins

~ shower, toi_I_ets, kitchen re-

* Warrah Creek Hall
. Committee —~ refurbish

stumping ‘and re-painting

Rodeo Campdraft_ committee
— continue upgrade of
~ Quirindi Showground.
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The Liverpool Plains Shire enjoys a variable climate suitable to a variety of lifestyle choices.
and is not un-duly unbalanced by rainfall; drought; floods; fire and climate change.: The
complete magnitude of Climate change is a work in progress and predictions are based on

3_'__P_iate 2: Stock grazin
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T T

6.2.1. Temperature
Liverpool Plains Shire is warmed by summer t_emperattire_s oscillating between 15-3 1°c and
cooled by winter temperature's'between_2~16°c as shown in Fig_ure 1, (BoM 2010).

Quirind] Average Temperatures

as

30

i
26 P
i
20 I

Degrees Qaus

o .

Months
_ rFig-.ure 1: Mean monthly tembétaiu_f_e air_e_l.'é.lges_for Qulrlndl _
'6.22. Rainfal L T e

The annual average rainfall is 685.5mm, generally falling beiween the summe;:;;;_bnt’ﬁs of - s
December and February (BoM 2010). T S

Qulrindi Mean Rainfall
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prepared from 1nf0nnat10n provxded by 14 Livestock Health and Pest Authorities around the
state, rainfall detal_ls frqm_t__he Bureau of Meteorology and reports from Department of Primary

The drought maps presented below [Refer Flgure 3 and 4] show the easing of drought
conditions from November 2009- to October 201{) The Central North area was drought
declared in November 2009 and has gradually moved to a satisfactory condmon in October
- 2010, Much of the long awaited. rainfall was tnggered by a strong low pressure system
providing exceptlonal rain throughout the. NSW winter. Above average rainfall in. July and

August lifted the NSW state average to 136.9mm- Wthh is: the ﬁrst time since the 2005 wmter o o

B rainfsll has been the average (BoM 2010)
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6 3 Geology

2 The L1verpool Plams Shlre 1s-%cempesed of vanous Iandforms from rugged country on the
© . ranges to rolhng hllls sechmentary slopes and open flood plalns with each aspect of the _
' "_f:;landform snpportmg a umque ecosystem such as the grassland ecosystem assoelated with the;_, )

:6 3 2 Latest Trends
- Councﬂ’s current activities in this area are anned at- convertmg the current ‘fou_ Local
Environmental Plans (LEPs) into one modern comprehensive document ;
-used to provide direction for growth and development of the ~Shit
Environmental Plan for the Shire will establish the vision for contra
. the Shire.  To support this document a single Development
L '(DCP) must be prepared to prescribe development standards 1y)
approvals . .

velopment of
: onnibutions-'Plan
types of land use -

. Council will p




- License to explore coa

_Shpplementa_ry State of Environment Report.2009/2010 L Liverpool Plains ghi!féz'céa."ﬁ.li g

Land management is one of the most 1mportant issues concermng the leerpool Plalns
" Shire: MaJor development rssues assomated with the L1verpool Plains Shire are associated
- with:- : ,

The development and extractlon of coal resources of the L1verpooI P]ams and
Gunned rnment areas

mmentawa 'VIB P ‘Billiton the grant of a J year exploratlon
_"resources ove LA_ 6505, which embraces an area of abont_ _344,

square kilometer: "rroundmg the townshlp of Caroona The ELA sits over the boundary.
of the Gunnedah'and leerpool Plams Shlres ; -

In 2006, the 's ,,

| sSubject to provmg the resource, the company may proceed to *lodge a developm
application to deveIop a mine’ for assessm ,by the NSW State Government under__th
Env1ronmental Plannmg and’ Assessment A: t 1979

-_Resuients and Iandholders w1th1n the ELA have raised social and env1ronmental
concerns, namely - : ‘ ; : ;

.Impact on aquifers

Impacts on flooding ‘
Loss of prime agricultural land
. Social impacts - : :
Impact on infrastructure
Climate change

- The sustainability of mining
Mining on a floodplain
‘Impact of ; any mining subsrdence on the natural surfac

‘ .The Mmlster for_ Prnnary Industries has estabhshed the




. -.for Bushﬁre Protection requirements and other related Iegrslatlon

- Commrttee
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Soil

_Climate

"Water resources
Locatlon

The'plams are some of the hlghest yreldmg agrlcultural land per hectare in Austraha
Tlus is recogmzed by the many agn—busrness compames that source product in the area.

Any applrcatron for d'e ':opment must be sub]ect to a comprehens1ve and -
rigorous Environ nent-process- that identifies impacts so as to achieve
- the Namoi Catchment '-Management PIan Target "Vibrant Communmes and- Landscapes for _

2 theFuzure”bemg L , e L

. A healthy resources base capable of prowdmg ecologlcally sustamablllty and
‘ productlve outcomes o e ; :
* A viable’ regronal communrty sharmg growth and access to services,
e - Socially satisfied cominunities with: mlmmal conﬂrct and provrdmg opportumtles for
.. people of all backgrounds : :

o 6.3.2.1. Council Initiated Response

Local Environment Plans - Through the. system of development approvals certrﬁcahon of R
' developments and comphance inspections, all developments have been checked so that they -] S
‘comply with the various applicable LEPs, DCPs and the’ Building Code. of Austraha Planm "g'_f RN e

L Councﬂ has also fulfilled its other statutory obhgat]ons by 1ssu1ng various certlficate under-the.
~ Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 such as $149 (Planning Certrﬁ
'(D) (Bulldlng Cert:rﬁcates) '

: Actrvrtles for the reporting period undertaken mclude

Approval of development valued at $14 063,079 (2009/ 10
0__ Councrl 1ssued 365 section 149 Zoning certrftcates (20

Coal Resour Exploratron Consultatron is continuing:
d.recent updates of new developments
2 oonacoaiccc com.au). '
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6.3.3.1. Latest Trends -

ject to various intensive agriculture and mining activities
enetrate large amounts of dust, particularly wind-driven,

Liverpool Plain
which have the poien

,'C"oﬁnci'lj_ﬂha_&i received complaints in regards to various air
ous operations. As an example of generating activities

is ‘Creek Coal ‘operates an open' cut.mine for extraction of - .

‘Table 2: Preliminary Dust and Particulate Maiter Assessment

The Preponent oparates five High Volume Air Samplers at résidenées_'$urmunding the Werris Creek Coal Mine, Duringthe - |- T
period befween March 2009 and February 2010, the average-and maximam 24 hour PM10 and TSP levels recorded were as | ]
“follows.. . ) I S FURAS : ) L S h

| » WCHV1. PM10 Average = 19ug/m3, PM10-Maximum = 701g/m3 (a total'of three exceedances of the 24 hour maximum
_criteria [50ugim3ap. _ S ‘ IRt
| » WeHve: PM10 Average = 16)ig/m3, PM10 Maximum = 481ig/m3 {no exceedances of the 24 hour maximum criteria .
. |L[50ug/m3)). ' . o - R
| » WCHV3: PM10 Average = 15pg/m3, PM10 Maximum = 58)g/m3 (a total of two-exceedances of the 24 hour maxirium

- | criteria {50ug/m3]), ) S o L
| 2 WCHV4: PM10 Average = 15g/m3, P10 Maximum =81 Hg/m3 (a total of one exceedances of the 24 hour maximum: -~

. | ciiteria [50ug/m3]), . . . S » v

- |»WEHV5: TSP Average = 36ug/m3, TSP Maximum = 1@3@'

, _'Iiilportant'Note: Table 1 data is an extract from I:hé Wé’rr-is Creck Cogl
- Environmental Assessment — Report No 623708 — April 2010 - -
_ (ht_t_p://www.whit_ehaven.net.auloDE:rations/documents/62308 PEA

' Both sets of data ‘demonstrate that, with the exception of oc
"PMI10 concentiation (which may. be attributable to sources-other t
-Ming), the current operations comfortably comply with the nomi
monstrates that current dust suppression-activit

effébtivé (W CCPEA 201_0);

pr'(f)ving_ft be.
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T

__ 6.3.3.2. Couhcil__lniﬁétedRespb’hge.

Liverpool Plains Shire Council, along with the appropriate regulatory
~authority (Department of Environment and Conservation) will contimae to.monitor the
. impacts. The Mine has established.a 24 hour hetline for complaints to be lodged. Tn

addition, all complaints are reported as part of the Annual Environmental report,

Plate 3: Werris Creek Coal Mine Aerial View - .
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T - oz

- have been treated with water usage reaching 2,364MI, being used from 2,602 metered
connections, . o : _ . S

Liverpool Plains Shire Co_ljncil reﬁ'iéved_'data- indicating that approximately 61'0ML.'0f water. |

_ - :short. ng term is ofien difficult given that different
indicators are u; ter quality decline at local and regional Ievels, Landscape -

. changes are generally only detectable oyer longer timeframes (10-50yrs) unless a drastic event

has occurred, Natiral' water “quality :variation ‘often goes undetected due the absence ‘of -

_ town of Werris Creek and Quipolly Dam -

which is the only water. supply for the town: The_' dam is located centrally between Werris g

~ Creek (population 1500) and Quirindi (population 3,000). Additionally, the Werris Creekand © |-
proposed Caroona Coal Mine will increase population (>2000) into the future, Population R I

expansion increases put pressure on all.aspects of the Shire but in

- - which is essential to sustaining populations, ‘Liverpool' Plains Shi

 this and has moved to upgrade infrastructure related to Quipolly Dam as follows:- " -

& Revitalization of the treatment plant

. "® . Replacement supply pipeline s

% Upgrade of the dam wall for a 1: 10,000 year ﬂéod event.

-__I'n.‘__t'his}st:ate‘g‘y__,_bd:th towns would have alternative wat :
~ adequately cope with supplying the two towns in an efergen

8 wPla:-t_‘t_a-A., displays Quipolly Dam with family of ducks in







from the atmosph re and pro

Durlng _thc‘:-p d Council was in'parthership wit
- successful in: feceiving a funding from the NSW D

 Change and

| 6.3.5.1. Latest Trends | | _ ”
Project “Regenesis”, the $2 million joint carbon sequestration project is focused on planting -
trees and shru_bs throv.igho'lit the région' on b(_)th,cqu_n‘cil aﬂd private lands to sequester carbon

duce carbon credits for future resale. The project is near

and trees being planted over 80ha. This includes 23ha on

acros propérﬁcs of 12 private landholders. Council envisions
tilar proje:
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The Urban_Sustainabﬂity-Progr'am'ajms to improye: -

a; urban water management, focusing on storm water and urban runoff, to achieve
. sustainable water quality and conservation outcomes; - . - oo
b resource. conservation through- effective waste management, avoidance, reuse and
recycling; and support for sustainable products and services; N
€. urban bushland and creeks, providing opportunities for urban wildlife to flourish and
' itats for rare 4 ndangered flora and fauna; - o
nent; through integrated approaches that resolve air
e, biodiversity, litter and dumping issues; o
oung ls'"-ﬁ,-biis:jn_esses, community’ organizations and

improving habitats fo e.dnd

as régarding sustainability issues.

with urban area populations of less thanl0,000were ineligible for the grants, unless they
partnered with a larger Council. Livetpool Plains Shire Council due to its size would havi
‘been ineligible for grant funding for the Urban Sustainability program without

partnering with a larger Council sich as BIackth;_i.

‘In August 2006, Blackiown City Council in partnership with Liverpool Plains -

Shire, applied for grant funding for the "Climate Recovery" project.

- ‘The "Climate Recovery" project is an- i‘nnd\@rati"jfé biodiversity based carbon -

 the atmosphere is captured and h
Key components of the "Climate Recovery" project include:-

- ® 'trees and other vegetation help to offset the" enhanced greeithou
carbon build-up in the air e

* - carbon certificates will offset emissions created through the buining of fossil

. fuels for energy and transport L B

*  Theywill ot provide a means to offset vegetatio

* - The " Climate Recovery” project will not:p

i to offset vcge_tatiop_removal_t

_ éffect"_.of

bon sequestration to biodiy
number of key environmentai i

_a:té_:"R.ecovery" project wi
-such as Bushcare, Ri
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- Projects with ne\'v'tar_getc'd carbon forest plantings in both Blacktown and Livérpo_ol
Plains. It.is envisaged that the formal recognition of the carbon sequestration will occur
- through the NSW Greenhouse Gas Abatement Scheme (NGGAS). S

NGGAS began on 1 January 2003. It is one of the first mandatory greenhouse gas
emissions trading schemes in the world. Its primary aim is to reduce the impact of
greenhouse gas emissions 1ssociated with the production and use of electricity. It achieves

1 activiti  that are geared to offset the production of greenhouse
arbo stration, NGGAS is administered by the NSW

o th issuing and trading. of carbon credit certificates in NSW.

The project alms tObﬂCOIne self-
“Sponsorship ahdipqrtﬁe;ships_ from:

- to-provide an ongoing financial base.’

_mf_egrated stakeholder support. Proji

" The 'déli_\'rery of this .'proje'ct WIII rely
d Blacktown City Council supported by

*. partners are Liverpool Plaing Shire. Council an

following stakeholders:-

Greening Australia L _
‘Department of Planning
Landcom = AR
Integra-l'En_erg_y_ o

Country Energy - :
“Transurban® = .0 S
Hawkesbury Nepean CMA _
‘Namoi CMA ~~ o

,.."'The "Cli_mate Recove.ry" Project will position Coi'niéil,te broaétiv_eiy and cg
' address climate change at a local level. Our community, cominerce and ind
- shire will be able to offset thejr emissions. : -

The Blacktown City Council and Liverpool Plains Shi
- $1,998,800 for implementation of the "Climate Recovery Project
- three staff, development of biodiversity framework

funding for contractors to undertake plantings.

ance funding of
des. the salaries of
*_"’_Council_ and

ré boundaries or within Quirin
et test area, Wallabadah.

ng: i'i-i‘Regﬁlatofy_.i-’[‘nbun_éi-l (IPART) which provides a legislative and n
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Essential Serv:ces L1verpool Plams Weed Officers continue to prov1de an essent1al service
under thé Noxious Weeds Act 1993 and. general environmental weed awareness campaigns
underpmned by support from NSW Industry and Investment. Priority for weeds officers is
_ early alert and containment of declaréd noxious weeds which provides the opportunity for
= early mapping of the infestation and control, partlcularly along modes of transport like rivers,
roadsides and stock routes. : :

Plate 7: Swamp Wallaby enjoying ﬁathe_' ﬁéﬁgt‘u_ré and early morni’hgfs_tjh e




Liverpool Plaing Shire. Council

" Plate 9: Eucalyptus woo.dland‘ﬁit_]-:l"ter;restrial timber habitat

. -636.1. LatestTrends =

- Liverpool Plains Shire Council measured approximately 400 tons of recyclable waste in 2
“which is expected to increase with population growth driven by the mining industry across t
region. With increased supply and demand of goods and services Council has mmplemented -
 strategies, contracts and actions to ensure public amenity is maintained to. gh'level as'demand
- increases across the region on all resources, S A

6.3.6.2. Council Initiated Response

ninimization. Council

Livérpool Plains Shire Council _promotes recycling an,
terials for use in their

encourages residents to compost food scraps and other decompc

ipgrading
bins. I

cil ‘entered into agreement with coiltra
ection: of ‘general refuse and recycling of co-mi
Quirindi- Aboriginal Corporation has under;

- esale business undertaking,

'S}é]ing service is provi_déd‘ thin th :.
Tiving on the truck route, Each ;

residénts _
: id. Lost bins will be repl.
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Rehabilitation in_Action - Significant 1andﬁ11, site rehabilitation' has commenced at

Blackville, We s-Creek and illow Tree sites.

Annual Co]lecﬁqns in For .e_r-ﬁ-L'I"ltl_"c:-‘lipg'lédé(_i%Waste collection contract provides for annual
.- collection of green W’as'tzj:'and_-bli]_l::cy'-go'qu, waste from residential propertics, T

- - variety of premises across the region, '-'PuB]_'_i_c';"_I_iéailth_-complaints are quite often of a serigu
- nature, requiring inspection and investigation which is underpinned by legislative guidelines;

~ health safety. The bins are bright yellow in color and clearly marked as a Sharps Only Bin,

.~ 6371 LatestTrends . SRR
. Additional Aboriginal Heritage data not available at tini¢ of report preparation. .

112009 the total number of artefacts or significant places recorded numbered 65 across he I

Plains Shire. Table 2 details stakeholder responsi'bili;ies of _Abbr_;'g'inal Heritage mang;

gement Responsibilities

‘Manage NPW
Act .
Maintains site

register b

Legislative : S
MER & information management. .

Local government Survey-and document o ' o '} LEP, DCP, _
. : o _ o _ - _ . VEP&AAct N o !
| Deveiopers & - _ldentify&consider,Aboriginal'heritage'Iikely to be impacted - '] EPRA Act =f ‘
comminity by development S - a - ] e
CMA e Consider Aboriginal heritage in property vegetation plans-
: I(Eng'az;eme'nt with local Aboriginal communities in CAP

process : .
Table adapted from State of Environmg t-Report 2008-2009 Naig

Important Note:
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-6.3.7.2. Council Initiated Response
'Livérﬁobl Plains Shire Council recognizes that the management of Abbﬁginél heritage _
“included the following activities:- ' . : '
¢ Correct identification of relevant artéfacts, sites and places.
* The protection of relevant sites and artefacts,
: vant sites and artefacts

:]égi:implémented:_via a number of options promoting:-

* Timely and effective management.
. Develbp_fnehf-',ef-a_ﬁiénage'xﬂgﬁt’:ﬁiéﬁ:61" strategy.
* Initiating surveys. - e X _

* Recognizing heritage issues in‘planning instruments such as LEPs and DCPs,
* . Initiate and promote community education R

* _Create and maintain an up-to-date database,

' Liverpool Plains Shire Couneil -is'requiréd _t_;,n'de‘r._it_hé-zl;qciél Environment Plan to map heritage . - ': i
_items and sites. S e S ‘

~ 6.3.8.1. Latest Trends
o -Addit_ional Non - aboriginal Heritage data not available ai time of report preparation

In 2009 the total mumber of Non indi genous Heritage jtems recbl_'ded numbered.2 I actoss _ﬂig‘:‘l;ivelpool
- Plains Shire. Table 3 details stakeholder responsibilities of Non indigenous H nagei

Table 4; Non ind

“[ Heritage Council NSW
Local Go’vernment

Identify & list items of local -
heritag_e significance in LEP

| EP&A Act-
-] Developers & community _ C_ompfia_n_c'e with legislation

. 1EP&

eritage Act 1977
PSAACY LEP

gbié-‘adaptcd from State of Environmenit Ragi
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6.3.8.2. Council Initiated Response

Increasmgly Liverpool Plains Shlre Councﬂ directly and rndlrectly mfluences the management
of Non aborlgmal Hentage 1ssues wh1ch are measured by performance 1nd1cators

: Dlrectly Councﬂ is measured by the followmg indicators: LEP. fmahsed DA procedure
. addresses non-Aboriginal. hentage Non-Aboriginal herltage plan or strategy developed;
-~ Number of m gem pl ;

Plate 10: Harvesting machine oi_tirnes past
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- Table5: Environmental Trend Summary

As development continues within the region| -
] across many sectors of . industry pressure  will
| continue to mount. on . demand and supply of
| resources. _ C
: Air quality within the reglon is relatwely steady |-}
" Air * | Increasing | but requires ongoing monitoring in respect to
- industry dévelopment and seasonal conditions,
Although - recent rains - have “eased . immediate
= | pressures. with water quantity, pressure remains on
Water - | Increasing | the long term sustamably and quality of water,
. dependent. on - industry, - envxronmental and
infrastructure conditions.
Although many programs are in p]ace to manage |
T _ . | and- conserve biodiversity within the region|
Biodiversity Increasing | pressure continues to mount from development,
' _exotic species and- envnronmental conditions over | *
the long term. :
Waste recycling is paramount to the long term |
e -1, .| waste sustai'nab‘ility’ needs of the Shire which has |
Waste Increasing
w7 | the potential to - increase populatlon over the.,
- | médium to long term. '
Increasing vigilance -and recogmtlon of hentage '
| items through planning instruments is increasing |
the - surety .of long term  protection - and |
management '

Land Incréasiﬂg

Heritage Steady
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS
SHIRE COUNCIL

FORWARD

Liverpool Plains Shire Council is strong in its commitment to provide opportunities for all community
members. It proposes to build on the infrastructure that already exists, resulting in a shire that is fair
and equitable in terms of physical and attitudinal access for all people regardless of any disabling
condition.

This plan aims to identify any inequities that may exist by pinpointing areas of concern upon which
Council can work with the community with a view to achieving best practice in the delivery of all
services.

Subject to budget constraints, Council will attempt to improve in the provision of physical access
enabling all community members to participate in and utilize public facilities within the Community.

As a Local Government Authority Council is committed to the requirements of the Disability
Discrimination Act 1992, by observing the following Principles;

o Residents with a disability have the same rights and responsibilities as those residents who
do not have a disability;

. All facilities, public space, services, information, programs and areas under Council’s control
should be accessible to all residents; and

. Promotion of the needs of residents with disabilities.

Cr. lan Lobsey OAM
Mayor
LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL’S ACCESS PLAN
DEVELOPMENT FLOWCHART

Gain active participation from General Manager and council staff in the planning and
implementation of this Access Plan.

Form an Access Committee with objectives to consult consumers, educate and evaluate
‘consumers’ and community members alike

In conjunction with Council staff seek any access ‘Black Spots’ and compile a list.

Establish a draft plan, consult staff and seek public comments and those of Service Providers in the
caring field. Advertise draft plan and invite public submissions.

.-

Review submissions and amend plan.

-

Access Commiittee to review plan and then present to Council for adoption

.

Present Final Plan to Human Rights and Equal Opportunities Commission and the Department of
Ageing, Disability and Home Care

.

Compile directories, pamphiets, guides and maps with a view to assisting people to access their
communities.

.

Liverpool Plains Shire Council’s disABILITY Access Committee Monitor/Review Plan through
Community Survey and provide recommendation to Council.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) 1992 is underpinned by the fact that all people regardless
of age or disability should have equity of access to all services that are enjoyed by people without a
(perceived) disability.

The concept of “Access” comes in many forms. It is about people with mobility restrictions being
able to get themselves safely to and into buildings and other facilities, be able to do their own
shopping thus fostering integration, and not ‘special treatment’ which still draws attention to people
typically seen as apart from mainstream communities. The Plan, once implemented will also make
it more achievable for people with challenges to pursue and enjoy recreational and other activities.
Liverpool Plains Shire Council welcomes the opportunity to develop and implement an Access Plan
for its local government area (LGA). While it is true that the impetus for formulating this plan

originates from a requirement of the DDA, Council has been aware for some time now of the need
to formulate and endeavor to implement such a plan.

The Community, Council and Staff members understand the rights and responsibilities of all people
to be able to choose to live as fully an integrated and ‘typical’ life as they wish. This is of course
dependent on the abilities of the individual people involved and ubiquitously, council resources.

This Disability Action Plan outlines what Liverpool Plains Shire is currently undertaking to ensure
that its services and activities are accessible to all residents of the Shire.

Council seeks the following outcomes through this Plan;

. ACCESSIBLE FACILITIES:

To provide access to all people in the community to Council services and facilities and to
make public buildings fully accessible.

. CUSTOMER SERVICE:
To continue to provide services of quality to all community members.
. EMPLOYMENT:

That no discriminatory practices will be engaged in by Council and its staff members be this
CONSCious or unconscious.

) IMPLEMENTATION, MONITORING AND REVIEW:

That this plan will be implemented under Council’s banner of implementation, monitoring,
and review.

?L 6



THE DISABILITY DISCRIMINATION ACT

The Disability Discrimination Act 1992 makes it unlawful to discriminate in the provision of goods,
facilities or services, against people on the basis that they have or may have a disability. The Act
also makes it unlawful to discriminate in any way, conscious or unconscious, on the basis that an
associate of a person with a disability, may have, or has, a disability.

The Act states that an Action Plan may be developed within an organisation with a view to
eliminating any discriminatory practices. The Act seeks to have the Action Plan lodged with the
Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission (HEROC).

For the purpose of the plan disability, in no order of prominence is defined as:

Psychiatric

Physical

Intellectual

Sensory

Neurological

Learning (slow)
Physical disfigurement

The presence in the body of disease causing organisms

The definition includes a disability that:

presently exists

previously existed but no longer exists, (eg, a person who has had a heart attack, an
episode of mental illness or a back injury);

may exist in the future, (eg, a person with a genetic predisposition to Huntingtons disease or
a person who is HIV positive or who carries the AlDS virus)

is imputed to a person, (eg, assuming that a person living with someone who has an
infectious disease, also has the disease and it is thought that the second person may infect
others. Thus attitudes and assumptions can also underpin discrimination.

DISABILITY: - is a reduction or loss of typical functional ability that resuits from
impairment/s.

IMPAIRMENT: - a functiona! or anatomical abnormality, that may or may not manifest as a
disability.

HANDICAP:- the resultant disadvantage caused by a disability and or negative or

unaccepting attitudes to a person who happens to have a disability.

Impairments can result in disability of a physical kind, sensory, intellectual, and psychiatric

& .



or an acquired impairment (e.g. brain damage from an accident)

. DISCRIMINATION:- briefly this means any treatment directly with, or negative talk or
actions about, a person with a disability that results in him or her being treated less
favourably than people without a disability under the same circumstances.

Discrimination also occurs when people with a disability are excluded from accessing employment,
education or goods and services by an imposed requirement. This requirement may be the same
for everyone but if it results in exclusion for people with a disability it is a discriminatory practice.
Treatment that is different for people with a disability is NOT unlawful if it can be proved that it was
reasonably intended to try to ensure that they have equal opportunities and that their support
needs, be they low or high, are being met.

ACRONYMS USED IN THIS PLAN

A/C Access Committee

CMP Council’'s Management Plan

DAC Disability Action Committee

DDA Disability Discrimination Act

DSA Disability Services Acts

GM General Manager

DECS Director — Environmental & Community Services
DFCS Director — Finance & Corporate Services
DW Director — Works

HRO Human Resource Officer

HACC Home & Community Care




COMMUNITY INCLUSION STATEMENT

In 1992 as an offshoot from the Disability Services Acts (Federal 1986) and (State/NSW 1991) the
Disability Discrimination Act 1992 was implemented. This Act makes it unlawful to engage in any
discriminatory practices to people with a disability.

By preparing this plan Liverpool Plains Shire Council demonstrates support for the above
legislation. This support is reflected in Council’'s Management Plan, Equal Employment Opportunity
Palicy, Council’s Vision Statement and now with this Access and Equity Plan.

The Liverpool Plains Shire Council will continue to promote and facilitate effective
integration for all community members by:-

. Education of all staff on the rights and responsibilities of people who because of physical
impairment/s are most affected by these Acts of Parliament.

. Consuitation with the wider community be they people with mobility or sensory challenges
or health professionals.

) Ensuring adequate access to service facilities within Council for pecple with a disability.

. Responding to the needs of people with a disability Council by continually monitoring their

needs and the needs of their carers. Council will make every attempt to respond to those
needs in a positive manner where possible.

. Proactively taking the lead in promoting ‘inclusion for all’ community values and actively
seeking to provide solutions in the community and local government.



COUNCIL’S PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Council’s principal activities are set out in the table below:

GOVERNANCE

« Members Facilities and Expenses
e Public Relations

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE:

¢ Information Technology
« [nsurance and Risk Management
e Customer Services

COMMUNITY SERVICES:
e Library
s Cuitural

o Youth & Children

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

e Community Protection
* Landuse planning
¢ Public Health

ENGINEERING SERVICES

Infrastructure Planning
Plant Services

Depot Services

State Roads

Rural Roads

TOURISM & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

¢ Tourism
¢ Economic Development

BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

¢ Saleyards

¢ Airport

¢ Private works

¢ Gravel Pits

e Swimming Pool

2

Human Resources
Administration Support

Records Management
Financial Services
RTA Agency

Aged Care
Disability Services

Natural Resource Management
Built Environment
Waste Management

Survey and Design
Engineering Administration
Urban Streets

Ancillary Services

Public Recreation

Caravan Park
Residential & Industrial Subdivisions

Property Rental
Cemeteries

Water Supplies

Sewer Services
Showground / Racecourse

10



COUNCIL SERVICES & FACILITIES BEING UTILISED

The following is a list of community services currently being used by, and being assessed for
people with disabilities and their service providers and/for carers.

¢ Rate Payments

e Airport

* Waste Removal/Recycling

o  Cemetery

e Street Lighting

¢ Traffic Management and Control

+  Community Information

¢ Health Inspections

e Community Information

e Caravan park (under lease)
e Street Signs

e Community Halls & Centres
¢ Library

¢ Public Seating

Control of Stray Animals

Parks Furniture and Equipment
Footpaths

Building Contro!

Companion Animals Licensing

Town Planning & Development Control

Administration Centre & Council
Chambers

Home and Community Care Centre
Parks and Reserves

Waste Depots

Accessible Parking Spaces
Swimming Pool

Public Toilets

Roads and Traific Authority Agency

11



THE ACTION PLAN

This action plan has been developed:

. To eliminate discrimination

. As a sound and equitable business practice as the development of such a plan can only
improve council’s performance as it sets about fulfilling its responsibilities to the community,
a large proportion of which is made up of people with disabilities and their families.

. To reduce the likelihood of complaints lodged against council via The Human Rights and
Equal Opportunity Commission (HREOC-Federal)

Senior Managers within council will be responsible for action strategies contained within Council’s
Management that flow from this plan.

Private businesses, commercial ventures and industry in the Shire are responsible for their
individual liability under the Disability Discrimination Act.

Areas of concern raised by community members are sometimes not under control of Council; eg
privately owned and operated retail outlets. When this occurs Council
will write to the owners of services and retail outiets and advise them of the concern/s raised.

In case of a concern about a government service that is outside the jurisdiction of Council, that
concern will be referred to the appropriate level of government.

The Action Plan is appended as Appendix 1

Council will initiate Community Consultations with the Shire community, regarding the contents of
the draft Action Plan.

Council will also advertise for community comment on the Draft Plan and place it on public
exhibition seeking further community-based comments prior to the Plan’s consideration for adoption

by Council.
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Liverpool Plains Shire Council
Annual Report 2010/2011

APPENDIX “D”

PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION OF
FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS POLICY




LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

POLICY REGISTER Policy No. 1.24

POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND PROVISION
OF FACILITIES TO COUNCILLORS

File Reference No.: C.50

Date Adopted 12 July 2004
Minute No: 9102

Last Updated: 24" November 2010

History of Policy Review

Version Adoption Date Minute No Details of Review
1 12" July 2004 9102 Amalgamation
2 16™ February 2005 0468 Partner
' Circumstances

3 15" November 2006 10675 Annual review

4 27" June 2007 11059 Annual review

5 23™ April 2008 11641 DLG review of
policies

6 22" October 2008 11988 New Council

7 16™ December 2009 12794 Annual review

8 24" November 2010 13317 Changes of facilities
to the Mayor

PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

The purpose of the palicy is to ensure that there is accountability and fransparency in
the reimbursement of expenses incurred or to be incurred by Councillors. The policy
also ensures that the facilities provided to assist Councillors to carry out their civic

duties are reasonable.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

INTRODUCTION

OBJECTIVES

To detail the circumstances whereby the payment of expenses incurred by or to be incurred by,
and the provision of facilities to, the Mayor and Councillors in discharging the functions of Civic
Office.

MAKING AND ADOPTION OF THE POLICY

Council implements this policy in accordance with section 253 of the Local Government Act
1993 by giving public notice of its intention to adopt or amend the policy and shall allow at least
28 days for public submissions.

Public notice is not needed if a propased amendment is not substantial and this means minor
changes to wording, the standard of equipment of facilities provided or changes in the monetary
provisions that are less than 5%.

Council will promote the policy on the payment of expenses and the provision of facilities
to councillors to the community by placing the policy on its website and making it readily
accessible. :

Council shall review the policy on an annual basis and submit this policy to the Director-
General of the Department of Local Government within 28 days of adoption by Council,
even if itis proposed to adopt an unchanged policy. Current policies must be submitted to
the Department of Local Government by 30 November each year.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with section 428 of the Local Government Act 1393 Council shall report on the
following in its annual report.

(a) details (including the purpose) of overseas visits undertaken during the year by
councillors, council staff or other persons while representing the council
(including visits sponsored by other organisations),

(a1) details of the total cost during the year of the payment of the expenses of, and
the provision of facilities to, councillors in relation to their civic functions (as paid
by the council, reimbursed to the councillor or reconciled with the counciilor),
including separate details on the total cost of each of the following:

(i) the provision during the year of dedicated office equipment allocated io
councillors on a personal basis, such as laplop computers, mobile telephones
and landline telephones and facsimile machines installed in councillors’ homes
(including equipment and line rental cosls and internet access costs but not

including call costs),

(i)  telephone calls made by councillors, including calls made from mobile
telephones provided by the council and from landline telephones and facsimile
services installed in councillors’ homes,

(iii)  the aftendance of councillors at conferences and seminars,

(iv)  the training of councillors and the provision of skill development for councillors,
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24

PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO

COUNCILLORS

(v) interstate visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the counci,
including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-of-pocket
travelling expenses,

(vi) overseas visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the council,
including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-of-pocket
travelling expenses,

(vii  the expenses of any spouse, partner or other person who accompanied a councillor in
the performance of his or her civic functions, being expenses payable in accordance with
the Guidelines for the payment of expenses and the provision of facilities for Mayors and
Councillors for Local Councils in NSW prepared by the Director-General from time to
time.

Expenses

o the cost of phone calls including mobiles, home located landlines, facsimile and
internet services

o spouse/ partner/ accompanying person expenses

o conference and seminar expenses

o training and skill development expenses

o interstate travel expenses

o overseas travel expenses

o carer and other related expenses

Provision of facilities

In addition to the statutory reporting requirements, council shall report other costs where these
are significant. For example, councils should report the cost of the provision of facilities and
equipment where such provision is above what would normally be required for the day-to-day
running of the council.

OTHER GOVERNMENT POLICY PROVISIONS

Lacal Government Act 1993 & Regulations

Department of Local Government Guidelines for the Payment of Expenses & Provision of
Facilities to Councillors (May 2007)

Division of Local Government Circulars to Councils
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24

PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

APPROVAL ARRANGEMENTS

The Mayor and Councillors may attend local meetings within the Shire without approval.
Attendance at conferences or seminars outside the Shire requires the following approval:

When

Discretionary conferences and trips are to be approved by a full meeting of Council
Non-discretionary conferences or trips for Councillors are to be approved by the Mayor
and General Manager

Non-discretionary conferences or trips for the Mayor are to be approved by the Deputy
Mayor, one other Councillor and the General Manager

travel involves overnight accommodation, an "Authority to Travel” form must be

completed at least one week prior to the event and forwarded to the General Manager (see
attached form).

PAYMENT OF EXPENSES GENERALLY

The Mayor and Councillors must have authorisation to travel outside the Shire (see approval
arrangements).

Payment of expenses to Councillors shall be limited to:

(@)
(b)

(c)
(d)

Travel

Payment of travelling expenses for private vehicle use.

Payment of accommodation, travelling, sustenance, telephone and car parking
expenses whilst attending conferences and seminars.

Payment of training/development expenses

Reimbursement of costs paid by the Councillors for which Council is liable under this

. policy, including carer expenses.

Councillors will be entitled to travel by the most practical conveyance to the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Attendance at Ordinary, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings of an organisation
where the Councillor has, by Council resolution, been duly elected as a Council
delegate.

Attendance at conferences and seminars when such attendance by Councillors has
been approved by Council resolution or by the Mayor under delegated authority.

Attendance at inspections, within or outside the area as authorised by Council resofution
or by the Mayor under delegated authority.

Attendance at official Council functions authorised as Council business by a resolution of
Council or by the Mayor under delegated authority.

When suitable, Council will provide Councillors with a motor vehicle to attend any of the above.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

An allowance will be payable to Councillors for the use of their own private vehicles and is the
maximum as advised by the Local Government & Shires Association from time to time.

Accommodation

Council will pay actual reasonable costs of overnight accommodation for stays outside the
Shire. Reimbursement shall be limited to accommodation for the nights of the meeting
conference, night before and night after where necessary.

Telephone Expenses

When a Councillor is attending an approved conference/seminar/meeting or other official
engagement outside the Shire, Council will pay/reimburse telephone calls from Councillors to
their family or place of work and to Council. (See the daily limit table 1.0 Monetary Limits and
Standards)

Sustenance Expenses

Council will reimburse to Councillors the reasonable cost of breakfast, lunch, dinner, carparking
and other out-of-pocket expenses for attendance at conferences, seminars, meetings, etc.

Reimbursement and Reconciliation of Expenses

Council will reimburse the Mayor and Councillors for all reasonable expenses, subject to the
provision of supporting receipts or documents. Claims are to be made on the appropriate claim
form.

A Councillor will be entitled to reimbursement of expenses necessarily incurred for the cost of
facilities which the Council has agreed to provide as part of this policy.

Claim for reimbursement of expenses must be made within three (3) months of incurring the
expense and are to be made on the appropriate claim form supported by receipts or documents.

The General Manager will authorise claims for travel and the reimbursement of other expenses.

Payment in Advance

A Councillor may wish payment in advance in anticipation of expenses to be incurred in
attending approved conferences, seminars and meetings outside the Shire.

Councillors shall reconcile the expenses to the advance and submit a claim (on the appropriate
claim form) supported by receipts or documents to the General Manager for approval within one
(1) month of incurring the expense.

NO allowance type payment is permitted.
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POLICY TITLE:

PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND

PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO

COUNCILLORS

Policy No. 1.24

ESTABLISHMENT OF MONETARY LIMITS AND STANDARDS

Council will reimburse to the Mayor and Councillors expenses incurred in the execution of their

civic duty having consideration to the following limits and standards.

Table 1.00 Monetary Limits and Standards

Travel/Facility

Recipient

Details/Limit/Standards

Domestic air travel within Australia (must be
greater than 4 hours travel by motor vehicle)

Mayor/Councillor

Economy class

International air travel

Mayor/Councillor

Business class

Rail Mayor/Councillor | First class (Sleeper
when necessary)

Private vehicle Mayor/Councillor | Maximum per
kilometer as advised
by the LGSA

Coach and taxi Mayor/Councillor | Actual cost

Meals and associated refreshments when not | Mayor/Councillor | A maximum of $150

provided at conference/seminar per day

Accommodation within Australia Mayor/Councillor | Government/Corporate
accommodation rates

(where applicable)

Accommodation overseas

Mayor/Councillor

In accordance with
Council resolution
authorising travel

Mobile phone costs

Mayor

Maximum $1,500 pa

Telephone expenses while at a
conference/seminar outside the Shire

Mayar/Councillor

Maximum $15 per day

Carer Costs

Mayor/Councillor

Maximum $2,000 per
annum

Clothing Mayor/Councillor | Maximum $400
Councillor pa

Training/Development Mayor/Councillor | Maximum $10,000 pa

Meals and Refreshments Mayor/Councillor | Maximum  $40 per

head per meeting

Mayor/Councillor

$500 per Councillor pa

Stationery
SPOUSE AND PARTNER EXPENSES

Councillors may invite his/her spouse to accompany them on a business trip however Council
will not pay for any spouses expenses, with the exception of registration and dinner at

LGSA Conferences.

FACILITIES

Council will provide to Councillors, subject to the various conditions and terms outlined, the

following facilities:

(1)

Insurance

Council will effect an appropriate level of insurance for Councillors in the following areas:
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

(a) Personal Accident — coverage of Councillor and spouse while on Council business;
{(b) Defamation.
(2) Seminars and Conferences

Council will provide the following facilities to Councillors attending conferences or seminars
which have been authorised by Council resolution or by the Mayor under delegated authority.

(a) Registration Fees - the payment of registration fees for attendance at
conference/seminar sessions;

{(b) Accommodation — the payment of accommodation costs on the following basis:

(i) Accommodation will be selected by the Council on the basis of cost and
convenience of location to the conference venus. A Councillor may choose
accommodation at a different location but which is at the same cost or iess.

(i) The number of accommodation days provided under this policy will be limited to:
A Registration day; and
B. Each day on which official sessions of the conference/seminar are held.

(i)  Any additional accommodation costs incurred as a result of the attendance of
partners and/or children, shall be borne by the Councillor.

(c) Car Parking Fees
Council will meet the cost of the following car parking fees:

() Hotel/motel parking — additional carparking fees not included in accommodation costs.

() Transportation

Council will provide a Councillor with transportation to and from conferences and seminars.
Transportation may be by:

(i) Aircraft — economy class

(i) Hire car — up to standard 6 cylinder
(iii) Private vehicle

(iv) Train

v) Council vehicle

(e) Councillor Training/Development

A maximum of $10,000 will be provided in annual budgets for training/development of
Councillors to assist them to become effective community leaders.

4] Carer Expenses

For Councillors responsible to care for dependent children or other dependents including people
with a disability and the elderly, Council will reimburse the cost of a carer to a maximum of
$2,000 per annum while attending Council meetings, conferences, training and other business
of Council. Claims must be accompanied by a receipt from the care provider showing the day
and time care was provided and details of the reason care was needed on such an occasion.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

(9) General

The General Manager is granted delegated authority to exceed the terms of (b) above
(accommodation) if such action will result in a more economical cost effective solution for the

Council.
(3) Legal Costs

Councillors are entitled to reimbursement of reasonable legal expenses in the circumstances,
and to the extent, described in this clause.

In the event of:

0] any enquiry, investigation or hearing into the conduct of a Councillor by any of:
the Independent Commission Against Corruption;

the Office of the Ombudsman,;

the Division of L.ocal Government, Department of Premier & Cabinet
the NSW Palice;

the Director of Public Prosecutions;

the Local Government Pecuniary Interest & Disciplinary Tribunal,

a Parliamentary Committee;

Council's Conduct Review Committee/Reviewer

or the like; or

(i) legal proceedings being taken against a Councillor; or

{iii) a Councillor being compelled to appear before any of the bodies referred to above to
give evidence on matters arising out of or in connection with the Councillor's
performance of their civic duties or exercise of their functions as a Councillor, Council
shall reimburse such Councillor at the conclusion of such enquiry, investigation, hearing
or proceeding, for all legal expenses properly and reasonably incurred, given the nature
of the enquiry, investigation, hearing or proceeding, on a solicitor/client basis,
PROVIDED THAT

(a) the Councillor did not initiate the legal action;

(b) the amount of such reimbursement shall be reduced by the amount of any
monies that may be or are recouped by the Councillor on any basis;

(c) the enquiry, investigation, hearing or proceeding results in a finding substantially
favourable to the Councillor; or

(d) the enquiry, investigation, hearing or proceeding does not resuit in a finding that
the Councillor acted in bad faith.

PROVISION OF FACILITIES

Provision of Facilities Generally

Council will provide the following support facilities to Councillors for use by Councillors in the
conduct of their duties of office:

Clothing

Councillors will be provided with one jacket and tie/scarf (with embroidered Council Logo) during
a term of office. Maximum total cost not to exceed $400 per Councillor.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

Badge

Each Councillor is provided with a standard name badge during a term of office.

Secretarial and IT Support

Secretarial/typing assistance will be made available to the Mayor and other Councillors for work
directly related to the duties of office. IT support will be made available to the Mayor and
Councillors to ensure the effective and efficient operation of computer equipment.

Office/Meeting Room Facilities

Office/meeting room facilities are available at the Administrative Centre for use by Councillors in
the conduct of their duties of office.

Meals and Refreshments

Council will provide to Councillors appropriate light meals and refreshments at meetings of
Council and Committees. The cost of meals and refreshments per meeting will not exceed $40

per head.
Facsimile

Each Councillor will be supplied with a facsimile at his/her usual place of residence, together
with the appropriate required consumables. Council to pay for installation.

Gomputer

Each Councillor will be supplied with an appropriate laptop computer, mouse, charger, carry bag
and Council will maintain the equipment.

Internet Connection ADSL Broadband

Council shall provide a standard Internet connection ADSL Broadband to the Councillors
residential address. All communications equipment remains the property of Council. Counciliors
are responsible for the recurrent costs associated with the connection.

Stationery

Council will provide, upon request, the following stationery to Councillors to be used only on
Council business:

Writing and note pads, writing pens, business sachet, business cards, diary, promotional
materials and any other stationery deemed appropriate by the General Manager. Maximum
cost not to exceed $500 per Councillor per annum.

Materials

Council will provide, upon request, a copy of the Local Government Act, 1993 and copies of any
policy documents.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

Private Use of Equipment and Facilities

Council facilities and equipment are not to be used for private purposes as set out in the
provisions of this policy and Council’'s Code of Conduct which states:

9.14 You must use council resources ethically, effectively, efficiently and carefully in
the course of your public or professional duties, and must not use them for private
purposes (except when supplied as part of a contract of employment) unless this
use is lawfully authorised and proper payment is made where appropriate.

9.16 You must be scrupulous in your use of council property including inteflectual
property, official services and facilities and should not permit their misuse by any
other person or body.

9.1 You must avoid any action or situation which could create the impression thal council
properly, official services or public facilities are being improperly used for your own
or any other person or body’s private benefit or gain.

9.18 The interests of a councillor in their re-election is considered to be a personal
interest and as such the reimbursement of travel expenses incurred on election
matters is not appropriate. Council letterhead, council logo and other information that
could give the impression it is official council material must not be used for these

purposes.

9.19 You must not convert any properly of the council to your own use unless properly
authorised.

PROVISION OF ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES FOR MAYOR

In addition to the facilities, equipment and services provided to Councillors the Council shall
provide to the Mayor a mobile phone for official Council business. A maximum expense of
$1,500 per annum is assigned to the provision of this equipment. (see above section limits and
standards).

From time to time, the Mayor will incur expenses in carrying out the role, eg, attendance at
functions, conferences, delegations outside the shire. For convenience, a corporate credit card
with a limit of $5,000 is made available, if required, for the Mayor to use while discharging the
functions of the Mayor. All credit card expenditure must be supported by receipts, invoices or
tax invoices. Supporting documentation must be accompanied by a credit card recongiliation
sheet providing a description and occasion for the expense. The reconciliation sheet and
supporting documents must be handed to the Director Corporate Services by the 7" day of the
month. (See attached Reconciliation Sheet)

OTHER MATTERS

ANNUAL FEES

a. Mayor

In accordance with Section 249(1) of the Local Government Act 1993, Council will pay the
Mayor an annual fee monthly in arrears, with the fee to be determined annually. This fee will be
paid in addition to the fee paid to the Mayor as a Councillor. Such amount is to be determined
by Council in accordance with the Remuneration Tribunal’'s Guidelines.
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POLICY TITLE: PAYMENT OF EXPENSES AND  Policy No. 1.24
PROVISION OF FACILITIES TO
COUNCILLORS

b. Deputy Mayor

In accordance with Section 249(5) of the Local Government Act 1983, Council may pay the
Deputy Mayor an allowance for such time as the Deputy Mayor acts in the office of the Mayor.
The amount of the fee paid to the Deputy Mayor would be deducted from the Mayor's annual
fee. Such amount to be determined by Council in conjunction with the decision in respect of (a)

above (Mayor).

ACQUISITION AND RETURN OF EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES BY COUNCILLORS

Councillors shall return to Council all equipment and other facilities at the completion of their
term of office, while on extended leave of absence or at the cessation of their civic duty.

A Councillor finishing office may also have the option of purchasing the Council laptop computer

and facsimile machine at an agreed fair market value. Council will acquire an appraisal from a
reputabie dealer in support of the agreed value.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

AUTHORITY TO TRAVEL

N.B. PLEASE ATTACH COPY OF PROGRAMS, REGISTRATION FORM, AGENDA OR OTHER
RELEVANT DOCUMENTATION.

DE S TIN AT ON: i et r e e tr e e e ra e s e en e aa e e a e et e n e s e
Expected time of departure: ........................ Date of departure: ..o
Expected time of return: ... Date of return:. = ...
TRANSPORT TO BE ORGANISED? Yes O No 0

(Air o) (Bus o) (Train a) (Car o)

ACCOMMODATION TO BE ORGANISED? Yes 0 No o
Checkindate: ............ccoeevennnnn Motel Preference: ..o e
Checkoutdate: ... e
Single o© Double o TWINO e
REGISTRATION FEE AND FORM TO BE ORGANISED? Yes 0 No W
Please attach completed registration form.

HIRE CAR AT DESTINATION? Yes D No =)
SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS TO BE ORGANISED? Yes @ No o1

Please supply details

...............................................................................................................................

APPROVED BY:
‘ MAYOR and GENERAL MANAGER or MINUTE NO

DECLARATION: | confirm that actual details of my journey were undertaken as claimed
above.
(To be signed by Councillor on return)

COUNCILLOR’S SIGNATURE. DATE.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

AUTHORITY TO TRAVEL

DATE: ... . MAYOR:

N.B. PLEASE ATTACH COPY OF PROGRAMS, REGISTRATION FORM, AGENDA OR OTHER
RELEVANT DOCUMENTATION.

DE S TN AT ON: i et e e e et e na e raaaaes
Expected time of departure: ..................... . Date of departure: ...
Expected time of return:  _..........ccooiiiinnnn. Date of return: ...
TRANSPORT TO BE ORGANISED? Yes o No 3|
(Air o) (Bus o) (Train n) (Car o)

. ACCOMMODATION TO BE ORGANISED? Yes o No |
Checkindate: ............ccoeievvennn Motel Preference:  .......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Checkoutdate: ........c.ovieiicis e :
Single o Double o TWINO e
REGISTRATION FEE AND FORM TQ BE ORGANISED? Yes O No m
Please attach completed registration form.
HIRE CAR AT DESTINATION? Yes n No a
SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS TO BE ORGANISED? Yes o  No 0

Please suppiy details

...............................................................................................................................

DEP MAYOR COUNCILLOR  GEN MAN or MINUTE NO

DECLARATION: | confirm that actual details of my journey were undertaken as claimed
above.
(To be signed by Councillor on return)

MAYOR’'S_SIGNATURE. DATE.
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

EXPENSES CLAIM
Councillor: ...t e
Vehicle greater than 2500cc: Yes O No oo
Council/Committee Meeting Kms Date Amount
Travelling
Other

Meetings Attended as a Council
Delegate Kms Date Amount

Travelling

Sustenance (attach receipts)

Other (e.g. car parking fees)

Signature: ..., Date: ...
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LIVERPOOL PLAINS SHIRE COUNCIL

CREDIT CARD RECONCILIATION SHEET

MAYOR: ...t et e et
MONTH: 20
$
Description of Mastercard Occasion Date Total Amount
expenditure
Eg: Accommodation LGMA Conference 30/06/2011 | $880.00
Wentworth Hotel
MAYOR
Signature: ... Date: .....oovvviieiirieieeii
MAYOR
General Manager / Director Corporate Services
Signature: ... Date: .....cccoovvviivievieeeeii,
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